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BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED
CIN L22211MH2013PLC245208

Registered Address: 507 Reliable Business Centre, Jogeshwari (West),  
Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400102.

Email Id: info@bodhitreemultimedia.com  |  www.bodhitreemultimedia.com

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

	 Mautik Ajit Tolia	 :	 Managing Director Chairperson 
	 Sukesh Devdas Motwani	 :	 Whole-time director 
	 Uma Krishnan	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director 
	 Nutanjha	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director 
	 Rahul Kanodia	 :	 Non-Executive - Non-Independent Director 
	 Suneel Kumar Jain	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director 
	 Nirali Dishant Shah	 :	 Company Secretary 
	Ravi Bhavanishankar Bhatt	 :	 Chief Financial Officer

	 Statutory Auditors	 :	 M/s S A R A & Associates 
			   Chartered Accountants

	 Internal Auditors	 :	 S Khasgiwala & Co 
			   Chartered Accountants

	 Secretarial Auditor	 :	 M/s Jaymin Modi & Co. 
			   Company Secretaries

	 Registrar & Transfer Agents	 :	 Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd, 
			   E/2, Ansa Industrial Estate, 
			   Saki Vihar Road, Saki Naka, 
			   Andheri (East), Mumbai, 
			   Maharashtra, 400072
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 11TH ANNUAL GENERAL  
MEETING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS OF BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA 
LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 30TH SEPTEMBER 2024  
AT 09:00 AM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING OR OTHER AUDIO  
VISUAL MEANS, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.	 TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT:

	 A.	 THE AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE  
		  COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024,  
		  TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND  
		  THE AUDITORS THEREON; AND

	 B.	 THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE  
		  COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024,  
		  TOGETHER WITH THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS THEREON,  
		  AND IN THIS REGARD, TO PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTIONS  
		  AS ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:

		  (A)	 “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial  
			   Statements including the Balance Sheet of the Company as at  
			   March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the  
			   Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement  
			   for the year ended on that date together with all the notes  
			   annexed and the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon,  
			   placed before the meeting, be and are hereby considered and  
			   adopted.”

		  (B)	 “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial  
			   Statements including the Balance Sheet of the Company  
			   as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and  
			   Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the  
			   Cash Flow Statement for the yearended on that date together  
			   with all the notes annexed and the Auditors’ Reports  
			   thereon, placed before the meeting, be and are here by  
			   considered and adopted.”

2.	 TO CONFIRM THE PAYMENT OF INTERIM DIVIDEND OF RE. 0.50  
	 PER EQUITY SHARE (5%) ON THE FACE VALUE OF RE.10/- EACH  
	 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, AND IN THIS  
	 REGARD, TO PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN  
	 ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT an Interim Dividend of Re. 0.50 per equity share (5%)  
	 on the face value of Re.10/- each absorbing Rs. 10,290.52/- Thousands,   
	 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, be and is hereby noted and  
	 confirmed as the Interim Dividend for the Financial Year 2023-2024.”

3.	 TO APPOINT MR. SUKESH DEVDAS MOTWANI (DIN: 06586400), WHO  
	 RETIRES BY ROTATION AS A DIRECTOR AND IN THIS REGARD, TO PASS  
	 THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani (DIN: 06586400),  
	 who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered  

NOTICE:
	 himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a  
	 Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4.	 REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. MAUTIK AJIT TOLIA DIN 06586383 AS  
	 MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

	 TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT  
	 MODIFICATIONS, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A SPECIAL  
	 RESOLUTION.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198,  
	 Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,  
	 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  
	 Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and applicable regulations of  
	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
	 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,  
	 for the time being in force), if any and in terms of recommendation of  
	 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and  
	 approval of Board of Directors and subject to such approvals, permissions  
	 and sanctions as may be required, Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia (06586383),  
	 be and is appointed as Managing Director designated as Chairperson of  
	 the Company for a period of 3 (Three) Years w.e.f. 26th August 2025 to  
	 25th August 2028 liable to retire by rotation.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia be paid remuneration  
	 upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) per annum (inclusive of  
	 salary, perquisites, benefits, incentives and other allowances) for a  
	 period of 3 (Three) Years w.e.f. 26th August 2025 to 25th August 2028  
	 and on terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement  
	 annexed to the Notice convening this meeting with the liberty to the  
	 Board of Directors or Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
	 to change, alter, vary or modify the terms and conditions of the said  
	 appointment including Remuneration in such manner as may be agreed  
	 to between the Board and Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia within the scope of  
	 Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendments thereto or  
	 any re-enactments thereof.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of  
	 profit in any financial year during the tendency of tenure of Mr. Mautik  
	 Ajit Tolia as Managing Director designated as Chairperson of the  
	 Company, the above mentioned remuneration be paid to him, as  
	 minimum remuneration, subject to the provisions of Section 197 read  
	 with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed the 
	 reunder and any other applicable provisions of the Act or any statutory  
	 modification or re-enactment thereof.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be  
	 and is hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for  
	 obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above  
	 and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign  
	 and execute all documents and filling of requisites forms that may be  
	 required on behalf of the Company, and generally to do all acts, deeds  
	 and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the  
	 purpose of giving effect this resolution.”
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5.	 REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. SUKESH DEVDAS MOTWANI  
	 DIN 06586400 AS WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

	 TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT  
	 MODIFICATIONS, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A SPECIAL  
	 RESOLUTION.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198,  
	 Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  
	 Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and applicable regulations of  
	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
	 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)  
	 thereof, for the time being in force), if any and in terms of  
	 recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,  
	 Audit Committee and approval of Board of Directors and subject to  
	 such approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be required,  
	 Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani (06586400), be and is appointed as  
	 Whole-time director of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) Years  
	 w.e.f. 26th August 2025 to 25th August 2028 liable to retire by rotation.”

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani be paid  
	 remuneration upto Rs. upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only)  
	 per annum (inclusive of salary, perquisites, benefits, incentives and  
	 other allowances) for a period of 3 (Three) Years w.e.f. 26th August  
	 2025 to 25th August 2028 and on terms and conditions as set out in  
	 the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this  
	 meeting with the liberty to the Board of Directors or Nomination and  
	 Remuneration Committee to change, alter, vary or modify the terms  
	 and conditions of the said appointment including Remuneration in  
	 such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Sukesh  
	 Devdas Motwani within the scope of Schedule V of the Companies Act,  
	 2013 or any amendments thereto or any re-enactments thereof.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of  
	 profit in any financial year during the tendency of tenure of  
	 Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani as Whole-time director of the Company,  
	 the above mentioned remuneration be paid to him, as minimum  
	 remuneration, subject to the provisions of Section 197 read with  
	 Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder  
	 and any other applicable provisions of the Act or any statutory  
	 modification or re-enactment thereof.

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company  
	 be and is hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary  
	 for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above  
	 and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign  
	 and execute all documents and filling of requisites forms that may be  

	 required on behalf of the Company, and generally to do all acts, deeds  
	 and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for  
	 the purpose of giving effect this resolution.”

6.	 TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S) WITH  
	 RELATED PARTIES.

	 TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT  
	 MODIFICATIONS, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A ORDINARY  
	 RESOLUTION.

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and other applicable provisions, if any, read  
	 with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)  
	 Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, read with Regulation  
	 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  
	 Regulations, 2015,Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 24 and  
	 Company’s policy on Related Party Transactions, approval of the  
	 Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolution passed in  
	 their respective meetings, consent of Shareholders be and is hereby  
	 accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for entering into  
	 and/or carrying out and/or continuing with existing contract(s)/  
	 arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) or modification(s) of earlier/ 
	 arrangements/transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s)  
	 or otherwise (whether individually or series of transaction(s) taken  
	 together or otherwise), with “Related Parties” within the meaning of  
	 Section 2 (76) of The Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2 (1)(zb)  
	 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  
	 Regulations, 2015, to the extent of the maximum amounts as provided  
	 below mentioned below, on such term(s) and condition(s) as the  
	 Board may deem fit, provided that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/  
	 transaction(s) shall be carried out at ARM’S LENGTH BASIS and in the  
	 ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS of the Company for the Financial  
	 Year 2024-2025 with respect to sale, purchase or supply of any  
	 good(s) or material(s), selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,  
	 leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of any  
	 service(s), appointment of such related party to any office or place  
	 of profit in the Company, to give premises on rent, to give donation, to  
	 give inter corporate loans (i.e Short term loan(s)/ borrowing(s)/ 
	 advance(s)), transfer of resources, services or obligations, as per the  
	 details set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice, for  
	 an amount which may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per  
	 provisions of the Act, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  
	 Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable from time to time, for  
	 the financial year 2024-2025 on such term(s) and condition(s) as  
	 may be decided by the Board and recommended and reviewed by  
	 audit committee.”
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Sr. 
No.

Name of 
Related Party

Nature of 
Related Party 
Transaction

Estimated transaction 
for FY 2024-2025 
Amount in Crore

1 Phataka Films 
LLP (JV)

Loan/advance/
Project Advance

0.01

2 Sumukha 
Bodhitree 
Entertainment 
Pvt Ltd

Loan/advance/
Project Advance

0.28

3 Vasudhara 
Media Venture 
Pvt. Ltd.

Loan/advance/
Project Advance

8.19

4 Dharmaveer 
Media City Pvt. 
Ltd.

Loan/advance/
Project Advance

0.16

5 Guroudev 
Bhalla Screens 
LLP

Loan/advance/
Project Advance

2.99

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any Director and/or, Company  
	 Secretary or Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the  
	 Company be and is hereby severally authorized to do and perform or  
	 cause to be done all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may  
	 be required or deemed necessary or incidental thereto, including  

	 to determine the manner and method of sale, transfer, disposal and to  
	 settle and finalize all issues that may arise in this regard, without  
	 further referring to the Shareholders of the Company, including  
	 without limitation, negotiating, finalizing and executing necessary  
	 agreements (including such representations, warranties, indemnities  
	 and covenants as may be customary in such transactions), deed of  
	 conveyance, deed of assignment, schemes, and subsequent  
	 modifications thereto and such other documents as may be necessary  
	 or expedient in its own discretion and in the interest of the Company,  
	 including without limitation, to settle any questions, difficulties, doubts  
	 that may arise in this regard, as it may in its absolute discretion deem  
	 fit, and to delegate all or any of the powers or authorities herein  
	 conferred to any Director(s) or other official(s) of the Company, to any  
	 committee of the Board or to engage any advisor, consultant, agent or  
	 intermediary, as may be deemed necessary to give effect to this  
	 resolution.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in  
	 connection with any mater referred to or contemplated in any of the  
	 foregoing resolutions are hereby approved ratified and confirmed in all  
	 respects.”

	 For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
	 Mautik Ajit Tolia 
	 Chairman and Managing Director 
	 DIN 06586383 
	 Date: 05.09.2024 
	 Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES:
Registered Address: - 
507, Reliable Business Centre, 
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400102

1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013 which sets out details relating to SpecialBusiness of the  
	 meeting, is annexed hereto.

2.	 In accordance with the MCA General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th  
	 April 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April 2020,  
	 General Circular No.20/2020 dated 5th May 2020, General Circular  
	 No.02/2021 dated 13th January 2021, General Circular No.19/2021  
	 dated 8th December 2021, General Circular No.21/2021 dated  
	 14th December 2021, General Circular No.2/2022 dated 5th May 2022,  
	 General Circular No.10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and General  
	 Circular No.09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023 issued by Ministry  
	 of Corporate Affairs, (“MCA Circulars”) and SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/ 
	 CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, Circular no. SEBI/ 
	 HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021, Circular no.  
	 SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 2022 and Circular  
	 no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January 2023, SEBI/ 
	 HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 7th October, 2023 issued  
	 by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circulars”) and in  
	 compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)  
	 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  
	 Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) provides for conduct  
	 of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through VC/OAVM without the  
	 physical presence of Members at the Common Venue. The deemed  
	 venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

3.	 In terms of the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been  
	 dispensed with and, therefore, there is no requirement of appointment  
	 of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by  
	 Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the  
	 AGM, Hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map  
	 are not annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section 113  
	 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Body Corporate member/ institutional  
	 members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend  
	 the AGM through VC/ OAVM and participate and cast their votes  
	 through e-voting. Accordingly, Institutional /Corporate Members are  
	 requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/ JPEG format) of the Board  
	 Resolution authorizing its representatives to attend and vote at the AGM,  
	 pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, at info@bodhitreemultimedia.com.

4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM  
	 will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under  
	 Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes  
	 before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the  
	 Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility  
	 of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available  
	 for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not  

	 include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more  
	 shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key  
	 Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,  
	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders  
	 Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the  
	 AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

6.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013  
	 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)  
	 Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations  
	 & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the  
	 Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020,  
	 April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of  
	 remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be  
	 transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into  
	 an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for  
	 facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency.  
	 The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system  
	 as well as e-voting during the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

7.	 In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM and Annual  
	 Report 2023-24 has been uploaded on the website of the Company  
	 at www.bodhitreemultimedia.com. The Notice and Annual Report  
	 2023-24 can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock  
	 Exchanges and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of  
	 NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.  
	 www.evoting.nsdl.com.

8.	 Statement giving details of the Directors seeking reappointment is also  
	 annexed with this Notice pursuant to the requirement of Regulation  
	 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  
	 Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’)  
	 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (“SS-2”).

9.	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the  
	 Company will remain closed from Tuesday 24th September 2024 to  
	 Monday 30th September 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of  
	 Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 31st March 2024.

10.	 The Company is providing VC/OAVM through National Securities  
	 Depository Limited (“NSDL”) platform for the Members to participate  
	 in the AGM. Further, the detailed instructions for e-voting, participation  
	 in the AGM through VC and remote e-voting have been provided in  
	 the Notice.

11.	 All the relevant documents referred to in this AGM Notice and  
	 Explanatory Statement etc., Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial  
	 Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 and  
	 Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested,  
	 maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other  
	 documents shall be available electronically for inspection by the  
	 members at the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents  
	 can send an e-mail to info@bodhitreemultimedia.com by mentioning  
	 their DP ID & Client ID/Folio Number.
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12.	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making  
	 nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held  
	 by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are  
	 requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a  
	 member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh  
	 nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH-14. The said  
	 forms can be downloaded from the RTA’s website at  
	 https://www.bigshareonline.com/ Members are requested to  
	 submit the said form to their DPs in case the shares are held in  
	 electronic form and to the Registrar at ipo@bigshareonline.com in case  
	 the shares are held in physical form, quoting your folio number.

13.	 SEBI has mandated the security holders holding securities in physical  
	 form to furnish PAN, Nomination, Contact details, Bank Account  
	 details and Specimen signature. The Members holding shares in  
	 physical form are requested to send the above information to the  
	 Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent i.e. M/s. Bigshare Services  
	 Pvt. Ltd (“the RTA’’). The required forms (Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2,  
	 Form ISR-3 and Form SH-13 etc.) can be downloaded from  
	 https://www.bigshareonline.com/ or send a request mail to  
	 ipo@bigshareonline.com for soft copy forms. The Members who are  
	 holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to submit PAN,  
	 contact, Bank account, nomination details and specimen signature  
	 (as applicable) to their Depository Participants (DPs). The RTAs shall  
	 not process any service requests or complaints received from the  
	 holder(s) / claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination documents/ 
	 details are received.

14.	 Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read  
	 with the Rules framed thereunder and the MCA Circulars, the Notice  
	 calling the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report  
	 2023-24 would be sent by electronic mode to those Members whose  
	 e-mail addresses are registered with the Depository or the Company/ 
	 RTA, unless the Members have requested for a physical copy of the  
	 same on info@bodhitreemultimedia.com mentioning their Folio  
	 No./DP ID and Client ID. Members are requested to support this  
	 Green Initiative by registering/updating their e-mail addresses with  
	 the Depository Participant (in case of Shares held in dematerialised  
	 form) or with RTA (in case of Shares held in physical form).

15.	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to  
	 their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone / mobile numbers,  
	 Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of  
	 attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in electronic  
	 form and to RTA if the shares are held by them in physical form.

16.	 AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with  
	 applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular  
	 No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated  
	 April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA  
	 Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and MCA General Circular  
	 No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and Circular No. 9/2023 dated  
	 25th September, 2023 and SEBI Circulars.

17.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint  
	 holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at  
	 the Meeting.

18.	 In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI LODR, as amended,  
	 transfer of securities of listed entities can be processed only in  
	 dematerialised form. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular dated  
	 25th January 2022, securities of the Company shall be issued in  
	 dematerialised form only while processing service requests in relation  
	 to issue of duplicate securities certificate, renewal/exchange of  
	 securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/splitting of securities  
	 certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission  
	 and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service  
	 requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR – 4. Members  
	 can contact the Company’s Registrar at ipo@bigshareonline.com for  
	 assistance in this regard.

19.	 The voting right of member shall be in proportion to their share in the  
	 paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off  
	 date, Saturday 21st September 2024. Once the vote on a resolution is  
	 cast by the Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it  
	 subsequently. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date  
	 should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose only.

20.	 The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 05th September, 2024  
	 has appointed M/s. Jaymin Modi & Co., Practicing Company  
	 Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for the e-voting and remote e-voting  
	 process in a fair and transparent manner.

21.	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the  
	 resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the  
	 assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e- voting” for all those  
	 members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes  
	 by availing the remote e-voting facility and The Scrutinizer shall after  
	 the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the  
	 votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast  
	 through remote e- voting in the presence of at least two witnesses  
	 not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than  
	 two working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated  
	 scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to  
	 the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall  
	 countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forth with.

22.	 Queries proposed to be raised at the Annual General Meeting may be sent  
	 to the Company at e-mail address: info@bodhitreemultimedia.com  
	 at least seven (7) days in advance before the date of Annual General  
	 Meeting. The same shall be replied suitably by the Company.

23.	 The results will be declared within two working days from the conclusion  
	 of the AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutiniser’s Report shall  
	 be placed on the Company’s website www.bodhitreemultimedia.com,  
	 on the website of stock Exchange and on the website of NSDL  
	 https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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24.	 A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall  
	 not be allowed to vote again at the AGM & a person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the  
	 register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail  
	 the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting during the AGM.

25.	 In compliance with MCA circulars dated 8th April 2020, 13th April 2020 and 05th may 2020 and SEBI circular  
	 dated 12th may, 2020, Members may kindly note that sending of physical copies of Annual Report to members  
	 have been dispensed with and is being sent through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are  
	 registered with the company or depositories. 

26.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.e. postal  
	 address with PIN code, e-mail address, mobile number, bank account details) and nomination details by  
	 holders of securities. Members are requested to update the said details against folio/ demat account.

27.	 Non-Resident Indian Shareholders are requested to inform Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd, immediately of:

	 A)	 Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

	 B)	 Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account  
		  number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.

28.	 Instructions for Members for Remote E-Voting and Joining General Meeting Are as Under:

	 The remote e-voting period commences on Thursday, 26th September, 2024 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on  
	 Sunday, 29th September, 2024 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period members of the Company, holding  
	 shares as on the cut-off date of Saturday, 21st September 2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.  
	 The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is  
	 cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently

	 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

	 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
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Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL.

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a  
Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon  
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID  
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added  
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.
com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click  
on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have  
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL  
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote  
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the  
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest 
are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
user your existing my easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP 
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers.

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is 
given below:
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form.
EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

B)	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in  
	 demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or  
	 on a mobile. 
2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you  
	 log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.
4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password 
are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for 
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33
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Step 2:	 Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on  
		  NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on 
NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies  
	 “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and  
	 General 	Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the  
	 remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General  
	 Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM”  
	 link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent,  
	 verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your  
	 vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be  
	 displayed. .

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the  
	 print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to  
	 modify your vote.

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.
	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you  
		  retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.
	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
		  (i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace  
			   the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password  
			   to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in phys 
			   ical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 
		  (ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are  
			   not registered. 
6.	  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
 	 a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on  
		  www.evoting.nsdl.com.
 	 b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat  
		  account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.
	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)  
	 are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant  
	 Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature  
	 of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the  
	 Scrutinizer by e-mail to info@csjmco.com with a copy marked to  
	 evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than  
	 individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution /  
	 Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload  
	 Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in  
	 their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other  
	 person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  
	 Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful  
	 attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will  
	 need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical  
	 User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to  
	 reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions  
	 (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders  
	 available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or  
	 call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Sagar S. Gudhate  
	 at evoting@nsdl.com
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 
with the depositories for procuring user id and password and 
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in 
this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No.,  
	 Name  of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front  
	 and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR  
	 (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to  
	 info@bodhitreemultimedia.com

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID  
	 (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master  
	 or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested  
	 scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of  
	 Aadhar Card) to info@bodhitreemultimedia.com. If you are an  
	 Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are  
	 requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login  
	 method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual  
	 shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to  
	 evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-voting by  
	 providing above mentioned documents.

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting  
	 facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding  
	 securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account  
	 maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders  
	 are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their  
	 demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the  
	 instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM  
	 through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the  
	 Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from  
	 doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to  
	 attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances  
	 connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be  
	 the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH  
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through  
	 VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by  
	 following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting  
	 system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed  
	 under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested  

	 to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link  
	 for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the  
	 EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who  
	 do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten  
	 the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the  
	 remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last  
	 minute rush. 

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for  
	 better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with  
	 a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or  
	 Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may  
	 experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective  
	 network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN  
	 Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions  
	 may send their questions in advance mentioning their name  
	 demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at  
	 info@bodhitreemultimedia.com at least seven (7) days in advance  
	 before the start of the Annual General meeting. The same will be replied  
	 by the company suitably.

6.	 When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but  
	 he / she does not respond, the next speaker will be invited to speak.  
	 Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device  
	 with a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

7.	 Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during  
	 the meeting may register themselves as a speaker and send request  
	 from their registered e-mail address mentioning their name, demat  
	 account number/folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at  
	 info@bodhitreemultimedia.com at least seven (7) days in advance  
	 before the start of the meeting. Those Members who have registered  
	 themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their  
	 views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right  
	 to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time  
	 for the AGM.

	 For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
	 Mautik Ajit Tolia 
	 Chairman and Managing Director 
	 DIN 06586383 
	 Date: 05.09.2024 
	 Place: Mumbai 
	 Registered Address: - 
	 507, Reliable Business Centre, 
	 Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
	 Maharashtra, India, 400102
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution passed on 05th September 2024 and on the basis of recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and audit Committee, accorded their consent to re-appoint Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia as 
Managing Director of the Company subject to further approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

The details of terms of appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia are given below:

Particulars Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia

Tenure of re- appointment 
Remuneration

3 years w.e.f. 26th August 2025 to 25th August 2028

Salary Inclusive of all allowances 
and incentives

Upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) per annum including perquisites, benefits, incentives and other 
allowances. The Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board (including Committee(s)) 
may by its discretion determine

Perquisites and allowances in 
addition to salary

Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rule wherever applicable and in the absence of any such rule, 
Perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

Retirement Benefits
A. Gratuity payable shall be in accordance with the rules of the Companies Act and Gratuity Rule.
B. Earned leave on full pay and allowances as per the rules of the Company, leave accumulated shall be en-cashable at 
the end of the tenure, if any, will not be included in the computation of the ceiling of perquisites

Other Benefits

A. The Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual expenses like Vehicle, Guest Entertainment, Travelling 
Expenses actually and properly incurred during the course of doing legitimate business of the Company.

B. The appointee shall be eligible for Housing, Education and Medical Loan and Other Loans or facilities as applicable 
in accordance with the rules and policy of the Company and in compliance of the law as applicable for the time being 
in force.

Minimum Remuneration

The aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites as aforesaid, in any financial year, shall not exceed the limit set out 
under Sections 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 
statutory modifications or re- enactments thereof for the time being in force, or otherwise as may be permissible at 
law.

Provided that where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay the above salary and allowances and provide the perquisites and other amenities as aforesaid to the Managing 
Director as and by way of minimum remuneration, subject to the applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Act and the 
approval of the Central Government, if required, or any other approvals as may be required under law.
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I. General information:

(1) Nature of industry Digital Entertainment

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of 
commercial production The Company was incorporated on 04/07/2013  and its operating activities commenced thereafter.

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of 
commencement of activities as per project approved by 
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus

Not Applicable

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars
Amount in lakhs 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2024

PBT 303.38 455.45 454.77

PAT 322.89 325.68 373.16

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any.
(a) Foreign Investment: NIL
(b) Foreign Collaboration: NIL
(c) Investment in Foreign Bonds: NIL

II. Information about the appointee:

(1) Background details

Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia, aged 46 years, He has been associated with the Company since Incorporation. 
He holds a BA in Economics Degree from Mumbai University, MA in Media Communication 
Studies Degree from UK. He has more than 20 years of vast and varied experience in media and 
entertainment sector. He is instrumental in formulating and implementing strategy and plays 
pivotal role in business development, sales, administration and finance functions of our Company.

(2) Past remuneration not exceeding Rs. 60,00,000/‐ per annum

(3) Recognition or awards NA

(4) Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia, aged 46 years, He has been associated with the Company since Incorporation. 
He holds a BA in Economics Degree from Mumbai University, MA in Media Communication 
Studies Degree from UK. He has more than 20 years of vast and varied experience in media and 
entertainment sector. He is instrumental in formulating and implementing strategy and plays 
pivotal role in business development, sales, administration and finance functions of our Company.

(5) Remuneration proposed
Upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) per annum including perquisites, benefits, incentives 
and other allowances. The Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the 
Board (including Committee(s)) may by its discretion determine

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 
industry, size of the company, profile of the position and 
person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would 
be with respect to the country of his origin)

The appointment and remuneration of Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia was duly recommended by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Board of the Company subject to 
approval of the shareholders.

In comparison, the overall remuneration paid to Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia is comparable to the 
remuneration being paid in industry.

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with 
the company, or relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any.

Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia has pecuniary relationship with the Company in terms of the remuneration 
proposed at Item Number 4 of this Notice.

 III. Other information:

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

The Company expects to grow in terms of turnover and profitability. But in future profits may 
become inadequate due to dredging scenario requiring aggressive marketing strategies.

It is therefore, possible that there could be a situation of inadequacy of profit computed in the 
manner prescribed under Section 198 read with 197 of the Act.

However, the same would be within the limits specified in Schedule V, Section II, Part A of the Act.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement.

The Company has taken various initiatives. It is expected that the performance of Company will 
further improve during the next financial year.

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in 
measurable terms.

The Company has taken numerous initiatives to improve its financial position, and will continue 
endeavour although it is difficult to quantify the same in this regard at this juncture. 
The steps taken / to be taken by the Company are expected to improve further the Company’s 
performance and profitability in the future.

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION II, PART II OF SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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Except Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia and his relatives for Item Number 4, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any 
way concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The brief profile of Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia in terms of the Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General Meeting 
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India along with detailed Statement as per the requirement of the provisions of Section II of Part II of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 have been annexed to this Notice as “Annexure A”.

However, in the event of inadequacy of profits, during the tenure of Mr. Mautik Ajit Tolia, the referred remuneration shall be allowed in compliance of the 
provisions of Schedule V and the same shall in no event exceed the limits approved by way of resolution proposed hereunder.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item Number 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

ITEM NO. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution passed on 05th September, 2024 and on the basis of recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and audit Committee, accorded their consent to re-appoint Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani as Whole-time director of the Company subject to further 
approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

The details of terms of appointment and remuneration payable to Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani are given below:

Particulars Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani

Tenure of re- appointment 
Remuneration

3 years w.e.f. 26th August 2025 to 25th August 2028

Salary Inclusive of all allowances 
and incentives

Upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) per annum including perquisites, benefits, incentives and other 
allowances. The Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board (including Committee(s)) 
may by its discretion determine

Perquisites and allowances in 
addition to salary

Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rule wherever applicable and in the absence of any such rule, 
Perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

Retirement Benefits
A. Gratuity payable shall be in accordance with the rules of the Companies Act and Gratuity Rule.
B. Earned leave on full pay and allowances as per the rules of the Company, leave accumulated shall be en-cashable at 
the end of the tenure, if any, will not be included in the computation of the ceiling of perquisites

Other Benefits

A. The Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual expenses like Vehicle, Guest Entertainment, Travelling 
Expenses actually and properly incurred during the course of doing legitimate business of the Company.
B. The appointee shall be eligible for Housing, Education and Medical Loan and Other Loans or facilities as applicable 
in accordance with the rules and policy of the Company and in compliance of the law as applicable for the time being 
in force.

Minimum Remuneration

The aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites as aforesaid, in any financial year, shall not exceed the limit set 
out under Sections 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
any statutory modifications or re- enactments thereof for the time being in force, or otherwise as may be permissible 
at law.
Provided that where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall 
pay the above salary and allowances and provide the perquisites and other amenities as aforesaid to the Whole-time 
director as and by way of minimum remuneration, subject to the applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Act and 
the approval of the Central Government, if required, or any other approvals as may be required under law.
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION II, PART II OF SCHEDULE V OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

I. General information:

(1) Nature of industry Digital Entertainment

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of 
commercial production

The Company was incorporated on 04/07/2013 and its operating activities commenced thereafter.

(3) In case of new companies, expected date 
of commencement of activities as per project 
approved by financial institutions appearing in the 
prospectus

Not Applicable

(4) Financial performance based on given 
indicators
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars
Amount in lakhs

31st March 2022 31st March 2023 31st March 2024

PBT 303.38 455.45 454.77

PAT 322.89 325.68 373.16

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any.
(a) Foreign Investment: NIL
(b) Foreign Collaboration: NIL
(c) Investment in Foreign Bonds: NIL

II. Information about the appointee:

(1) Background details

Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani, aged 49 years, is the Whole-Time Director and Promoter of our Company. 
He has been associated with the Company since Incorporation. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Bachelor 
of Engineering (Electronics) from University of Mumbai. He has rich experience of 20 years in the media 
and Entertainment field.

(2) Past remuneration not exceeding Rs. 60,00,000/‐ per annum

(3) Recognition or awards NA

(4) Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani, aged 49 years, is the Whole-Time Director and Promoter of our Company. 
He has been associated with the Company since Incorporation. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Bachelor 
of Engineering (Electronics) from University of Mumbai. He has rich experience of 20 years in the media 
and Entertainment field.

(5) Remuneration proposed
Upto Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) per annum including perquisites, benefits, incentives 
and other allowances. The Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board 
(including Committee(s)) may by its discretion determine

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect 
to industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the 
relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin)

The appointment and remuneration of Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani was duly recommended by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Board of the Company subject to 
approval of the shareholders.

In comparison, the overall remuneration paid to Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani is comparable to the 
remuneration being paid in industry.

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with 
the company, or relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any.

Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani has pecuniary relationship with the Company in terms of the remuneration 
proposed at Item Number 5 of this Notice.

 III. Other information:

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

The Company expects to grow in terms of turnover and profitability. But in future profits may become 
inadequate due to dredging scenario requiring aggressive marketing strategies.

It is therefore, possible that there could be a situation of inadequacy of profit computed in the manner 
prescribed under Section 198 read with 197 of the Act.

However, the same would be within the limits specified in Schedule V, Section II, Part A of the Act.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement.

The Company has taken various initiatives. It is expected that the performance of Company will further 
improve during the next financial year.

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in 
measurable terms.

The Company has taken numerous initiatives to improve its financial position, and will continue 
endeavour although it is difficult to quantify the same in this regard at this juncture. 

The steps taken / to be taken by the Company are expected to improve further the Company’s 
performance and profitability in the future.
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Except Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani and his relatives for Item Number 5, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in 
any way concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The brief profile of Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani in terms of the Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General 
Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India along with detailed Statement as per the requirement of the provisions of Section II of Part 
II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 have been annexed to this Notice as “Annexure A”.

However, in the event of inadequacy of profits, during the tenure of Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani, the referred remuneration shall be allowed in compliance of the 
provisions of Schedule V and the same shall in no event exceed the limits approved by way of resolution proposed hereunder.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item Number 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

ANNEXURE A

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/ Re-appointment as required under 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard – 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

Name Mautik Ajit Tolia Sukesh Devdas Motwani

DIN 06586383 06586400

Designation Managing Director Whole-time director

Nationality Indian Indian

Age 46 years 49 years

Qualification
BA in Economics Degree from Mumbai University, MA in Media 
Communication Studies Degree from UK.

Bachelor’s Degree in Bachelor of Engineering (Electronics)

Experience/ Expertise in 
specific General Functional 
area

He has been associated with the Company since Incorporation. 
He holds a BA in Economics Degree from Mumbai University, 
MA in Media Communication Studies Degree from UK. He has 
more than 20 years of vast and varied experience in media 
and entertainment sector. He is instrumental in formulating 
and implementing strategy and plays pivotal role in business 
development, sales, administration and finance functions of 
our Company.

He has been associated with the Company since 
Incorporation. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Bachelor 
of Engineering (Electronics) from University of Mumbai. 
He has rich experience of 20 years in the media and 
Entertainment field.

Terms and conditions of 
appointment / re-appointment

As mentioned in the resolution As mentioned in the resolution

Details of Remuneration 
Sought to be paid

As mentioned in the resolution As mentioned in the resolution

Last Remuneration Drawn 33,00,000 34,50,000

Date of First Appointment on 
the Board

04/07/2013 04/07/2013

Shareholding in the Company 44,00,975 10,000

Other Directorship 5 0

Chairman/ Member of the 
Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the other Company

Nil Nil
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ITEM NO. 6

The provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth 
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), effective April 1, 2022, mandates prior approval of the 
shareholders by means of Shareholders Resolution for all material related party transactions and subsequent material 
modifications, even if, such transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the concerned company and at an arm’s 
length basis.

A	 Transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or  
	 taken together with previous transactions during the financial year, exceeds the limts as mentioned below

	 (i)	 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or material, directly or through appointment of agent, amounting  
		  to ten percent or more of the turnover of the company;

	 (ii)	 Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of any kind, directly or through appointment of agent,  
		  amounting to ten percent or more of net worth of the company;

	 (iii)	Leasing of property any kind amounting to ten per cent or more of the turnover of the company;

	 (iv	 Availing or rendering of any services, directly or through appointment of agent, amounting to ten percent  
		  or more of the turnover of the company.

Details of the proposed transactions with related parties of the Company are as follows.

Sr. No. Name of Related Party Nature of Related Party Transaction
Estimated transaction 
for FY 2024-2025 
Amount in Crore

1 Phataka Films LLP (JV) Loan/advance/Project Advance 0.01

2 Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd Loan/advance/Project Advance 0.28

2 Vasudhara Media Venture Pvt. Ltd. Loan/advance/Project Advance 8.19

3 Dharmaveer Media City Pvt. Ltd. Loan/advance/Project Advance 0.16

4 Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP Loan/advance/Project Advance 2.99

Moreover, the estimated value of the transaction(s) relating to ongoing sale, purchase or supply of any good(s) or 
material(s), selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of 
any service(s), appointment of agent for sale, purchase or supply of any good(s) or material(s), selling or otherwise 
disposing of, or buying, leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of any service(s), appointment of 
such related party to any office or place of profit in the Company, to give premises on rent, to give donation, to 
give inter corporate Loans (i.e Short term loans/ borrowings) , transfer of resources, services or obligations on such 
term(s) and condition(s) as the Board of Directors may deem fit or appointment of such related party to any office or 
place of profit in the Company for an amount during the financial year 2024-25 as mentioned in the below list are 
likely to exceed the threshold prescribed under Section 188 of The Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made 
there and under Regulation 23 of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 24 and will be considered material and therefore would require the approval 
of shareholders of the Company by an Ordinary Resolution. The resolution seeks the Shareholder’s approval of 
members for material related party transaction(s)/ contract(s)/ arrangement(s), for the financial year 2024-2025 on 
such term(s) and condition(s) as may be decided by the Board and recommended and reviewed by audit committee.
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In view of the above, the Company proposes to obtain prior approval of the shareholders for granting authority to 
the Board of the Company (which shall be deemed to include any Committee(s) constituted/ empowered/ to be 
constituted by the Board from time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this resolution) to carryout/ continue 
with such arrangements and transactions as specified in the resolution or as mentioned above (whether individually 
or taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with related parties, whether by way of renewal(s) or 
extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier arrangements/ transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) 
or otherwise notwithstanding the fact that all such transactions entered into during the financial year 2024-2025, 
whether individually or in aggregate may exceed materiality threshold as stated above.

The Audit Committee in its meeting held on 30th May 2024, as per Regulation 23(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as clarified and/or amended from time to time, has granted its approval for 
the related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company with related parties. during the financial year 
2024- 2025, including as stated in the resolution and explanatory statement. The Audit Committee has further noted that 
the said transactions with related parties are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. 
The management has provided the Audit Committee with a description of the transactions including material terms and 
basis of pricing.

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all entities falling 
under the definition “Related Party” shall abstain from voting in respect of the resolution proposed at item no. 6 of the 
notice, irrespective of whether the entity is a party to the particular transaction or not. Accordingly, the promoters and 
promoter group will not participate in the voting.

Except Promoters along with, Directors and their relatives (to the extent of their shareholding interest in the Company), no 
other Director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing 
of this resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution in item no. 6 of the accompanying notice for approval by the shareholders 
as an Ordinary resolution.

The particulars of the Contract (s) /Arrangement (s) /transaction (s) pursuant to sub-rule (3) of Rule 15 of The Companies 
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read along with recommended by Audit Committee grant the approval 
as per Regulation 23 of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI circular no 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021.

The particulars of transactions to be entered into by the Company with related parties are as under:

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Mautik Ajit Tolia Director

2	 (b) Amount	  3,300,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Remuneration

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 8/26/2020

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details		

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Sukesh Devdas Motwani Director

2	 (b) Amount	  3,450,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Remuneration

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 8/26/2020

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA
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Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details		

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Mautik Ajit Tolia Director

2	 (b) Amount	  4,152,890.00 (Rs. in Thousand)		

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Reimbursement of Exp. / Paid against services

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 26/11/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Mautik Ajit Tolia Director

2	 (b) Amount	  7,00,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Loan / advance Taken

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 11/7/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd Subsidiairies

2	 (b) Amount	  40,966,812.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Loan / advance / Project Advance Given

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 8/11/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

8	 (h) Loan / advance / Project Advance Received Back	  39,794,000.00 

9	 (i) Amount Receivable	  1,172,812.00 

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP Subsidiairies

2	 (b) Amount	  18,955,176.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Loan / advance / Project Advance Given

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 8/11/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

8	 (h) Loan / advance / Project Advance Received Back	  18,955,176.00 

9	 (i) Amount Receivable	  -
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Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited Subsidiairies

2	 (b) Amount	  811,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Loan / advance / Project Advance Given

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 5/17/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

8	 (h) Loan / advance / Project Advance Received Back	  -

9	 (i) Amount Receivable	  811,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Phataka Films LLP Joint venture

2	 (b) Amount	  8,380.00 (Rs. in Thousand)	

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 5/17/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

8	 (h) Loan / advance / Project Advance Received Back	  -

9	 (i) Amount Receivable	  8,380.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

Sr. No. 	 Particulars 	 Details

1	 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship	 Guroudev Bhalla (Partner of Subsidiairies)

2	 (b) Amount	  2,000,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

3	 (c)Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 

4	 (d) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements / transactions	 During the year

5	 (e) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:	 NA

6	 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:	 8/11/2023

7	 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any	 NA

8	 (h) Loan / advance / Project Advance Received Back	  2,000,000.00 (Rs. in Thousand)

9	 (i) Amount Receivable	  - 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Company’s Forty Third Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial 
statements (consolidated and standalone) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

1.	 OPERATING RESULTS

The operating results of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are as follows:

(Rupees In Lakh)

Year ended 31st March, 
2024 (Standalone)

Year ended 31st March, 
2023 (Standalone)

Year ended 31st March, 
2024 (Consolidated)

Year ended 31st March, 
2023 (Consolidated)

Revenue from Operations 3736.62 4282.17 6409.32 4282.17

Profit before tax from 
continuing operations

454.77 455.65 508.72 454.62

Tax Expenses (Including 
Deferred Tax)

(81.62) (129.76) (154.24) (125.76)

Profit after Tax 373.16 325.89 354.40 324.80

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

373.16 325.89 339.21 324.80

2.	 TRANSFER TO RESERVES

	 There are no transfers to any specific reserves during the year.

3.	 THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

	 During the year under review, your company achieved total revenue from operations of 3736.62 Lakh  
	 (previous year 4282.17 Lakh) resulting in decrease of 14.60% over the previous year. The profit after tax  
	 (including other comprehensive income) is at 373.16 Lakh (previous year 325.89 Lakh resulting in increase  
	 of 12.66%.

4.	 SHARE CAPITAL

	 Authorised Share Capital: The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 18,50,00,000 divided in to  
	 18,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each.

	 During the year the following changes have taken place in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company:

•	 In the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2023 the Authorised Share Capital was increased  
	 from existing Rs, 12,50,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 1,25,00,000  
	 (Rupees One Crore Twenty-Five Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to Rs. 14,50,00,000/-  
	 (Rupees Fourteen Crores Fifty Lakh only) divided into 1,45,00,000 (One Crore Forty-Five Lakhs) Equity  
	 Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only);

•	 In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 21st November 2023 the Authorised Share Capital was  
	 increased from existing Rs. 14,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fourteen Crores Fifty Lakh only) divided into 1,45,00,000  
	 (One Crore Forty-Five Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 18,50,00,000/-  
	 (Rupees Eighteen Crores Fifty Lakh only) divided into 1,85,00,000 (One Crore Eighty-Five Lakhs) Equity  
	 Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only);

•	 In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 13th March 2023 1 (One) Equity Share of the Company  
	 having a face value of Rs. 10/-(Rupees Ten only) each was sub-divided into 10 (Ten) Equity shares of  
	 Face Value of Rs. 1/- (Rupee One only) each fully paid up.
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	 Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital: The Issued  
	 Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company is  
	 Rs. 12,49,60,000 divided in to 12,49,60,000 Equity Shares of  
	 Re. 1/- each.

	 During the year the following changes have taken place in the  
	 Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company:

•	 In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 13th March 2023 1 (One)  
	 Equity Share of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10/-(Rupees  
	 Ten only) each was sub-divided into 10 (Ten) Equity shares of Face  
	 Value of Rs. 1/- (Rupee One only) each fully paid up.

	 The equity shares of the Company were admitted to Direct Listing  
	 from Emerge Platform of NSE to BSE Mainboard Platform effective  
	 from Wednesday, February 15, 2023.

5.	 DIVIDEND
	 Our consistent performance and long-term value creation have been  
	 reflected in the quantum of Profits/Reserves distributed to  
	 Shareholders by the Company. The interim dividend of Rs. 0.50 per  
	 equity share have been paid to the shareholders for FY 2023-2024  
	 amounting to Rs. 10,290.52/- Thousands.

6.	 CASH FLOW AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 As required under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a Cash  
	 Flow Statement and consolidated Financial Statement is part  
	 of the Annual Report.

7.	 THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY;

	 There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

8.	 TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION  
	 AND PROTECTION FUND.

	 There was no transfer during the year to the Investor Education and  
	 Protection Fund in terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

9.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION &  
	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE ETC.

	 The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology  
	 absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under  
	 Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3)  
	 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished as Annexure A to  
	 Directors’ Report.

10.	 STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION  
	 OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

	 The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor  
	 and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks  
	 identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed  
	 also discussed at the meetings of the Risk Management Committee  
	 and the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has  
	 constituted Risk Management Committee and its risk management  
	 policy is available on the website of the Company  
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

11.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

	 The Company’s internal controls system has been established on  
	 values of integrity and operational excellence and it supports the  
	 vision of the Company “To be the most sustainable and competitive  
	 Company in our industry”. The Company’s internal control systems  
	 are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and  
	 complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and certified  
	 by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors and their significant audit  
	 observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the  
	 Audit Committee.

12.	 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE  
	 COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

	 The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act relating to  
	 Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable as the Company is  
	 having Net worth less than rupees Five Hundred Crore, Turnover less  
	 than rupees One Thousand Crore and Net Profit less than rupees  
	 Five Crore.

13.	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE  
	 UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 The particulars of investments made and loans given to subsidiaries  
	 has been disclosed in the financial statements in notes 5 and 6 of the  
	 standalone financial statements. Also, Company has not given any  
	 guarantee during the year under review.

14.	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH  
	 RELATED PARTIES

	 All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, in  
	 the ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the  
	 applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing  
	 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There are  
	 no materially significant related party transactions made by the  
	 Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc.  
	 which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company  
	 at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. The  
	 transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2 i.e. Annexure B in  
	 terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies  
	 (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the details of the transactions with  
	 Related Party are provided in the Company’s financial statements  
	 (note …..) in accordance with the Accounting Standards.

	 All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee  
	 and the Board. Omnibus approval is obtained for the transactions  
	 which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of all related  
	 party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on a  
	 quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of  
	 the transactions.

	 The Related Party Transactions Policy as approved by the Board is  
	 uploaded on the Company’s website at  
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html
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15.	 POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

	 The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the  
	 workplace and towards this end, has adopted a policy in line with  
	 the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,  
	 Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. All  
	 employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered  
	 under the said policy. The Company has complied with provisions  
	 relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under  
	 the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition  
	 and Redressal) Act, 2013 which redresses complaints received on sexual  
	 harassment. During the financial year under review, the Company  
	 has not received any complaints of sexual harassment from any of the  
	 women employees of the Company.

16.	 ANNUAL RETURN

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of Companies Act,  
	 2013 following is the link for Annual Return 2023-2024.  
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

17.	 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR  
	 UNDER REVIEW

	 During the financial year, the Board met nine times on 20th April, 2023,  
	 17th May, 2023, 21st July 2023, 11th August 2023, 07th September 2023,  
	 26th October 2023, 07th November 2023, 08th February 2024, and  
	 16th February 2024.	

18.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 The Board  
	 of Directors of the Company hereby confirm:

	 •	 That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable  
		  accounting standards have been followed and there has been no  
		  material departure.

	 •	 That the selected accounting policies were applied consistently  
		  and the directors made judgments and estimates that are  
		  reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the  
		  state of affairs of the Company as on 31st March, 2024, and that of  
		  the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.

	 •	 That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance  
		  of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions  
		  of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the  
		  Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other  
		  irregularities.

	 •	 That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern  
		  basis.

	 •	 The Board has laid down internal financial controls to be  
		  followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls  
		  are adequate and were operating effectively.

	 •	 The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance  
		  with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems  
		  were adequate and operating effectively.

19.	 DEPOSITS

	 The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the  
	 year under review.

20.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

	 The information required under section 197 of the Act read with  
	 rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  
	 Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given as Annexure C to this  
	 report. In terms of provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment  
	 and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement  
	 showing the names and other particulars of employees drawing  
	 remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules, if any,  
	 forms part of the Report. The Nomination and Remuneration  
	 Committee of the Company has affirmed at its meeting held on  
	 16th February, 2024 that the remuneration is as per the remuneration  
	 policy of the Company.

	 The policy is available on the Company’s website 
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

21.	 CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

	 During the year the following changes have taken place in the Board  
	 of Directors of the Company:

	 •	 Mr. Niranjan Vidyasagar (DIN: 07477228) was appointed  
		  as Additional Director Designated as Independent Director by the  
		  Board on 21/07/2023;

	 •	 Ms. Saloni Sunil Kapadia (DIN: 08836105) resigned as  
		  Non-Executive, Independent Director with effect from 21/07/2023;

	 •	 Mr. Niranjan Vidyasagar (DIN: 07477228) and Mr. Suyog Sanjay  
		  Jadhav (DIN 07604183) resigned with effect from 05th October 2023  
		  due non regularization by the members in the Annual General  
		  Meeting held on 30th September 2023;

	 •	 Mr. Rahul Kanodia (DIN: 02320727) was appointed as Additional -  
		  Non-Executive Non-Independent Director by the Board on  
		  26/10/2023;

	 •	 Mr. Suneel Kumar Jain (DIN:10371576) was appointed as  
		  Additional - Non-Executive Independent Director by the Board on  
		  26/10/2023;

	 •	 Mr Rahul Kanodia (DIN 02320727) was regularised as  
		  Non-Executive Non Independent Director of the Company to hold  
		  office for a term of 5 years from 26/10/2023 by the members  
		  in the Extra Ordinary Meeting held on 21st November 2023;
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	 •	 Mr. Suneel Kumar Jain (DIN:10371576) was regularised as  
		  Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office  
		  for a term of 5 years from 26/10/2023 by the members in the Extra  
		  Ordinary Meeting held on 21st November 2023

22.	 ATTRIBUTES, QUALIFICATIONS & INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS,  
	 THEIR APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

	 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors have approved  
	 a Policy https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html for  
	 Selection, Appointment and Remuneration of Directors which inter- 
	 alia requires that composition and remuneration is reasonable  
	 and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, KMP and senior  
	 management employees and the Directors appointed shall be of  
	 high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have  
	 diverse Board and the Policy also lays down the positive attributes/  
	 criteria while recommending the candidature for the appointment  
	 as Director

23.	 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the  
	 Board that they fulfil all the requirements as stipulated in Section  
	 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI  
	 (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 so  
	 as to qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under  
	 the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant SEBI Listing  
	 Regulations.

24.	 FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 The familiarisation program aims to provide Independent Directors  
	 with the pharmaceutical industry scenario, the socio-economic  
	 environment in which the Company operates, the business model,  
	 the operational and financial performance of the Company, significant  
	 developments so as to enable them to take well informed decisions  
	 in a timely manner. The familiarisation program also seeks to update  
	 the Directors on the roles, responsibilities, rights and duties under the  
	 Act and other statutes. The policy on Company’s familiarisation  
	 program for Independent Directors is posted on Company’s website at  
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

25.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS

	 M/s SARA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration  
	 No. 120927W), Mumbai, was appointed as Statutory Auditor of the  
	 Company at the 7th Annual General Meeting held on 15th September  
	 2020, for a term of five years till the conclusion of the 12thAGM to be held  
	 in the year 2025.

	 The Company has not proposed an Ordinary Resolution for ratification  
	 of appointment of Statutory Auditor for the Financial Year 2024-2025  
	 because pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the same is  
	 omitted with effect from 7th May, 2018.

26.	 INTERNAL AUDITORS

	 On recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of  
	 the Company at its meeting held on 20th April 2024 has appointed  
	 M/s S Khasgiwala & Co Chartered Accountants, as internal auditors  
	 for financial year 2024-25.

27.	 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

	 On recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors  
	 of the Company at its meeting held on 20th August 2024 have  
	 appointed M/s. Jaymin Modi & Co., Company Secretaries, as  
	 Secretarial Auditors of the Company to carry out the Secretarial Audit  
	 for the Financial Year 2024-25 and to issue Secretarial Audit Report as  
	 per the prescribed format under rules in terms of Section 204(1) of  
	 the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and  
	 Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further, the  
	 Secretarial Audit issued by M/s. Jaymin Modi & Co.., Company Secretaries  
	 for the financial year 2023-2024 is annexed herewith and forms part of  
	 this report as Annexure D. Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable  
	 to the Subsidiary, not being a material subsidiary.

28.	 COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

	 The provision of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014  
	 is not applicable to the Company. Maintenance of cost records as  
	 prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013 was not applicable for the business activities carried out by  
	 the Company for the FY 2023-2024. Accordingly, such accounts and  
	 records are not made and maintained by the Company for the said period.

29.	 EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS  
	 OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS  
	 AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

	 The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations  
	 or adverse remarks. Report of the secretarial auditor is given as an  
	 Annexure D which forms part of this report.

30.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 The Company is committed towards maintaining the highest  
	 standards of Corporate Governance and adhering to the Corporate  
	 Governance requirements as set out by Securities and Exchange Board  
	 of India. The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under  
	 regulation 34 (3) and Part C of schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations  
	 and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of the  
	 Annual Report. The Certificate from the practicing Company Secretary  
	 confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as  
	 stipulated under regulation 34 (3) and Part E of schedule V of the SEBI  
	 (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is  
	 also published in this Annual Report as Annexure E.

31.	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

	 The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year  
	 under review, as stipulated under regulation 34 (3) and Part B of  
	 schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  
	 Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed to this Annual  
	 Report as Annexure F.



67

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

32.	 SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

	 Vasudhara Media Ventures Private Limited is a wholly owned  
	 subsidiary of the Company and Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited  
	 and MJ Creative studio Private Limited is the subsidiary of the Company. 
	 Phataka Films LLP is the joint venture of the Company. The  
	 Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company form part of this  
	 Annual Report. Annual Report of your Company does not contain the  
	 Financial Statements of its Subsidiary.

	 The Audited Annual Accounts and related information of the  
	 Company’s Subsidiary will be made available upon request. These  
	 documents will be available for inspection during all days expect  
	 Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays from 10.00 a.m. to 4 p.m.  
	 at the Company’s Registered Office. The Subsidiary  
	 Companies Audited Accounts are available on the Company’s Website  
	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html.

33.	 VIGIL MECHANISM

	 The Company has established a vigil mechanism policy to oversee  
	 the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other  
	 Directors. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards  
	 against victimisation of employees and Directors who express their  
	 concerns. The Vigil Mechanism Policy is available at the website of  
	 the Company.

34.	 REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS

	 During the year under review, the Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors  
	 and Secretarial Auditor have not reported any instances of frauds  
	 committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit  
	 Committee under section 143(12) of the Act, details of which needs  
	 to be mentioned in this Report.

35.	 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI  
	 Listing Regulations, your Company has devised a policy containing  
	 criteria for evaluating the performance of the Executive, Non-Executive  
	 and Independent Non-Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,  
	 Board and its Committees based on the recommendation of the  
	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Feedback was sought by  
	 way of a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the  
	 Board’s functioning, such as adequacy of the composition of the Board  
	 and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of  
	 specific duties, obligations, and governance. The manner in which the  
	 evaluation has been carried out is explained in the Corporate Governance  
	 Report, forming part of this Annual Report.

	 The Board of Directors of your Company expressed satisfaction about  
	 the transparency in terms of disclosures, maintaining higher  
	 governance standards and updating the Independent Directors on key  
	 topics impacting the Company.

36	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING  
	 THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE  
	 OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE  
	 COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE  

	 DATE OF THE REPORT

	 There are no material changes and commitments affecting the  
	 financial position of the Company occurred during the financial year.

37.	 THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED  
	 BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE  
	 GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

	 During the year there has been no significant material orders passed  
	 by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern  
	 status and company’s operations in future.

38.	 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

	 In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has formed  
	 a Risk Management Committee. There are currently seven Committees of  
	 the Board, as follows:

	 • Audit Committee: • Nomination and Remuneration Committee:  
	 • Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. Details of all the Committees  
	 along with their charters, composition and meetings held during the  
	 year, are provided in the “Report on Corporate Governance”, a part of  
	 this Annual Report.

39.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES

	 The Company does not have any Employees Stock Option Scheme in  
	 force and hence particulars are not furnished, as the same are not  
	 applicable. No proceedings against the Company is initiated or pending  
	 under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The details of  
	 difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of  
	 onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from  
	 the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof –  
	 Not Applicable.

40.	 POLICIES
	 The Company seeks to promote highest levels of ethical standards in  
	 the normal business transactions guided by the value system. The  
	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
	 2015 mandates formulation of certain policies for listed companies.  
	 The Policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and are updated  
	 based on the need and compliance as per the applicable laws and rules  
	 and as amended from time to time. The policies are available on  
	 the website of the Company at 

	 https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html.

41.	 COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
	 Your Directors hereby confirm that the Company has complied  
	 with the necessary provisions of the revised Secretarial Standard 1 and  
	 Secretarial Standard 2 to the extent applicable to the Company.

42.	 ENHANCING SHAREHOLDER VALUE
	 Your company firmly believes that its success, the marketplace and  
	 a good reputation are among the primary determinants of value to the  
	 shareholder. The organisational vision is founded on the principles  
	 of good governance and delivering leading-edge products backed  
	 with dependable after sales services. Following the vision your Company  
	 is committed to creating and maximising long-term value for  
	 shareholders.
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43.	 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
	 Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s  
	 objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities  
	 laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important  
	 factors that could influence the Company’s operation include global and domestic demand and supply  
	 conditions affecting selling prices of raw materials, finished goods, input availability and prices, changes  
	 in government regulations, tax laws, economic developments within and outside the country and various  
	 other factors.

44.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
	 Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation and gratitude for the continued  
	 co-operation extended by shareholders, employees, customers, banks, suppliers and other business associates.

	 For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
	 Mautik Ajit Tolia 
	 Chairman and Managing Director 
	 DIN 06586383 
	 Date: 05.09.2024 
	 Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Information pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(A)	 Conservation of Energy

	 i)	 The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL

	 ii)	 The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL

	 iii)	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: NIL

(B) 	 Technology Absorption

	 i)	 The efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL

	 ii)	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 

		  -	 Better economy, reduction in emission & clean operation; 

		  -	 Optimum efficiency

	 iii)	 In case of imported technology (imported during the last year reckoned from the beginning of the financial year): NIL 

		  -	 The details of technology imported: NIL

		  -	 The year of import: NIL

		  -	 Whether the technology fully absorbed: NIL

		  -	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; NIL and

	 iv)	 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

(C)	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

	 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the  
	 year in terms of actual outflows are as under:

	 Total Foreign Exchange Earned: NIL

	 Total Foreign Exchange Used: NIL

For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
Mautik Ajit Tolia 
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN 06586383 
Date: 05.09.2024 
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
FORM NO. AOC – 2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited with the 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length 
transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nil

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any

For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
Mautik Ajit Tolia 
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN 06586383 
Date: 05.09.2024 
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE C TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
MEDIAN REMUNERATION

The information required under section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a.	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for  
	 the financial year:

Name of the directors Ratio to median remuneration

Executive directors

Mautik Ajit Tolia 10%

Sukesh Devdas Motwani 5%

Non-Executive directors

The company has not paid any remuneration (except sitting fee) to the Non-Executive Directors of the company during the financial year under 
review (i.e. FY 2023-24)

b.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, company secretary  
	 in the financial year:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary

% increase in remuneration in the financial year

Mautik Ajit Tolia 10%

Sukesh Devdas Motwani 5%

Ravi Bhavanishankar Bhatt -

Nirali Shah -

c.	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

d.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 

e.	 Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the  
	 last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and  
	 justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the  
	 managerial remuneration:

	 The annual increase was around 7%

	 Increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 10%

	 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The Nomination and  
	 Remuneration Committee of the Company has affirmed at its meeting held on 16th February, 2024 that the  
	 remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. The Policy is available on the Company’s  
	 Website: www.bodhitreemultimedia.com

f.	 There are employees drawing salary in excess of 120 Lakhs as stipulated under section 197(12) of the Act read  
	 with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
Mautik Ajit Tolia 
Chairman and Managing Director 
DIN 06586383 
Date: 05.09.2024 
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE D TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) 2015 and section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
Registered Address
507, Reliable Business Centre
Jogeshwari (West) Mumbai 400102.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bodhi 
Tree Multimedia Limited (hereinafter called “The Company “). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company , its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31st 
March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, Forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by The Company for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2024 to the extent applicable to the provisions of:

I. 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under  
	 to the extent applicable;

II.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules  
	 made thereunder;

III.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws  
	 framed thereunder;

IV.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations  
	 made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas  
	 Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

V.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the  
	 Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) to the  
	 extent applicable to the Company: -

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial  
		  Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of  
		  Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital  
		  and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based  
		  Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and  
		  Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and  
		  Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable to the Company  
		  during the period under review; 

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing  
		  of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and  
		  Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible  
		  Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable to the  
		  Company during the period under review;

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to and  
		  Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the  
		  Companies Act and dealing with client; Not Applicable to the  
		  Company during the period under review;

	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity  
		  Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange  
		  Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not  
		  Applicable to the Company during the period under review;

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of  
		  Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable to the Company  
		  during the Audit Period; and

	 (i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations  
		  and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

		  I have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses  
		  of the following:

		  a)	 Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute  
			   of Company Secretaries of India; and

		  b)	 Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE  
			   Limited and BSE Limited.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards as mentioned above, 
except:
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• 	 Some of the Intimations under the provisions of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013 have been filed after the lapse of statutory time period.  
	 However, necessary additional fees have been remitted for such delay.

•	 There was no non-compliance but due to non-regularization of  
	 2 Independent Director (Negative-Voting) both the director had to  
	 vacate the office resulting a member short in Board as well as in  
	 committees, Due to which fine had been levied. However, necessary  
	 fines have been remitted and the vacancies were filled immediately. 

	 I further report that:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper  
	 balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and  
	 Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of Board of  
	 Directors that took place during the year under review were carried  
	 out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

	 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board  
	 Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least  
	 seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining  
	 further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the  
	 meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

	 I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the  
	 Company commensurate with the size and operations of the  
	 Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,  
	 rules, regulations and guidelines.

	 I further report that during the audit period:

	 •	 Company at its Board Meeting held on 17th May, 2023  
		  approved incorporation of Vasudhara Media Ventures Private  
		  Limited as a wholly owned subsidiary of the company. 

	 •	 Company at its Board Meeting held on 17th May, 2023 approved  
		  incorporation of Bodhi Mantra Media LLP.

	 •	 Company declared Interim Dividend at the rate of 5% percent  
		  (Viz. Re.0.50/- per share having face value of Rs.10/-each) fully paid  
		  up of company.

	 •	 The Company approved the Sub-division/split of equity shares of  
		  the Company from 1 (One) equity share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten  
		  only) each to 10 (Ten) equity shares of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each.

For, JAYMIN MODI & CO. 
Company Secretaries

CS Jaymin Modi 
Company Secretary 
ACS: 44248 
COP: 16948 
PRC: 2146/2022 
UDIN: A044248F001009696 

Date: 21.08.2024 
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE – A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To,
The Members,
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
Registered Address
507, Reliable Business Centre
Jogeshwari (West) Mumbai 400102.

Our Secretarial Audit Report dated 21st August, 2024 is to be read with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to  
	 make an audit report based on the secretarial records produced for our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about  
	 the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that  
	 correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide  
	 a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4.	 We have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations  
	 and happening of events, wherever required.

5.	 Compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the  
	 responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy  
	 or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, JAYMIN MODI & CO.
Company Secretaries

CS Jaymin Modi
Company Secretary
ACS: 44248
COP: 16948
PRC: 2146/2022
UDIN: A044248F001009696 

Date: 21.08.2024
Place: Mumbai
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS
In accordance with Regulation 17(5)(a) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have confirmed 
compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

For Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
Sd/-
Mautik Ajit Tolia
Managing Director
DIN 06586383

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
To,
The Board of Directors,
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
507, Reliable Business Centre
Jogeshwari (West)
Mumbai 400102

We, Mautik Ajit Tolia, Managing Director, Sukesh Devdas Motwani, Whole Time Director & Ravi Bhavanishankar  
Bhatt CFO of the Company, hereby certify that for the financial year, ending 31st March, 2024;

(a)	 (i)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain  
		  statements that may be misleading;

	 (ii)	 These statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with current  
		  accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b)	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the  
	 year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have  
	 evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting  
	 and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such  
	 internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying  
	 these deficiencies.

(d)	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i)	 Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year. (ii) Significant  
	 changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes  
	 to the financial statements; and

(iii)	 Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the  
	 management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over  
	 financial reporting.

For Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited

Sd/-	 Sd-	 Sd/-
MAUTIK Ajit Tolia	 Sukesh Devdas Motwani	 Ravi Bhavanishankar Bhatt
Managing Director	 Wholetime Director	 CFO
DIN 06586383	 DIN 06586400
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)  
Regulations, 2015 read with regulation 34(3) of the said Listing Regulations).

To
The Members,
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
507, Reliable Business Centre,
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai 400102.

I have examined the relevant registers records forms returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited having CIN 
L22211MH2013PLC245208 and having registered office at 507, Reliable Business Centre, Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai 400102., Maharashtra, India. 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate in accordance with Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  
Regulations 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.
mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company 

1 Mautik Ajit Tolia	 06586383 04/07/2013	

2 Sukesh Devdas Motwani 06586400 04/07/2013	

3 Uma Chidambaram Krishnan 08824361 25/08/2020	

4 Nutan Jha 08848553 25/08/2020	

5 Suneel Kumar Jain 10371576 26/10/2023

6 Rahul Kanodia 02320727 26/10/2023

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

Disclaimer: We have not been made available with details or clarification or Non-Applicability certificate, with respect to debarment or disqualification pursuant to 
any order from civil or criminal court and thus we are unable to conclude any opinion on attraction of disqualification by any such order which have not been presented 
before us for reporting.

For, JAYMIN MODI & CO.
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
CS Jaymin Modi
Company Secretary
ACS: 44248
COP: 16948
PRC: 2146/2022
UDIN: A044248F001009795

Date: 21.08.2024
Place: Mumbai
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES  
REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

To,
The Members,
BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED
507, RELIABLE BUSINESS CENTRE JOGESHWARI (WEST) 
MUMBAI 400102.

1.	 The Corporate Governance Report prepared by BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED (“the Company”), contains details as stipulated in Regulations  
	 17 to 27 and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
	 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) (‘applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2024.  
	 This certificate is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

Management Responsibility

2.	 The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and  
	 maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance  
	 of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 

3.	 The Management along with the Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of  
	 Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Our Responsibility

4.	 Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the condition of  
	 Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the Listing Regulation.

5.	 Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation there of, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the  
	 conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

6.	 The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance  
	 Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures include but not limited to verification of secretarial records of the Company. The procedures  
	 also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis.

Opinion

7.	 Based on the procedures performed by us as referred above and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the  
	 opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable  
	 for the year ended March 31, 2024.
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Other Matters and restriction on use

8.	 This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management  
	 has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

9.	 This Certificate is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its  
	 obligations under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept  
	 or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may  
	 come without our prior consent in writing. 

10.	 We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this Certificate.

For, JAYMIN MODI & CO.
Company Secretaries

CS Jaymin Modi
Company Secretary
ACS: 44248
COP: 16948
PRC: 2146/2022
UDIN: A044248F001009751

Date: 21.08.2024
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE E TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1.	 Company’s philosophy

	 The Company firmly believes in and has consistently practiced good corporate governance. The Company’s essential character is 
shaped by the values of transparency, professionalism and accountability. The Company will endeavour to improve on these aspects 
on an ongoing basis.

2. 	 Board of Directors

	 The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and long-term 
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to 
maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. The Directors of the Company are persons of integrity and bring to the 
Board a wide range of knowledge, experience, diversity of thought and skills.

	 The Board effectively carries out its responsibilities like providing strategic guidance to the Company, code of conduct for the 
executives, disclosure of information about their concerns and interests, adherence to the Code of Conduct etc. and the Board applies 
high ethical standards and acts with due diligence, care and in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

	 The Board of Directors are entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and 
performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and duties.

	 a.	 Composition of the Board of Directors and Category of Directors:

		  As on the date of the report, the Board of the Company comprises of Six Directors out of which one is the  
		  Promoter Managing Director, one is a Promoter Whole-Time Director. Out of the remaining Four Directors, two  
		  is Woman Independent Non-Executive Director and one Directors is Independent Non- Executive Directors and  
		  the other remaining Director is Non- Independent Non- Executive. None of the Directors have any pecuniary or  
		  business relationship with the Company except to the extent as disclosed elsewhere in the Annual Report.  
		  No Director of the Company is either member in more than ten committees and/or Chairman of more than five  
		  committees across all Companies in which he/she is Director.

Name of Director Category of Director-ship

Mautik Ajit Tolia Managing Director Chairperson

Sukesh Devdas Motwani Whole-time director

Uma Krishnan Non-Executive - Independent Director

Nutanjha Non-Executive - Independent Director

Rahul Kanodia (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)	 Non-Executive - Non-Independent Director

Suneel Kumar Jain (w.e.f. 26/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director

Niranjan Vidyasagar (up to 06/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director

Saloni Sunil Kapadia (up to 21/07/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director

Suyog Sanjay Jadhav (up to 06/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director

		  The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge, strategy and  
		  experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.

		  None of the Directors on the Board hold Directorships in more than 7 (Seven) listed companies. Further,  
		  none of them is a member of more than 10 (Ten) committees (committees being Audit Committee and  
		  Stakeholders Relationship Committee) or chairman of more than 5 (Five) committees across all the Indian  
		  public companies in which he/she is a Director.

		  The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the  
		  Company, Promoters or Management, which may affect their judgement in any manner. The Independent  
		  Directors provide a confirmation to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence as defined under  
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		  the Companies Act, 2013. None of the Independent Directors of the Company serve as an Independent  
		  Director in more than seven listed companies. All Directors are also in compliance with the limit on  
		  Independent Directorships of listed companies as prescribed under Regulation 17A of the SEBI Listing  
		  Regulations. The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the  
		  SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are Independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors  
		  have in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder, confirmed that they have enrolled  
		  themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs  
		  (‘IICA’). No person has been appointed or continues as an alternate director for an Independent Director  
		  of the Company.

		  The Board, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers the  
		  appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

		  Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, states that one-third of the Board members other than  
		  Independent Directors who are subject to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and shall be eligible for  
		  re-appointment, if approved by the shareholders at the Annual General meeting.

		  In view of the above, Mr. Sukesh Devdas Motwani (DIN: 06586400), Whole-Time Director of the Company,  
		  retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and being eligible seeks re- appointment.

	 b.	 Attendance of each director at the meeting of the board of directors and the last annual  
		  general meeting

		  During the year there were in total nine board meetings held on 20th April, 2023, 17th May, 2023, 21st July 2023,  
		  11th August 2023, 07th September 2023, 26th October 2023, 07th November 2023, 08th February 2024, and  
		  16th February 2024. The time gap between the two meetings was not more than 120 days. All the information  
		  required to be furnished to the Board was made available to them along with detailed Agenda notes.

Name of Director Category of Director-ship No of Board  
Meeting Attended

Attendance at AGM

Mautik Ajit Tolia Managing Director Chairperson 9 Present

Sukesh Devdas Motwani Whole-time director 9 Present

Uma Krishnan Non-Executive - Independent Director 6 Present

Nutanjha Non-Executive - Independent Director 6 Present

Rahul Kanodia (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)	 Non-Executive - Non-Independent Director 3 Appointed after AGM

Suneel Kumar Jain (w.e.f. 26/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director 3 Appointed after AGM

Niranjan Vidyasagar (up to 06/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director 2 Present

Saloni Sunil Kapadia (up to 21/07/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director 1 Resigned before AGM

Suyog Sanjay Jadhav (up to 06/10/2023) Non-Executive - Independent Director 5 Present
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	 c.	 Number of other board of directors or committees in which a Directors is a member or chairperson.

Name of Director No. of other Directorship No. of Other Committee 
Membership in other Companies

No. of Other Committee 
chairmanship in other Companies

Mautik Ajit Tolia 5 0 0

Sukesh Devdas Motwani 0 0 0

Uma Krishnan 2 4 1

Nutanjha 0 0 0

Rahul Kanodia (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)	 5 0 0

Suneel Kumar Jain (w.e.f. 26/10/2023) 0 0 0

Niranjan Vidyasagar (up to 06/10/2023) - - -

Saloni Sunil Kapadia (up to 21/07/2023) - - -

Suyog Sanjay Jadhav (up to 06/10/2023) - - -

	 d.	 Number of meetings of the board of directors held and dates on which held

		  During the year under review nine meetings of the Board of Directors were held as under:

		  20th April, 2023, 17th May, 2023, 21st July 2023, 11th August 2023, 07th September 2023, 26th October 2023,  
		  07th November 2023, 08th February 2024, and 16th February 2024.

	 e.	 Disclosure of Relationships between Directors Inter-se

Sr. No. Name of Director & DIN Number Remarks

1 Mautik Ajit Tolia No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

2 Sukesh Devdas Motwani No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

3 Uma Krishnan No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

4 Nutanjha No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

5 Rahul Kanodia (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)	 No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

6 Suneel Kumar Jain (w.e.f. 26/10/2023) No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

7 Niranjan Vidyasagar (up to 06/10/2023) No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

8 Saloni Sunil Kapadia (up to 21/07/2023) No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

9 Suyog Sanjay Jadhav (up to 06/10/2023) No Inter-se Relationship between Directors

	 f.	 Details of number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors:

Sr. No Name of Director Equity Shares held Convertible Instruments

1 Mautik Ajit Tolia 44,00,975 0

2 Sukesh Devdas Motwani 10,000 0

3 Uma Krishnan 0 0

4 Nutanjha 0 0

5 Rahul Kanodia (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)	 0 0

6 Suneel Kumar Jain (w.e.f. 26/10/2023) 0 0

7 Niranjan Vidyasagar (up to 06/10/2023) 0 0

8 Saloni Sunil Kapadia (up to 21/07/2023) 0 0

9 Suyog Sanjay Jadhav (up to 06/10/2023) 0 0
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	 g.	 Induction and Familiarisation Program for Directors:

		  On appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of  
		  appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, duties,  
		  responsibilities and expected time commitments. Each newly  
		  appointed Independent Director is taken through an induction  
		  and familiarisation program including the presentation and  
		  interactive session with the Managing Director & CEO, Executive  
		  Committee Members and other Functional Heads on the Company’s  
		  manufacturing, marketing, finance and other important aspects.  
		  The program also includes visit to the plant to familiarise them  
		  with all facets of pharmaceutical manufacturing.

		  The details of familiarisation program can be accessed from the website:  
		  https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

	 h.	 Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the  
		  independent directors fulfil the conditions specified in these  
		  regulations and are independent of the management

		  Our Independent Directors meet the criteria of Independence as  
		  per Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation  
		  16 of Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors provide an  
		  annual confirmation that they meet the criteria of independence.  
		  The Board confirms that all the Independent Directors fulfil the  
		  conditions as specified under Schedule V of Listing Regulations and  
		  are Independent of the management.

	 i	 Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent  
		  Director 

		  Mr. Niranjan Vidyasagar (DIN: 07477228) and Mr. Suyog Sanjay  
		  Jadhav (DIN 07604183) resigned with effect from 05th October  
		  2023 due non regularization by the members in the Annual  
		  General Meeting held on 30th September 2023;

3.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the  
	 provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with  
	 regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
	 Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee as on the date of the report  
	 comprises of 2 Non-Executive Independent Directors & 1 Executive  
	 Director.

Broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1.	 Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the  
	 disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial  
	 statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2.	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of  
	 appointment of auditors of the listed entity;

3.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services  
	 rendered by the statutory auditors;

4.	 Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements  
	 and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board for  
	 approval, with particular reference to:

	 (a)	 Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility  
		  statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause  
		  (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

	 (b)	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons  
		  for the same;

	 (c)	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise  
		  of judgment by management;

	 (d)	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising  
		  out of audit findings;

	 (e)	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to  
		  financial statements;

	 (f)	 Disclosure of any related party transactions;

	 (g)	 Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

5.	 Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements  
	 before submission to the board for approval;

6	 Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application  
	 of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential  
	 issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than  
	 those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report  
	 submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of  
	 proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate  
	 recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

7.	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance  
	 and effectiveness of audit process;

8.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the  
	 listed entity with related parties;

9.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10.	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it  
	 is necessary;

11.	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management  
	 systems;

12.	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and  
	 Internal Auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

13.	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including  
	 the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority  
	 of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage  
	 and frequency of internal audit;

14.	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and  
	 follow up there on;

15.	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal  
	 auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity  
	 or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and  
	 reporting the matter to the board;
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16.	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as  
	 post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17.	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders  
	 (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18.	 To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

19.	 Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background,  
	 etc. of the candidate;

20.	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

21.	 Reviewing the utilisation of loans and/ or advances from investment by the holding company in the subsidiary  
	 exceeding Rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower [including existing  
	 loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision]

22.	 Reviewing with the Management the following information

	 a.	 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

	 b.	 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee) submitted by management;

	 c.	 Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;

	 d.	 internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

	 e.	 the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief Internal auditor shall be subject to review  
		  by the audit committee and

	 f.	 Statement of deviations:

		  (a)	 Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock  
			   exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

		  (b)	 Annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus 
			   /notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). The Audit Committee is vested with the necessary powers, as defined in  
			   its charter, to achieve its objectives.

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:

The Audit Committee as on the date of the report comprises of 2 Non-Executive Independent Directors & 1 Executive Director and 
following are the members of the committee.

Suneel Kumar Jain	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director-Chairperson

Nutanjha	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director-Member

Mautik Ajit Tolia	 :	 Executive Director-Member
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Meetings and Attendance:

During the year there were in total five Audit committee meetings held on 20 April 2023, 17th May 2023, 11th August, 2023, 07th 
November, 2023 and 08th February, 2024. The attendance of the meetings is given below.

Name of Director Category of Directorship No. of Committee Meetings attended No. of Committee Meetings held

Suneel Kumar Jain
Non-Executive - Independent 
Director-Chairperson

2 2

Saloni Sunil Kapadia 
Up to 21-07-2023

Non-Executive - Independent 
Director-Chairperson

2 2

Nutanjha
Non-Executive - Independent 
Director-Member

5 5

Mautik Ajit Tolia Executive Director-Member 5 5

4.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section  
	 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  
	 Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 The Broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: Role of Nomination and  
	 Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include the following:

	 (1)	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director  
		  and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key  
		  managerial personnel and other employees;

	 (2)	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;  
		  (3) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

	 (4)	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management  
		  in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

	 (5)	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report  
		  of performance evaluation of independent directors.

	 (6)	 To recommend to the Board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:
The Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Directors and following are the members of the committee.

Following are the members of the Committee.

Uma Krishnan	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director-Chairperson

Nutanjha	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director-Member

Suneel Kumar Jain	 :	 Non-Executive - Independent Director-Member
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Meetings and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 times in the financial year 2023-24 on 26/10/2023 and 26/02/2024. The 
necessary quorum was present in the said meetings. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present 
at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30/09/2023. The details of meetings held and attended by the Directors 
are as under:

Name of Director Category of Directorship No. of Committee Meetings attended No. of Committee Meetings held

Uma Krishnan Non-Executive - Independent Director-Chairperson 2 2

Nutanjha Non-Executive - Independent Director-Member 2 2

Suneel Kumar Jain
Non-Executive - Independent Director-Member 
(w.e.f 26.10.2024)

1 1

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:

1)	 Attendance and participations in the meetings.

2)	 Preparing adequately for the board meetings.

3)	 Contribution towards strategy formation and other areas impacting company performance.

4)	 Rendering independent, unbiased opinion and resolution of issues at meetings.

5)	 Safeguard of confidential information.

6)	 Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the Company.

7)	 Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the Board and Committee’s.

8)	 Raising of concerns to the Board.

5.	 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with Regulation 20 of SEBI  
	 (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:

The Committee comprises of 1 Non-Executive Independent Director, 2 Executive Director and following are the members of 
the committee.

Suneel Kumar Jain	 :	 Non-Executive -  
		  Independent Director-Chairperson

Mautik Ajit Tolia	 :	 Executive Director-Member

Sukesh Devdas Motwani	 :	 Executive Director-Member

Compliance Officer Details:
Ms. Nirali Dishant Shah
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No: A45266

Details of Complaints Received During the Year:

Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders – Nil

Number of pending complaints- Nil
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6	 REMUNERATIONS OF DIRECTORS

	 The remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole- Time Director is recommended by the Nomination and  
	 Remuneration Committee and then approved by the Board of Directors and subsequently by the shareholders in  
	 general meeting within the limits prescribed in Companies Act, 2013. The non-executive directors are paid sitting  
	 fees for Board meetings attended by them.

Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors:
(Rs. In Lakh)

Name of Director Mautik Ajit Tolia Sukesh Devdas Motwani

Designation Managing Director Whole-Time Director

Salary 33,00,000 34,50,000

Commission - -

Leave Encashment - -

Provident Fund & Gratuity Fund - -

Bonus - -

Stock Option - -

Pension - -

Service Contracts - -

Notice Period - -

Severance Fees - -

Executive Directors are not provided with any benefits, bonuses, performance linked incentives except commission.

7.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Financial Year Date Time Venue Special Resolution(s)

2021-2022 30/09/2021 11:30 AM
507, Reliable Business Centre 
Jogeshwari (West) Mumbai 
400102

Nil

2022-2023 30/09/2022 11:00 AM
507, Reliable Business Centre 
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400102

Nil

2023-2024 30/09/2023 09:00 AM
507, Reliable Business Centre 
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400102

Regularization of Additional Director Mr. Niranjan Vidyasagar DIN 
07477228 by appointing him as Non-Executive Independent Director.

Regularization of Additional Director Mr Suyog Sanjay Jadhav DIN 
07604183 by appointing him as Non-Executive Independent Director.

2023-2024 21/11/2023 09:30 AM
507, Reliable Business Centre 
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400102

Regularization of Additional Director Mr Suneel Kumar Jain DIN 
10371576 by appointing him as Non-Executive Independent Director.

Regularization of Additional Director Mr Rahul Kanodia DIN 02320727 by 
appointing him as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

2023-2024 13/03/2024 09:00 AM
507, Reliable Business Centre 
Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400102

Sub-division of equity shares from the face value of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 
1/- each per share

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the postal ballot exercise and details of the 
voting pattern:
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The Company has not conducted Postal Ballot during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. Further the Company has 
conducted voting by Posting Ballot for the year ended 31st March, 2022. Apart from this, no voting by postal ballot during 
last 3 years.

8.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	 i)	 The quarterly/yearly results are normally submitted to Stock Exchanges immediately after Board meetings.

	 ii)	 The results are also published in local English and regional language newspapers. The results are also displayed  
		  at the Company’s website at https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html atters of material nature  
		  are communicated to the stock exchanges.

	 iii)	 Website & News Release In compliance with Regulation46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a separate  
		  dedicated section under ‘Investors’ is available on the Company’s website - https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/ 
		  investors.htmlwherein information on various announcements made by the Company, Annual Report, Quarterly  
		  / Half yearly / Nine months and Annual financial results along with the applicable policies of the Company are  
		  displayed shortly after its submission to the Stock Exchange.

9.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a AGM (Date, Time and Venue) :
The 11th annual general meeting (AGM) of the members of bodhi tree multimedia limited will be held on 
Monday 30th September 2024 at 09:00 am through video conferencing or other audio visual means.

b Financial Year : 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024

c Dividend Payment Date : N.A.

d Listing Details : The Equity Share of the Company is listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited i

e Scrip Code : BSE: 543767

f Symbol :
BSE: BTML
NSE: BTML

Month BTML Share price Rs. BSE Sensex NSE Nifty

Apr-23 209.00 61,209.46 18,089.15

May-23 195.90 63,036.12 18,662.45

Jun-23 166.00 64,768.58 19,201.70

Jul-23 141.50 67,619.17 19,991.85

Aug-23 149.90 66,658.12 19,795.60

Sep-23 152.65 67,927.23 20,222.45

Oct-23 159.90 66,592.16 19,849.75

Nov-23 168.00 67,069.89 20,158.70

Dec-23 207.90 72,484.34 21,801.45

Jan-24 221.90 73,427.59 22,124.15

Feb-24 216.70 73,413.93 22,297.50

Mar-24 198.00 74,245.17 22,526.60
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	 Stock market price data for FY 2023-24 (BSE) & (NSE)

	 Share Price Performance in comparison to broad based indices – BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty as on March 31, 2024

	 The securities of the Company are actively traded on BSE Ltd and NSE Ltd and not suspended from trading.

	 Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent
	 Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd, 
	 E/2,Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Saki Naka,
	 Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400072

	 Share Transfer System

	 The shares in de-materialised form are processed and transferred within 15 days from receipt of  
	 de-materialisation requests.

	 De-materialisation of shares:

	 As on 31st March, 2024, 100 % of the Company’s total shares representing 12,49,60,000 shares were held  
	 in de- materialised form.

	 Company has not issued ESOP or any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/Convertible instrument.

	 Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities. –

	 The Company has not entered into any commodity contracts as on 31st March, 2024. Foreign Exchange receivables  
	 and payables are re-stated at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date to reflect mark to market  
	 valuation. Forward contract on foreign exchange are marked to market on the date of the balance sheet and the gain  
	 or loss there in recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

	 Address for correspondence:

	 Registered Address: 507, Reliable Business Centre Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400102.

10.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES

	 A.	 Material related Party Transaction

		  There are materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or the  
		  Management, or their relatives that had potential conflict with the Company’s interest. Suitable disclosure as  
		  required by the Accounting Standard (AS 18) and AOC-2 has been made in the Annual Report. The Related  
		  Party Transactions Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at  
		  https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

	 B.	 Details of Non-Compliance

		  During the Financial Year 2023-24 there was no non-compliance but due to non-regularization of 2  
		  Independent Director (Negative-Voting) both the director had to vacate the office resulting a member short in  
		  Board as well as in committees, Due to which fine had been levied. However, necessary fines have been remitted  
		  and the vacancies were filled immediately.

	 C.	 Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy

		  Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing  
		  Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Whistle-Blower Policy for  
		  establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns regarding unethical  
		  behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics policy. The said  
		  mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who use such mechanism  
		  and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional  
		  cases. We affirm that no employee of the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee. The said  
		  Whistle-Blower Policy has been hosted on the website of the Company at 
		  https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html
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	 D.	 Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed

		  Material Subsidiaries Policy is not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have material subsidiary.

	 E.	 Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

		  There are no material related party transactions during the year that have conflict with the interest of  
		  the Company. Transactions entered into with related parties were duly approved by the Audit Committee.  
		  The Board’s approved policy for related party transactions is uploaded on the website of the Company at  
		  https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

	 F.	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities - Not Applicable

	 G.	 Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issue, Preferential Issue, Bonus Issue etc.

		  During the year, the Company has not raised any money through Public Issue, Rights Issue, Preferential Issue,  
		  Bonus Issue etc. Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions  
		  placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  
		  2015 – Not Applicable.

	 H.	 Certificate from Company Secretary in practice

		  A Certificate from Jaymin Modi & Co, Company Secretary in practice is annexed that none of the Directors on the  
		  board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors  
		  of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authorities.

	 I.	 The board had accepted recommendations of all committees of the board which is mandatorily  
		  required, in the relevant financial year 2023-2024.

	 J.	 Total fees for all services paid by the Listed entity and on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditor

Particulars Standalone Subsidiary Total

Audit Fees paid 6,00,000 - 6,00,000

Other fees paid - - -

	 K.	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition  
		  and Redressal) Act, 2013

		  a.	 Number of complaints filed during the financial year – NIL

		  b.	 Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year – NIL

		  c.	 Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL

	 L.	 Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of Loans and Advances in the nature of loans to  
		  firms/ companies in which directors are interested

		  The Company nor its subsidiary has given loan or advances to the firms and companies in which directors  
		  are interested.

		  M. Details of Material Subsidiaries and date and place of incorporation, and the name and date  
		  of appointment of Statutory Auditors of such subsidiaries

		  Not applicable. The Company does not have any material subsidiary.

IV)	 OTHER INFORMATION

	 The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and  
	 clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 are provided in the Annual Report at various sections of  
	 Annual Report. 
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for members of the Board and Senior Management personnel of the Company. 
The Code lays down, in detail, the standards of business conduct, ethics and governance.

It is the responsibility of all Directors and employees to familiarise themselves with this Code and comply with its standards. 
The Board and the senior management of the Company annually affirm compliance with the Code. A certificate of the 
Chairman, Managing Director and CEO to this effect is annexed to this report.

The Code of Conduct has also been posted on the Company’s Website at 
https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 certifying that the financial 
statements do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair view of the 
Company’s affairs. The said certificate is annexed to this Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As stipulated in Para E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding 
compliance of conditions of corporate governance is attached herewith.

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Not Applicable

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 40(9) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)  
REGULATIONS, 2015

The Company has obtained yearly Certificates pursuant to Clause 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, from M/s Jaymin Modi & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai and the same were placed before the 
Board for review. The certificates obtained during FY 2023- 24 Regulation 40(9) has qualification regarding delay in delivery of share 
certificate regarding to issue of duplicate share certificates.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2023-24 for all applicable compliances as per Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report has been submitted 
to the stock exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A statement of Management Discussion and Analysis is appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report in terms of the requirement of the 
Code of Corporate Governance.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In order to regulate trading in securities of the Company by the Directors and designated employees, your Company has adopted a 
Code of Conduct for trading in listed or proposed to be listed securities of your Company which has also been published on the website 
of the Company – https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html Insider Trading Code prevents misuse of unpublished price 
sensitive information and it also provides for periodical disclosures and obtaining pre-clearance for trading in securities of your 
Company by the Directors, Designated Employees and Connected Persons of your Company.

POLICY ON DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021, the Company, the 
Board of Directors have adopted Dividend Distribution Policy in terms of the aforesaid Regulation. The Policy is available on the 
website of the Company at https://www.bodhitreemultimedia.com/investors.html
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has both external and internal audit systems in place. Auditors have access to all records and information of the 
Company. The Board recognises the work of the auditors as an independent check on the information received from the 
management on the operations and performance of the Company. The Board and the management periodically review the findings 
and recommendations of the statutory and internal auditors and takes corrective actions, whenever necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

•	 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

•	 Adequacy of safeguards for assets.

•	 Reliability of financial controls.

•	 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

STATUTORY AUDIT For FY 2023-24,

M/s S A R A & Associates, Chartered Accountants, audited the financial statements prepared under the Indian Accounting Standards. 
The independent statutory auditor’s render an opinion regarding the fair presentation in the financial statements of the Company’s 
financial condition and operating results. Their audits are made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
include a review of the internal controls, to the extent necessary, to determine the audit procedures required to support their opinion.

Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities: No such Agreements.

For and behalf of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
Mautik Ajit Tolia
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 06586383
Date: 05.09.2024
Place: Mumbai

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



92

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

ANNEXURE F TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview 

Our Company was incorporated in the year 2013 as “Bodhi Tree Multimedia Private Limited” under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956 in Mumbai. The 
name of our company was subsequently changed to “Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited” pursuant to special resolution passed by the Shareholders dated August 18, 
2020 of the company and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion from Private Company to Public Company was issued by the Registrar 
of Companies, Mumbai dated September 1, 2020. Our Company was created with the main objects (As per MOA) as mentioned below: To Carry on in India and 
abroad the business of making of Small or Big Films either for General Public Viewing or Television, TV Serials for any TV Channels in India or abroad either 
alone or in collaboration with others, Creation, Manufacturing, Consultants etc. of different type of Contents like Text, Audio, Video Content used in all types 
of communication carriers, develop, create, conceptualize, advise any commercial dissemination of Content/ information (Content Films and/or Serials etc.) by 
various types of modes available now and in future based on Telephone, T.V., Cable, Mobile network and any other types of media available in India or abroad 
either for itself or for any other client. We operate our activities from our registered office and studios located in 507, Reliable Business Centre, Jogeshwari (West), 
Mumbai - 400102, Maharashtra, India. Our Company has studios obtained on rent basis whenever is require. Our list of clients includes some of the renowned 
names in Films, Television and OTT Industry.

Business Overview 

Our business model is B2B, wherein the primary business activity includes content production for television, films and digital platforms. We have been in the 
forefront of creating differentiated and edgy content through its distinct line-up of shows. Our business activities operate in 3 verticals at present: TV – Hindi 
GEC (General Entertainment Channels), Digital Content (OTT), and Regional content in multiple languages. 1) TV – Hindi GEC: We produce contents for linear 
broadcast networks like Zee, Sony, Star, Disney, Viacom, Sun and others. These contents include daily soaps, reality shows etc. 2) Digital Platforms (OTT): We 
produce content for non-linear platforms such as Netflix, Voot, etc Star Plus ,Channel V,Bindaas Channel,Big Magic, Netflix, Sony TV, Zee Yuva, BBC, Worldwide 
Media Pvt Ltd (WWM), Vuclip (India) Pvt. Ltd, Amazon, Dangal ,Alt Balaji 3) Regional Shows: We also produce content in regional languages including Tamil, 
Marathi, Bengali, and Gujarati on both TV and OTT platforms. Since inception, we have produced a robust line-up of more than 30+ shows for major Broadcasters 
& OTT platforms. We have produced more than 1000+ hours of content on Television and OTT. The shows have encompassed all genres - drama, thriller, horror, 
comedy and lifestyle. The company has produced shows across multiple languages – Hindi, Tamil, Marathi, Gujarati and Bengali. The client roster includes all the 
major entertainment networks. Our team comprises of the most experienced minds in the entertainment content business with a proven track record of delivering 
successful television shows across all genres. The team skill sets cover both fiction and non-fiction content programming with combined experience of 10+ years 
and 100 + television shows between them.

Key Cost Drivers

The main cost drivers in our business are the key talents (writers, directors, actors, technicians etc.) and rentals for locations, camera, lights, edit machines etc. 
hired for producing the content.

Key Contents Produced by us:

OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
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Our Strengths 

Strong Brand Value 

We believe that the name Bodhi is well established, it enjoys a strong reputation 
in the Indian media industry. We use the Bodhi Tree name for our Hindi and 
other regional language film production and distribution businesses. Through 
our continued efforts, both with participants and audiences, we seek to 
continue to benefit from the positive values associated with the brand Bodhi 
as a business to business (B2B) and business to consumer (B2C) name. We 
have worked with large number of marque clients which includes some of the 
renowned names in Films, Television and OTT Industry. We stand ahead of our 
competitors mainly due to our long term relationship with our clients and we 
have a proven track records of deliverables in timely and cost effective manner 
which has created a brand loyalty amongst our clients. Our specialization in 
genres like Youth, Horror, Thriller and Edgy contents has strengthen the brand 
Bodhi in the media industry. 

Experienced Team 

Our team has significant industry experience and it has a significant role in 
the consistent growth of our Company. Our team combines expertise and 
experience to outline plans for future development of our Company. Our 
Creative team comprising of writers, artists, directors, etc. We always carry a 
trending outlook, optimistic nature and a confident attitude towards every 
assignment may it be Producing, Directing of Film or OTT based Web series. 
Our team possesses a deep understanding of the Indian entertainment 
business including an understanding of talent relationships, deal structuring 
and strategic content exploitation, and is therefore well-positioned to focus 
on the continued strengthening of our distribution network to capitalise on 
our competitive advantage and our expansion into new media distribution. 
We believe that our teams experience and expertise has been essential 
in adopting the appropriate strategies to source our film content in a cost 
effective manner and in maximising the monetisation of our content.

Highly effective and efficient Sales and Marketing plays catalyst in 
acquiring more customers and media rights 

The market is highly competitive and fragmented. We compete with a variety 
of Entertainment and Production houses, as well as service providers. Our 
management team possesses a deep experience of Indian television market 
and their excellent marketing skill helped company to cater more customers 
and media rights. Some of our competitors have the great financial, 
workforce, marketing, sales and other resources. However, very few of these 
houses are involved exclusively in a business like the business of the Company 
and comparable to the scale of operations. We believe that the principal 
competitive factors include product quality, reliability, and price that can 
comprehensively address varying requirements of different TV channels and 
OTT platforms. We believe that our ability to compete effectively is primarily 
dependent on ensuring consistent product quality and timely delivery at 
competitive prices, thereby strengthening our brand over the years. We 
believe that our cost-effective and integrated offerings, our focus on customer 
satisfaction and our reliability combined with our quality consciousness, 
provides us with a competitive advantage in our business. 

Organized and Focused Business Operations 

A strong Managerial team is involved in sales and marketing pitching for 
prime projects at the appropriate time. The team ensures compatibility and 
reliability with the clients servicing their needs and requirements efficiently. 
This is the reason major clients continue to associate with our Company year 
on year. Our company also focuses on transitioning from delivering playout 
content using existing models to distributing that content via emerging 
options may have high-level work streams such as second-screen application 
development, modification of digital rights contracts and management 
systems, establishment of new relationships with content delivery networks, 
and integration with social media sites through APIs. While identifying 
projects it’s needed to fulfil the organization’s future-state vision, our company 
may also review and continue, halt or repurpose any inflight projects related 
to the transformation effort. 

Wide range of production into number of languages 

The Company has experience of Scripting, Producing TV daily soaps and OTT 
based web series into various languages including various local languages 
such as Hindi, Marathi, Gujarati, Tamil, Kannada, Telugu, Bengali and 
Bhojpuri. We are also looking forward to adding more shows and web series 
into new local Indian languages as the opportunity into the market is widely 
spread over.

Our Business Strategies

Exploring New Media 

In the past few years the media industry has envisage revolutionary 
developments, apart from TV, new media platforms like OTT has emerged 
as alternative source for entertainment. Therefore the scope of work has also 
widened in each and every section of the industry. There has been growing 
demand for more contents in every genres in Hindi as well as other Regional 
languages across all the platforms. We aim to monetize the content explosion 
by exploring new media platforms, we are also focusing on expanding our 
client base. We aim to achieve this by providing value added services to our 
clients through the strong story writing, best direction, and use of latest and 
updated technology, quality assurance, and timely delivery of results. 

Focus on scaling up content volume 

As discussed about the growing demand, we aim to increase the volume 
of contents we produce. Gradually we intent to enter different states of 
India with regional contents, we have already completed several projects 
in regional languages including Tamil, Marathi and Gujarati. Our focus is to 
scale up the content volume with existing clients as well as with new media. 
Many of our existing clients broadcast multiple channels including national 
and regional, however, our share in their wallet is very limited, for e.g. if our 
client broadcast 10 different channels then we are providing contents to 2 or 
3 channels. Our aim is to increase our share in their wallet. The key elements 
of our business strategy is to adopt a de-risking expansion strategy to expand 
in multiple segments of the business and scale up the business significantly 
in these areas.
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To develop own IP 

We will also focus on creating our own intellectual property (IP) which can 
give us an opportunity to scale up the business significantly by selling format 
rights globally.

SWOT Analysis 

Strengths 

•	 Demonstrated track record over past 7 years 

•	 In depth knowledge of Industry – Commercial & Technical 

•	 Low overhead cost 

•	 Specialisation in television as well as OTT content 

•	 Vast Geographical footprint covering multiple markets 

•	 Experienced management team 

•	 Cordial relations across entertainment industry 

Weaknesses 

•	 Fierce competition for a larger share of audience 

•	 Change in audience media preferences 

•	 Lack of cohesive production & distribution infrastructure, especially in  
	 the case of music industry. 

•	 The Media and Entertainment sector in India is highly fragmented. 

Opportunities 

•	 Growing acceptance by consumers in OTT market with content  
	 explosion changing habits 

•	 Television market in India still in a growth phase. 

•	 Opportunities of expansion in the pan-asian market 

•	 Listing the Company under a stock exchange will open up huge  
	 avenues of capital for the Company to support 

•	 Development of IP can open up global markets for Indian media  
	 company. 

•	 The increasing interest of the global investors in the sector. 

Threats 

•	 Piracy, violation of intellectual property rights poses a major threat to  
	 the Media and Entertainment companies. 

•	 Industry is prone to changes in government policies, any material  
	 changes in the duty or may adversely impact our financials. 

•	 Intense competitive pressure 

•	 With technological innovations taking place so rapidly, the media  
	 and Entertainment sector is facing considerable uncertainty

Human Resource 

We believe that our employees are the key to the success of our business. Our 
core team comprising of producer, writers, artists, directors, editors, sound 
recording and mixing engineers

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has robust internal controls systems (including Internal 
Financial Controls) that facilitates efficiency, reliability and completeness 
of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial and 
management information. The internal control system ensures compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations facilitates optimum utilization 
of resources and protect the Company’s assets and investors’ interests. 
The Company’s well-defined organizational structure, documented policy 
guidelines, defined authority matrix and internal controls ensure efficiency 
of operations, compliance with internal policies and applicable laws and 
regulations as well as protection of resources.. The Audit Committee of the 
Board regularly reviews significant audit findings of the Internal Audit system 
covering operational, financial and other areas.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Risk Management is an ongoing process. Effective risk management 
is therefore critical to any organizational success. Globalization with 
increasing integration of markets, newer and more complex products and 
transactions and an increasingly stringent regulatory framework has exposed 
organizations to and integrated approach to risk management. Timely and 
effective risk management is of prime importance to our continued success. 
The sustainability of the business is derived from the following:

•	 Identification of the diverse risks faced by the Company.

•	 The evolution of appropriate systems and processes to measure  
	 and monitor them.

•	 Risk Management through appropriate mitigation strategies within  
	 the policy framework.

•	 Reporting these risk mitigation results to the appropriate managerial  
	 levels.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis, describing the 
Company’s objectives, projections and estimates are forward looking statement 
and progressive within the meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual 
result may vary from those expressed or implied. Important developments 
that could affect the Company’s operations are significant changes in political 
and economic environment in India, tax laws, exchange rate fluctuation and 
related factors.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bodhi Tree 
Multimedia Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statement, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (herein after referred to as “the financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 
current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to 
Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report there on. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statement our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statement or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statement that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statement as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statement. As part of an audit in accordance with 
SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To, 
The Members of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statement, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statement 
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statement that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statement may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statement. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statement of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”)  
	 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of  
	 the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified  
	 in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable. 

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and  
		  explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  
		  necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law  
		  have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from  
		  our examination of those books; 

	 c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the  
		  Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in  
		  agreement with the books of account; 

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statement comply with the  
		  Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of  
		  the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the  
		  directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of  
		  Directors, none of the director is disqualified as on March 31, 2024  
		  from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of  
		  the Act; 

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over  
		  financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness  
		  of such controls refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”;

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s  
		  Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and  
		  Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our  
		  information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations which  
			   would impact its financial position

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including  
			   derivative contracts hence the question of making a provision  
			   for any resulting material foreseeable losses does not  
			   arise; and;

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred  
			   to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

		  iv.	 As stated in note 35 to the standalone financial statements, the  
			   interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the  
			   year and until the date of this audit report is in accordance with  
			   Section 123 of the Act. The final dividend paid by the Company  
			   during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous  
			   year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent  
			   it applies to payment of dividend.

		  v.	 (a)	 The Management has represented that, to the best of  
			   its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material  
			   either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced  
			   or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share  
			   premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the  
			   Company to or in any other person or entity, including  
			   foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,  
			   whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the  
			   Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest  
			   in other persons or entities identified in any manner  
			   whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate  
			   Beneficiaries”) or provide any  guarantee,  security or  
			   the  like on  behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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			   (b)	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of  
			   its knowledge and belief, no  funds (which are material  
			   either individually or in the aggregate) have been received  
			   by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign  
			   entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether  
			   recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,  
			   whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest  in other persons  
			   or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on  
			   behalf  of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
			   or provide any guarantee,  security or the like on behalf of the  
			   Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered  
			   reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has  
			   come to our notice that has caused us to believe that  
			   the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any  
			   material misstatement.

		  vi.	 The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit  
			   and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023 and  
			   based on our examination, which included test checks,  
			   the Company has used accounting software for maintaining  
			   its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024  
			   which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility  
			   and the same has been enabled from 1st August,2023 all  
			   relevant transactions recorded in the software, during the  
			   implemented period we did not come across any instance of  
			   the audit trail feature being tampered with.

3.	 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report  
	 under Section 197(16) of the Act: In our opinion and according to the  
	 information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by  
	 the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance  
	 with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to  
	 any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197  
	 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other  
	 details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be  
	 commented uponby us.

	 For S A R A & Associates 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 Firm Registration No: 120927W

	 Alok Bairagra 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No: 105153 
	 Place: Mumbai 
	 Date: 30th May 2024  
	 UDIN: 24105153BKDIOK3390
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited (“the Company”) on the financial 
statements for the period ended 31st March, 2024. We report that;

(i)	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full  
			   particulars, including quantitative details and situation of  
			   Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE).

		  (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing  
			   full particulars of intangible assets including intangible assets  
			   under development.

	 (b) 	 The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its  
		  PPE, by which all the PPE are verified every year. Management  
		  has carried out physical Verification of the PPE during the year.  
		  In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable  
		  having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its  
		  assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the  
		  basis of our examination of the records of company, the company  
		  does not hold any immovable property under the head PPE as at  
		  31st March, 2024. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(i) (c) of the  
		  Order are not applicable to the Company.  

	 (d) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the  
		  basis of our examination of the records of company, the company  
		  has not revalued it’s PPE during the year. Accordingly, provisions of  
		  Clause 3(i) (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (e) 	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the  
		  basis of our examination of the records of company, no proceedings  
		  have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding  
		  any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)  
		  Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly,  
		  provisions of Clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable to  
		  the Company.

(ii)	 (a)	 As explained by management, the natures of the inventories of  
		  the company are such that Clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not  
		  applicable to the company. 

	 (b)	 According to information and explanations given to us and on  
		  the basis of our examination of the records of company, the  
		  company has not beensanctioned working capital limits in excess  
		  of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial  
		  institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

(iii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the  
		  basis of our examination of the records of company, the company  
		  has made investment in the company, firms or limited liability  
		  partnerships during the year. The company has granted loans or  
		  advances which are characterized as loans, unsecured to companies  
		  and other persons as below: 

	 Particulars	 Guarantees	 Security	 Loans	 Advances in 
					     nature of  
					     loans

	 Aggregate  
	 amount  
	 granted/  
	 provided  
	 during the  
	 year

	 -Subsidiaries	 -	 -	 4,17,77,812	 -

	 -Joint	 -	 -	 -	 - 
	 Ventures

	 -Associates

	 -Others	 -	 -	 14,04,400	 -

	 Balance 
	 outstanding 
	 as at 
	 balance 
	 sheet date 
	 in respect 
	 of above 
	 cases

	 -Subsidiaries	 -	 -	 56,18,186	 -

	 -Joint	 -	 -	 -	 - 
	 Ventures

	 -Associates	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 -Others	 -	 -	 30,94,273	 -

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and  
		  on the basis of our examination of the records of company, the  
		  terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the  
		  nature of loans and guarantees are not prejudicial to the company’s  
		  interest. 

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanation give to us, company  
		  has granted loans that are repayable on demand.

	 (d)	 The Company has granted loans that are repayable on demand,  
		  therefore provisions of   Clause 3(iii) (d) of the Order are not  
		  applicable to the Company.

	 (e)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, company  
		  has granted loans that are repayable on demand. Accordingly,  
		  provisions of Clause 3(iii) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the  
		  Company.

	 (f)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations  
		  given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, the  
		  company has granted following loans and advances in the nature of  
		  loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms  
		  or period of repayment.

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
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	 Parties	 All Parties	 Promoters	 Related Parties

	 Aggregate  
	 amount of loan 
	 /advance in  
	 nature of loans

	 -Repayable on	 -	 -	 87,12,459/-  
	 demand (A)

	 -Agreement does 	 -	 -	 - 
	 not specify any 
	 terms on period  
	 of repayment (B)

	 Total (A+B)	 -	 -	 87,12,459/-

	 Percentage of 	 -	 -	 100% 
	 loans/ advances  
	 in nature of loans 
	 to the total loans

	 (iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations  
		  given to us, the Company has not granted any loans under section  
		  185 of the Act and loans granted, advances made, any investment  
		  made, or provided any guarantees or security during the year to the  
		  parties covered under section 186 have been complied with the  
		  provision of the Act.

	 (v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the  
		  company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the  
		  meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act. Accordingly, 3(v) of the  
		  Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (vi)	 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost  
		  records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services  
		  rendered by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is  
		  not applicable to the Company.

	 (vii)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records mined by us, in our opinion, the Company  
			   is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory  
			   dues, including Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance,  
			   Income Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, cess and  
			   other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the  
			   appropriate authorities.

			   According to the information and explanations given to us  
			   and based on the records of the Company examined by us, in  
			   our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of  
			   Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax,  
			   Custom Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material  
			   statutory dues as applicable were in arrears as at March 31,  
			   2024 for a period more than six months from the date they  
			   became payable.

		  (b)	 According to information and explanations given to us,  
			   there are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund,  
			   employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,  

			   duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other  
			   statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of  
			   any dispute.

	 (viii)	 According to information and explanations given to us, there are  
		  no transactions which are recorded in the books of account and  
		  have been disclosed or surrender before the tax authorities as  
		  income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income  
		  Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of the Order is not  
		  applicable to the Company.

	 (ix)	 (a)	 According to information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records of the Company examined by us, the  
			   Company has not made any default in repayment of loans  
			   or borrowings to financial institution or bank or government  
			   or dues to debenture holders.

		  (b)	 The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank  
			   or financial institution or other lenders.

		  (c)	 According to information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records of the Company examined by us, the  
			   term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans  
			   were obtained. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not  
			   applicable to the Company.

		  (d)	 According to information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records of the Company examined by us, the  
			   funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for  
			   long term purposes. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order  
			   is not applicable to the Company.

		  (e)	 According to information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records of the Company examined by us, the  
			   company has not taken any funds from any entity or person  
			   on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,  
			   associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of  
			   the Order is not applicable to the Company.

		  (f)	 According to information and explanations given to us and  
			   based on the records of the Company examined by us, the  
			   company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge  
			   of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or  
			   associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order  
			   is not applicable to the Company.

	 (x)	 (a)	 The Company has not raised money by way of initial public  
			   offer or further public offer (Including debt instruments)  
			   during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not  
			   applicable to the company. 

		  (b)	 The company has not made any private placement or  
			   preferential allotment of shares or convertible debenture  
			   during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not  
			   applicable to the Company.

	 (xi)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us,  
			   no material fraud has been noticed or reported during  
			   the year.
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		  (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us,  
			   no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the  
			   Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4  
			   as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and  
			   Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

		  (c)	 During the year no whistle-blower complaints has been  
			   received by the company

	 (xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations  
		  given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the  
		  provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to  
		  the Company.

	 (xiii)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and  
		  audit procedures performed by us, transactions with the related  
		  parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act  
		  where applicable and details of such transaction have been  
		  disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable  
		  Accounting Standards.

	 (xiv)	 The company has proper Internal audit system in accordance  
		  with it’s size and business activities and the reports of the  
		  internal auditors for the period under audit have been  
		  considered by us. 

	 (xv)	 According to the information and explanation given to us and  
		  based on our examination of the records of the company, the  
		  Company has not entered in to any non-cash transaction with its  
		  directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the  
		  provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to  
		  the Company.

	 (xvi)	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under  
			   section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  
			   Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are  
			   not applicable to the Company.

		  (b)	 The company has not conducted any Non-Banking  
			   Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid  
			   Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of  
			   India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

		  (c)	 The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as  

			   defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of  
			   India. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the  
			   Order are not applicable to the Company.

		  (d)	 The Group does not have CIC as part of the Group Accordingly,  
			   clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

	 (xvii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and  
		  based on our examination of the records of the Company the  
		  company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year  
		  and the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the  
		  provisions of Clause 3(xvii) of the Order are not applicable to  
		  the Company.

	 (xviii)	 There has not been any resignation of statutory auditor during  
		  the financial year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xviii) of  
		  the Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (xix)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and  
		  based on our evaluation, there is no material uncertainty in  
		  existence on the evaluation of the ageing report, financial ratios  
		  and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment  
		  of financial liabilities, other information accompanying  
		  the financial statements, the knowledge of the Board of Directors  
		  and management  plans, the company is capable of meeting its  
		  liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet date as and  
		  when they fall due within a period of one year from the date of  
		  balance sheet date.

	 (xx)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and  
		  based on our examination of the records of the Company, the  
		  company is not subject to obligation under Corporate Social  
		  Responsibility, therefore the provisions of Clause 3(xx) of the  
		  Order are not applicable to the Company.

	 (xxi)	 The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) is not applicable  
		  to the Associate of the Company, therefore the provisions of Clause  
		  3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

		  For S A R A & Associates 
		  Chartered Accountants 
		  Firm Regn No: 120927W

		  Alok Bairagra 
		  Partner 
		  Membership No: 105153 
		  Place: Mumbai 
		  Date: 30th May 2024 
		  UDIN: 24105153BKDIOK3390
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The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1(A)(f) under “Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date, 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited (Formerly known as Bodhi Tree Multimedia 
Private Limited’) (“the Company”) as on 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statement of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by ICAI (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls  
Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statement for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statement in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statement. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over  
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st 
March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner 
Membership No: 105153 
Place: Mumbai:  
Date: 30th May 2024 
UDIN: 24105153BKDIOK3390 

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2024

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

NoteParticulars
	

	 I.	 ASSETS 
			   Non-current assets 
		  (a) 	Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
			   (i)	 Property, plant and equipment	 4A	 297.78	 391.04  
			   (ii)	 Intangible Assets	 4A	 1,497.50	 1,497.50  
			   (iii)	 Right to Use Assets	 4B	 8,788.63	 2,444.75  
		  (b) Financial assets 
			   (i)	 Investments	 5	 290.00 	 100.00  
			   (ii)	 Loans	 6	 8,712.47 	 3,567.60  
			   (iii)	 Other non-current financial assets	 7	 2,617.98 	 2,746.62  
		  (c) 	 Deferred tax assets	 8	 529.62 	 1,232.32  
		  (d)	 Other non-current assets	 9	 34,173.57 	 30,158.96 
		  Total non-current assets		  56,907.55 	 42,138.79 
			   Current assets 
		  (a)	 Inventories	 10	 1,29,755.76	 94,755.76 
		  (b)	 Financial assets 
			   (i)	 Trade receivables	 11	 83,309.63	 1,31,817.03 
			   (ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents	 12	 5,557.95 	 43,871.99 
		  (c)	 Other current assets	 13	 2,04,938.95	 1,42,174.29 
		  Total current assets		   4,23,562.29	  4,12,619.07 
		  Total Assets		   4,80,469.84	  4,54,757.86 
	 II.	 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
			   Equity 
		  (a)	 Equity share capital 	 14	 1,24,960.00	 1,24,960.00
		  (b)	 Other equity	 15	 1,45,224.51	 1,23,795.07 
		  Total equity		  2,70,184.51	 2,48,755.07 
		  Non-current liabilities 
			   Financial Liabilities 
			   (i)	 Borrowings	 16	 216.37	 3,168.26 
			   (ii)	 Lease Liabilities	 17	 6,438.95	 811.02 
		  Total non-current liabilities		  6,655.32	 3,979.28 
		  Current liabilities 
		  (a) 	Financial liabilities 
			   (i)	 Borrowings	 18	 46,456.12	 47,399.21 
			   (ii)	 Lease Liabilities	 17	 2,417.29	 1,912.98 
			   Trade payables	 19	 1,24,339.39 	 87,636.67 
				    Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise 
				    Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
			   (iii)	 Other financial liabilities	 20	 107.36 	 282.26 
		  (b)	 Other current liabilities	 21	 22,856.73	 57,327.92 
		  (c)	 Provisions	 22	 7,453.13	 7,464.47 
		  Total current liabilities		  2,03,630.02	 2,02,023.51 
		  Total liabilities		  2,10,285.34	 2,06,002.79 
		  Total Equity and liabilities		  4,80,469.85	 4,54,757.86

Significant accounting policies and notes to standalone financial statements ref. 1 to 40
The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208
Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400
Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W
Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOK3390
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Income: 

	 Revenue from operations	 23	 371,174.05	 426,120.61 

	 Other Income	 24	 2,488.05	 2,096.21 

Total income		  3,73,662.10	 4,28,216.82 

Expenses: 

	 Cost of production	 25	 332,348.09	 387,720.58 

	 Changes in inventories	 26	 (35,000.00)	 (36,048.14) 

	 Employee Benefits Expenses	 27	 10,720.96	 9,668.29 

	 Finance Cost	 28	 5,572.72	 5,807.72 

	 Depreciation and amortization expenses	 29	 2,137.82	 1,950.06 

	 Other Expenses	 30	 12,405.33	 13,553.12 

Total expenses		  3,28,184.92	 3,82,651.63 

	 Profit before Exceptional Item and Tax		  45,477.19	 45,565.19 

	 Exceptional Item		  -	 - 

	 Profit before Tax		  45,477.19	 45,565.19 

Tax Expenses:	  

	 - Current tax	 8	 (7,453.13)	 (7,464.47) 

	 - Tax Expenses of Earlier years		  -	 (530.94) 

	 - MAT Credit Entitlement 		  (5,601.42)	 (5,010.18) 

	 - Deferred tax 		   (702.70)	  29.00  

Profit for the year (A)		  31,719.94	 32,588.60 

	 Other Comprehensive Income 

	 (i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 

	 Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations			   - 

	 Income tax relating to above			   - 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (B)			   - 

Total Comprehensive Profit for the year (A+B)		  31,719.94	 32,588.60 

Earnings per equity share Basic & Diluted (of face Value Rs. 10 each)	 32 

	 Basic 		  2.54	 2.67 

	 Diluted		  2.54	 2.67

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

For the year ended  
31 March 2023

Rupees Rupees
NoteParticulars

Significant accounting policies and notes to standalone financial statements ref. 1 to 40
The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208

Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400

Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOK3390
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NoteParticulars

	  A) 	 Cash flow from operating activities:		

			   Profit for the period	  45,477.19 	  45,545.07 

			   Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities:		

			   Depreciation and amortization	  2,137.80 	  1,950.06 

			   Finance cost	  5,572.72 	  5,807.72 

		  Changes in assets and liabilities		

			   Changes in Inventories	  (35,000.00)	  (36,048.14)

			   Trade receivables and unbilled revenue	  (26,997.83)	  (171,328.46)

			   Loans, other financial assets and other assets	  (9,030.85)	  30,130.69 

			   Trade payables	  36,702.72 	  33,589.44 

			   Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions	  (30,942.96)	  28,527.88 

		  Cash generated from operations	  (12,081.21)	  (61,825.73)

			   Income taxes paid	  (6,474.61)	  (7,390.72)

		  Net cash generated by operating activities	  (18,555.82)	  (69,216.45)

	  B) 	 Cash flow from investing activities:		

			   Property, plant and equipment	  -   	  (700.59) 

		  Net cash generated from investing activities	  -   	  (700.59)

	 C) 	 Cash flow from financing activities:		

			   Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings	  (943.09)	  11,889.31 

			   Repayment of long term borrowings	  (2,951.89)	  (14,340.17)

			   Dividend	  (10,290.52)	 -

			   Interest paid	  (5,572.72)	  (5,807.72)

			   Right Shares issued 	 -	  112,460.00 

		  Net cash generated from financing activities	  (19,758.22)	  104,201.43 

		  Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	  (38,314.04)	  34,284.40 

		  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period	  43,871.99 	  9,587.60 

		  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	  5,557.95 	  43,871.99

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208

Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400

Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOK3390

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

For the year ended  
31 March 2023

Rupees Rupees

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Reserves & 
Surplus

Particulars
Equity 
Share 

Capital

Items of Other 
Comprehensive

Income (OCI)
Total

Retained 
earnings

Securities 
premium

Remeasurements 
of defined 

benefit plans

Balance as at 1 April 2022	 12,500.00	 23,116.58	 55,650.00	 -	 91,266.58

 	 Right Issue made during the year	 12,492.00	 -	 -	 -	 12,492.00

 	 Security premium on share issue during the year	 -	 -	  112,428.00	 - 	 112,428.00

	  Bonus Share Issue during the year	  99,968.00 	 - 	 (99,968.00)	 -	 -

 	 Interim Dividend Paid	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

 	 Profit for the year	 -	 32,568.50	 -	 -	 32,568.50

 	 Other comprehensive income for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Balance as at 31 March 2023	 1,24,960.00	 55,685.07	 68,110.00	 -	 2,48,755.07

 	 Right Issue made during the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

 	 Security premium on share issue during the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

 	 Bonus Share Issue during the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

 	 Interim Dividend Paid	 -	 (9,331.79)	 -	 -	 (9,331.79)

	  Profit for the year	 -	 31,719.95	 -	 -	 31,719.95

 	 Other comprehensive income for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Balance as at 31 March 2024	 1,24,960.00	 78,073.23	 68,110.00	 -	 2,71,143.23

The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208

Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400

Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOK3390

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2024
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1	 Background

	 Bodhi Tree Multimedia Ltd. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on July 4,  
	 2013 under the Companies Act, 1956 and is listed on BSE Limited (BSE)  
	 and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) in India. ‘The  
	 company has received migration approval from NSE i.e. the company has  
	 been migrated from NSE emerged platform to mainboard platform of the  
	 exchange (NSE & BSE) w.e.f 15th February 2023 Accordingly the securities  
	 of the company are listed and traded on mainboard of NSE & BSE from  
	 15th February 2023. The Company has established itself as a leader in  
	 television content in India particularly for Hindi language content and  
	 has also successfully ventured in the regional television content market  
	 and Internet based program. The registered office and principal place of  
	 business of the Company is at Andheri (West), Mumbai.

	 The company was originally incorporated as Bodhi Tree Multimedia  
	 Pvt. Ltd on 4th July, 2013 under Companies Act, 1956. The copany has been  
	 converted in to Public Limited Company under Section 18 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. 01.09.2020 and the name of the company has  
	 beenchanged into Bodhi Tree Multimedia Ltd. w.e.f 01.09.2020

	 He separate financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “Financial  
	 Statements”) of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were  
	 authorized for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on  
	 30th May 2024.

2	 Significant Accounting Policies

	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in  
	 the preparation of the Financial Statements.

A. 	 Basis of preparation and other significant accounting policies

	 (i)	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

		  The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all  
		  material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)  
		  as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read  
		  with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015  
		  (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules  
		  framed thereunder and guidelines issued by the Securities and  
		  Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The financial statements have been  
		  prepared under the historical cost convention and on the accrual  
		  basis.

	 (ii)	 Rounding of amounts

		  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been rounded  
		  off to the nearest thousands with two decimals thereof, unless  
		  otherwise stated. Zero “0.00” denotes amount less than ` 5,00.

	 (iii)	 Current and non-current classification

		  Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to realize or  
		  settle within twelve months after the balance sheet date. Deferred  
		  tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and  
		  liabilities.

		  Based on the nature of products/services and the time between  
		  the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash  

		  and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained it’s operating  
		  cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current  
		  classification of assets and liabilities.

B.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 (i)	 All Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost  
		  less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,  
		  if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable  
		  to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the  
		  asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as  
		  appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits  
		  associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of  
		  the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any  
		  component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised  
		  when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are  
		  charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period  
		  in which they are incurred.

	 (ii)	 Right-of-use (ROU) assets are stated at cost, less accumulated  
		  depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The carrying amount of  
		  ROU assets is adjusted for remeasurement of lease liability, if any, in  
		  future. Cost of ROU assets comprises the amount of initial  
		  measurement of lease liability, lease payments made before the  
		  commencement date (net of incentives received), nitial direct costs  
		  and present value of estimated costs of dismantling and restoration.

C.	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets under development comprises cost of intangible assets  
	 and related expenses that are not yet ready for their intended use at the  
	 reporting date.

D.	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

	 (i)	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate  
		  the cost of the asset, net of their residual values, if any, over their  
		  estimated useful lives which are in accordance with the useful lives  
		  prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

		  The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the  
		  asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,  
		  and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.  
		  An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its  
		  recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is higher than its  
		  estimated recoverable amount.

		  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a tangible  
		  assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal  
		  proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as  
		  income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (ii)	 Leasehold building and leasehold improvements are amortized over  
		  the period of lease or useful life of assets, whichever is lower.

	 (iii)	 ROU assets are depreciated on straight line basis from the  
		  commencement date to the end of useful life of asset or lease term  
		  whichever is earlier
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E.	 Derecognition of property, plant and equipment /  
	 intangible assets

	 The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /  
	 intangible assets / investment property is derecognized on disposal  
	 or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  
	 The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property,  
	 plant and equipment / intangible assets / investment property is  
	 measured as the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and the  
	 carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the statement of profit  
	 and loss when the item is derecognized.

F.	 Lease

	 Lease liability associated with assets taken on lease (except short-term  
	 and low value assets) is measured at the present value of lease payments  
	 to be made. Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate  
	 implicit in the lease. Lease payments comprise fixed payments in relation  
	 to the lease (less lease incentives receivable), variable lease payments,  
	 if any and other amounts (residual value guarantees, penalties, etc.)  
	 to be payable in future in relation to the lease arrangement. Lease liability  
	 is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect  
	 interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the  
	 lease payment made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any  
	 reassessment or modification.

G.	 Segments reporting:

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the  
	 reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief  
	 operating decision maker of the Company consists of the managing  
	 director, chief executive officer and chief financial officer which assesses  
	 the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes  
	 strategic decisions.

H.	 Foreign Currency Translation:	

	 (i)	 Functional and presentation currency

		  Items included in the financial statements of the company are  
		  measured using the currency of the primary economic environment  
		  in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). These  
		  financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is  
		  company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 (ii)	 Transactions and balances

		  Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional  
		  currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign  
		  exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such  
		  transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and  
		  liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange  
		  rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.  
		  Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in  
		  foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date  
		  when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are  
		  measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not  
		  retranslated.

I.	 Inventories ( Content under development): 

	 Inventories of television programs and web series (content) under  
	 development are stated at lower or unamortized cost of production  
	 (including attributable / allocable production costs and expenses) or net  
	 realizable value. Cost of content production includes costs incurred during  
	 the conceptualization and pre-production phases also and are amortized  
	 on commercialization of such content.

J.	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of  
	 one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

	 Initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair  
	 value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition  
	 or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial  
	 assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added  
	 to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial  
	 liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly  
	 attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at  
	 fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the  
	 statement of profit and loss.

	 I.	 Financial assets

		  A)	 Subsequent measurement 

			   Financial assets are classified into the specified categories  
			   i.e. amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and  
			   fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The  
			   classification depends on the Company’s business model for  
			   managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of cash  
			   flows.

		  B)	 Derecognition of financial assets

			   “A financial asset is derecognized only when  
			   (a)	 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows  
				    from the financial asset or the rights have expired or

			   (b)	 The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the  
				    cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual  
				    obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients in  
				    an arrangement. 

			   Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates  
			   whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards  
			   of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial  
			   asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred  
			   substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial  
			   asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

			   Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor  
			   retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the  
			   financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company  
			   has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the  
			   Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is  
			   continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing  
			   involvement in the financial asset.”
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		  C)	 Impairment of financial assets

			   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected  
			   credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost  
			   and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology  
			   applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase  
			   in credit risk.

	 II.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

		  Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as  
		  either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance  
		  of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial  
		  liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any  
		  contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity  
		  after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity shares are classified as  
		  equity. Incremental costs directlyattributable to the issue of new  
		  shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

	 	 A)	 Subsequent measurement Financial liabilities measured  
			   at amortized cost:

			   Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost  
			   using the effective interest rate (EIR). Gains and losses are  
			   recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the  
			   liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR  
			   amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into  
			   account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs  
			   that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is  
			   included in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

		  B)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

			   A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under  
			   the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing  
			   financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender  
			   on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing  
			   liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or  
			   modification is treated as the derecognition of the original  
			   liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in  
			   the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of  
			   profit and loss.

K.	 Revenue Recognition:

	 The Company derives revenue from producing television programs,  
	 Internet series to its customers. The Company identifies and evaluate  
	 each performance obligation under the contract. Revenue recognition  
	 is based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment  
	 of when control is transferred to the customer. Revenue is recognized  
	 either when the performance obligation in the contract has been  
	 performed (‘point in time’ recognition) or ‘over time’ as control of the  
	 performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

	 Revenue generated from the commissioned television programs and  
	 Internet series produced for broadcasters is recognized over the period of  
	 time over the contract period.

	 Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the  
	 government.

L.	 Interest and Dividend Income:

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable  
	 that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of  
	 income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time  
	 basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective  
	 interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated  
	 future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that  
	 asset’s carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when  
	 the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the  
	 economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company,  
	 and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

M.	 Income Tax:

	 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on  
	 the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax  
	 rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable  
	 to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

	 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws  
	 enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in  
	 the country where the Company generates taxable income. Management  
	 periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to  
	 situations in which applicable tax regulationis subject to interpretation. It  
	 establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts  
	 expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on  
	 temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and  
	 liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred  
	 income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been  
	 enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and  
	 are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is  
	 realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred Tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,  
	 unused tax losses and carry forward tax credits only if it is probable  
	 that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary  
	 differences, tax losses and tax credits.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally  
	 enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the  
	 deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax  
	 assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally  
	 enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to  
	 realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

N.	 Cash and cash equivalents:

	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call  
	 with financial institutions, other short- term, highly liquid investments  
	 with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible  
	 to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk  
	 of changes in value. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, Cash and  
	 cash equivalents are considered net of outstanding overdrafts, if any, as  
	 they are considered an integral part of Company’s cash management.
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O.	 Trade receivable:

	 Trade receivable are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently  
	 measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less  
	 provision for impairment.

P.	 Impairment of assets:

	 Non-Financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or  
	 changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not  
	 be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which  
	 the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The  
	 recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of  
	 disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets  
	 are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable  
	 cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other  
	 assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets  
	 other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible  
	 reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

	 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount  
	 of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised  
	 estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying  
	 amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been  
	 determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or  
	 cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is  
	 recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Q.	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

	 The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal  
	 or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an  
	 outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required  
	 to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably  
	 estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

	 If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted  
	 using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks  
	 specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the  
	 provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

	 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible  
	 obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require  
	 an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount  
	 of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible  
	 obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of  
	 outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision  
	 or disclosure is made.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, however  
	 they are disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits is probable.  
	 When the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset  
	 is no longer a contingent asset and is recognised as an asset.

R.	 Earnings Per Share:

	 (i)	 Basic earnings per share

		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

		  -	 the profit attributable to owners of the Company

		  -	 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding  
			   during the financial year

	 (ii)	 Diluted earnings per share

		  Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the  
		  determination of basic earnings per share to takeinto account:

		  -	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs  
			   associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

		  -	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that  
			   would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all  
			   dilutive potential equity shares.

S.	 Borrowing cost:

	 Interest and other costs in connection with the borrowing of the funds to  
	 the extent related / attributed to the acquisition / construction of  
	 qualifying fixed assets are capitalised up to the date when such assets are  
	 ready for its intended use and all other borrowing costs are recognised as  
	 an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.	 Critical Estimates and Judgments

	 The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting  
	 estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.  
	 This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of  
	 judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be  
	 materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be  
	 different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each  
	 of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together  
	 with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item  
	 in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

A.	 Estimated useful life of Tangible Assets:

	 The Company reviews the useful lives and carrying amount of fixed sets at  
	 the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change  
	 in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods

B.	 Estimation of Current Tax Expense and Income Tax Payable /  
	 Receivable:

	 The calculation of Company’s tax charge necessarily involves a degree of  
	 estimation and judgement in respect of certain items whose tax  
	 treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached  
	 with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal  
	 process. The final resolution of some of these items may give rise to  
	 material adjustment to taxable profits/losses.

C.	 Estimation of Contingent Liabilities:

	 The company exercises judgment in measuring and recognising provisions  
	 and the exposures to contingent liabilities which is related to pending  
	 litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgment is necessary in assessing  
	 the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise,  
	 and to quantify the possible range of the financial settlement. Because  
	 of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may  
	 be different from the originally estimated as provision or contingent  
	 liability.
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D.	 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:

	 The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is probable  
	 that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against  
	 which the reversal of temporary differences will be offset. In assessing  
	 the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers the extent  
	 to which it is probable that the deferred tax asset will be realized. The  
	 ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the  
	 generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those  
	 temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards become deductible.  
	 The Company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities,  
	 projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making  
	 this assessment.

E.	 Impairment of Trade Receivables:

	 Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue  
	 earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company  
	 through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously  
	 monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company  
	 grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company uses  

	 expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The  
	 company uses a provision matrix and forward-looking information and  
	 an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset  
	 to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

	 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on  
	 historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future  
	 events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are  
	 believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

F.	 Impairment assessment of Investments carried at cost:

	 The Company conducts impairment review of the investments in  
	 subsidiaries, Joint venture & associates whenever events or changes in  
	 circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable  
	 or tests for impairment annually. Determining whether an asset is  
	 impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount, which  
	 requires the Company to estimate the value in use which is based on  
	 future cash flows and suitable discount rate in order to calculate the  
	 present value.
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As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023

7. Other non-Current financial assets

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars

	 a)	 Investments measured at cost

		  i) Investments in Partnership Firm

		  Investment in Limited Liability Partnership Firm	 290.00	 100.00

		  *Name of Firm	 Total Capital

		  Pathka Films LLP	 Rs.100.00

		  Vasudhara Media Venture Pvt. Ltd.	 Rs.100.00

		  Dharmaveer Media City Pvt. Ltd.	 Rs. 90.00

		  Total Capital	 Rs. 290.00

		  Total	 290.00	 100.00

As at 
31 March 2023

5. Non-current investments

		  Unsecured, Considered good to Related Parties* (Refer Note 31)	 8,712.46	 3,567.60

		  Total	 8,712.46	 3,567.60

		  Unsecured, Considered good Security Deposit	 2,617.98	 2,746.62

		  Total	 2,617.98	 2,746.62

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023

6. Non-Current Loan
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	 Current Tax	 7,453.13	 7,464.47

	 Adjustment for current tax of prior periods	 -	 530.94

	 MAT Credit Entitlement	 5,601.42	 5,010.18

	 Total current tax expenses 	 13,054.55	 13,005.59

		  Deferred tax charge / (credit)	 702.70	 (29.00)

	 Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss	 13,757.25	 12,976.59

		  (b)	 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate   

			   Accounting profit / (loss) before tax

	 Income tax  

		  Statutory income tax @ of 27.82% (2022: 27.82%).	  12,651.75 	 12,670.65

		  Tax effect of earlier years.	 -	 530.94

		  Net Tax effect on deductible and non-deductible expenses.	 1,105.50	 (224.99)

	 Tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss	 13,757.25	 12,976.60

Note: The statutory tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate for deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 is 
27.82% (2023: 27.82%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so.

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees
Particulars

As at 
31 March 2023

8.	 Deferred tax assets
		  (a)	 The major components of income tax are as under:
			   Income tax related to items recognized directly in the statement of profit and loss during the year
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Deductible temporary differences

	 Lease Liabilty is not deductible in Income Tax.	 2,463.81	 757.82	 (1,705.99)	 (382.53)

	 Share Issue Expenses is 1/5th each year allowable.	 906.48	 1,208.64	 302.16	 (14.77)

 Taxable Temporary Difference 					   

 	 Depreciation and amortization on property,	  2,840.67 	  651.20 	  (2,189.47)	 (382.86) 

	 plant, equipment and intangible assets.

 	 Change in Effective Interest rate on change on Term loan.		  82.94	 82.94	 14.55 

		  529.62	 1,232.32	 702.70	 (29.00)

Balance sheet Recognized in the statement  
of profit and loss

31/03/202331/03/2024 31/03/2023 31/03/2024

(c) Deferred tax relates to the following:

(d) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

	 Opening balance			   1,232.33	 1,203.33

	 Deferred tax credit / (charge) recognized in			   (702.70)	 29.00

	 - Statement of profit and loss

	 - Other comprehensive income			   529.63	 1,232.33

31/03/202331/03/2024

9. Other non-current assets

Other Advances (Unsecured)

	 Others	 - considered good	 30,750.00 	  28,150.00 

			   - considered doubtful

	 Balances with government authorities - MAT Credit Entitlement	  480.51 	  1,896.77 

	 Prepaid Expenses	  2,943.06 	  112.17

	 Total		   34,173.57 	  30,158.94  

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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Inventory : Work-in-Progress	 129,755.76	 94,755.76

Total			   1,29,755.76	 94,755.76

- Considered good	 83,309.63	 131,817.03

Total			   83,309.63	 131,817.03

Less than 6 months

(i) Undisputed Trade	 78,940.88	 1,699.43	 -	 -	 2,669.32	 83,309.63 

receivables -considered good

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade	 1,29,147.71	 -	 -	 2,669.32	 -	 1,31,817.03  

receivables -considered good

Particulars

10. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

11. Trade receivables (Unsecured)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Less than 6 months

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023.

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

Balance with banks - in current accounts	 5,262.87	 43,654.31

Cash on hand	 295.08	 217.69

Total			    5,557.95 	  43,872.00 

12. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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Unsecured, considered good

	 Loans and Advances to Related Parties - to Related Parties	 -	 1,689.87

	 Balances with government authorities - Direct taxes	 2,417.81	 2,870.85

	 Balances with government authorities - MAT Credit	 -	 4,185.16

	 Contract Assets	 175,327.07	 111,521.98

	 Advance to supplier	 27,137.59	 21,489.54

	 Others Advances	 56.49	 416.88

Total		  204,938.96	 142,174.28

Authorised

	 Equity shares of Rs.10 each	 1,25,00,000.00	 1,25,000.00	 1,25,00,000.00	 125,000.00

	  	 1,25,00,000.00	 1,25,000.00	 1,25,00,000.00	 1,25,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

	 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up	 1,24,96,000.00	 1,24,960.00	 1,24,96,000.00	 124,960.00

		   1,24,96,000.00	 1,24,960.00	 1,24,96,000.00	 1,24,960.00

No. of shares Rupees
Particulars

14. Equity share capital

RupeesNo. of shares

Footnotes :
i.	 The Company has not allotted any equity shares for consideration other than cash  nor bought back any shares during a period of five years immediately  
	 preceding the balance sheet date.  However, the Company during the year has Issue Bonus Share at the ratio of 4:1

ii.	 Equity shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares in the current years by capitalisation of Securities premium.

iii.	 The Company during the year has Issue right share

iv.	 Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
	 a)	 Equity shares

At the beginning of year 	  1,24,96,000.00	 1,24,960.00	 12,50,000.00	 12,500.00

Issued during the year	 -	 -	 1,12,46,000.00	 1,12,460.00

Outstanding at the end of year	  1,24,96,000.00 	  1,24,960.00 	 1,24,96,000.00 	  1,24,960.00

13. Other current assets

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares Rupees
Particulars

RupeesNo. of shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
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v. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share.  On a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote; 
and upon a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their share of the paid equity share capital of the Company. The Company in General 
meeting may declare dividends to be paid to members according to their respective rights, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the 
Board, but the Company in General Meeting may declare a smaller dividend.  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

vi. Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares of the aggregate shares in the company

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

	 -Mautik Ajit Tolia	 44,00,980	 35.22%	 44,00,980	 35.22%

	 -Bsel Infrastructure Realty Ltd	 9,60,000	 7.68%	 14,58,000	 11.67%

vii.	Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2024

Mautik Ajit Tolia	 44,00,980	 35.22%	 0.00%

Sukesh Devidas Motwani	 10,000	 0.20%	 0.00%

% of total sharesPromoter Name % Change during the yearNo. of Shares

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2023

Mautik Ajit Tolia	 44,00,980	 35.22%	 -33.18%

Sukesh Devidas Motwani	 25,000	 0.20%	 -0.20%

Total

No. of Share Held % of total holding
Particulars

% of total holdingNo. of Share Held

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

% of total sharesPromoter Name % Change during the yearNo. of Shares
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Share Premium	 68,110.00	 68,110.00

Retained Earnings	 77,114.50	 55,685.07

Total		 1,45,224.50	 1,23,795.07

Share Premium

	 Opening Balance	 68,110.00	 55,650.00

	 Add: On Premium on Right Issue	 -	 112,428.00

	 Less: On Bonus shares issued (Refer Note 35)	 -	 (99,968.00)

Closing Balance	 68,110.00	 68,110.00

Retained Earnings

	 Opening Balance	 55,685.08	 23,116.58

	 Net Profit / (Loss) during the year	 31,719.94	 32,568.50

	 Interim Dividend Paid	 (9,331.79)	 -

	 Income tax on Interim Dividend	  (958.73)	 -

		  77,114.50	 55,685.08

(ii) Other comprehensive income

	 As per last balance sheet	 -	 -

Closing Balance	 -	 -

15. Other Equity

(i)	 Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies  
	 Act, 2013.

(ii)	 General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

(iii)	 Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses, if any, made by the Company over the years.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Good

	 Term Loans

		  From Banks	 7,063.97	 11,875.19 

		  From Other Financial Institution	 701.14	 7,949.22

		  Less: Current maturities disclosed under “short-term borrowings” (Refer Note 18)	 (7,548.74)	 (16,656.15)

Total		 216.37	 3,168.26

16. Non-Current Borrowings

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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	 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Non Current Current

31/03/202331/03/2024 31/03/2023 31/03/2024
Particulars

17. Lease Liabilities

Lease Liailities	 6,438.95	 811.02	 2,417.29	 1,912.99

Total	 6,438.95	 811.02	 2,417.29	 1,912.99 

Secured, Considered Good

	 Cash Credit Facility from Banks (Refer Note i below)	 29,507.38	 21,952.66

Unsecured, Considered Good

	 Loans and advances from related parties -Repayable on Demand	 9,400.00	 8,700.00

	 Loans and advances from Others	 -	 90.40

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings

	 From Banks	 6,941.14	 9,401.30

	 From Other Financial Institution	 607.60	 7,254.86

Total			  46,456.12	 47,399.22

18. Borrowings

Note: i.	 Principal Security Hypothecation of book debts for cash credit limit of 300.00 Lakhs.  
	 Collateral Security Equitable mortgage of immovable property of the director

“Micro and Small Enterprises (Including acceptance) (Refer Note i & ii below)

Others (Refer Note i & ii below)	 1,24,339.39	 87,636.67

			   1,24,339.39	 87,636.67

19. Trade payables

Note:	 i.	 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues. This information, as required to be disclosed under the Micro  
		  Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of  
		  information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
	 ii.	 Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and credit term for same is generally in the range of 0 to 90 days

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024

Particulars

(i) MSME		  -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

(ii) Others		  47,019.97	 59,846.00	 11,591.60	 4,774.82	 1,107.00	 124,339.39

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

123
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees thousands, unless otherwise stated)



	

	

	

	

(i) MSME		  -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

(ii) Others		  62,629.27	 12,960.45	 9,308.17	 2,738.78	 -	 87,636.67

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2023

Particulars
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings	  107.36 	  282.26 

Total		   	 107.36 	  282.26

20. Other current financial liabilities

Statutory Dues	 2,586.59	 10,822.24

Expenses Payable	 20,270.14	 46,505.67 

Total			   22,856.73	 57,327.91

Provision for income tax	 7,453.13	 7,464.47

Total			   7,453.13	 7,464.47

Sale of services:

	 Commissioned television programs	 81,700.00	 252,026.36

	 Internet programs / Web Series	 289,474.05	 174,094.25

Total		 3,71,174.05	 4,26,120.61

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

21. Other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

22. Current Provisions

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

23. Revenue from operations

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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Interest on income tax refund	 -	 432.13

Interest on others	 419.14	 -

Liabilities / excess provisions written back	 556.67	 1,477.69

Finance  Income on Lease Deposit	 101.43	 58.03

Gain on derecognisation of Right of Use assets & Financial Liability	 140.64	 128.36

Other non oprating Income	 1,270.18	 -

Total	  		  2,488.05	 2,096.21

24. Other income

Artists, directors, writes, technicians & other professional fees	 200,342.05	 223,379.02

Shooting and location expenses	 39,391.71	 57,432.23

Set properties and equipment hire charges	 18,719.75	 12,453.67

Food and refreshments charges	 5,892.19	 10,961.21

Sound expense	 692.89	 6,748.14

Editing, Dubbing, Subtitling & Branding	 29,937.37	 34,861.01

Production expenses including purchase of costumes and dresses	 28,080.05	 35,372.44

Insurance expense	 1,103.90	 795.05

Other production expenses	 8,188.18	 5,717.80

Total			   3,32,348.08 	 3,87,720.58

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

25. Cost of Production Expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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Opening Balance

	 Television serials, internet series	 94,755.76	 58,707.63

Closing Balance

	 Television serials, internet series  	 1,29,755.76	 94,755.76

Total	 	 (35,000.00)	 (36,048.14)

Salaries and wages - Staff	 3,579.58	 3,042.29

Directors Remuneration	 6,750.00	 6,300.00

Staff welfare expenses	 391.38	 326.00

Total	  		  10,720.96 	 9,668.29 

Interest on Borrowings	 5,182.93	 5,283.34

Interest on lease liabilities	 389.79	 504.15

Loss on derecognisation of Financial Liability	 -	 20.23

Total			   5,572.72	 5,807.72

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4)	 93.26	 82.88

Amortization on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4)	 2,044.54	 1,867.18

Total			   2,137.80	 1,950.06 

26. Change in Inventories

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

27. Employee benefits expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

28. Finance cost

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

29. Depreciation and amortization expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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30. Other Expenses

Admin Expenses	 835.22	 210.06

Power and fuel	 214.10	 169.60

Rent Expenses	 1,120.92	 80.60

Rent Ind AS	 9.45	 -

Repairs and maintenance  Expenses	 474.36	 482.78

Communication expenses	 44.35	 -

Travelling Expenses	 1,905.50	 1,584.01

Printing and stationery	 79.84	 47.39

Advertising and sales promotion	 2,540.58	 1,084.88

Legal and professional fees	 4,243.94	  3,887.32

Auditors Remunaration (Refer note. 30.1)		

	 - As auditors - statutory audit	 600.00	 560.00

Share Issue Expenses	 -	 1,648.42

Sundry balance written off	 -	 2,939.34

Insurance Expenses	 -	 102.96

Miscellaneous expenses	 31.37	 401.84

Interest on TDS	 305.70	 373.92

Total	 		  12,405.33 	 13,573.12

Statutory Audit Fees	 500.00	 300.00

limited review report	 100.00	 100.00

Other Certification service		  160.00

Total			   600.00	 560.00

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

30.1. Payments to Auditors 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars
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I	 Disclosure under IND AS 24 - “Related-party Disclosures” are given below:

 	 Related Party Disclosure:

	 A.	 Relationships

	 (i)	 Enterprises where controls exits :

		  Subsidiairies / Associate / Joint venture

			   1.	 Phataka Films LLP (JV)

			   2.	 Vasudhara Media Venture Pvt. Ltd.

			   3.	 Dharmaveer Media City Pvt. Ltd.

			   4.	 Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP

	 B.	 Key management personnel (KMP)

	 		  1.	 Mautik Ajit Tolia	 Managing Director Chairperson

			   2	 Sukesh Devdas Motwani	 Whole-time director

			   3.	 Uma Krishnan	 Non-Executive - Independent Director

			   4.	 Nutan jha	 Non-Executive - Independent Director

			   5.	 Rahul Kanodia	 Non-Executive - Non-Independent Director (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)

			   6.	 Suneel Kumar Jain	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)

			   7.	 Niranjan Vidyasagar	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 06/10/2023)

			   8.	 Saloni Sunil Kapadia	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 21/07/2023)

			   9.	 Suyog Sanjay Jadhav	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 06/10/2023)

			   10.	Nirali Dishant Shah	 Company Secretary

			   11.	Ravi Bhavanishankar Bhatt	 Chief Financial Officer

	 C.	 Relatives of Key management personnel (KMP)

			   1.	 Ajit M. Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

			   2.	 Anjana Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

			   3.	 Nautam Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

	 D.	 Ventures in which KMPs have significant influence

			   1.	 Point 17 (Proprietorship Firm of Relative of KMP)

			   2.	 Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. (KMP holds significant influence)

	 E.	 Other Related Party

			   1. Guroudev Bhalla (Partner of Stepdown Subsidiairy)

31. Disclosure under IND AS 
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Statement of transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
Subsidiairies/ 

Associate/ 
 Joint venture

Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Relative of Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP) Other 

Related Party

Enterprise 
in which Key 

Management 
Personnel 
and KMP 

relative have 
significant 
influence

TotalSr. 
No.

	 1	 Remuneration/Salary  
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 3,300.00	 -	 -	 3,300.00 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 3,450.00	 -	 -	 3,450.00

	 2	 Reimbursement of Exp./Paid against services 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 4,152.89	 -	 -	 4,152.89

	 3	 Sales/Other Income 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 15,000.00	 -	 -	 -	 15,000.00 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 1,270.17	 -	 -	 -	 1,270.17

	 4	 Interest Income 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 64.88	 -	 -	 -	 64.88 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 354.24	 -	 -	 -	 354.24

	 5	 Loan/advance Taken 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 700.00	 -	 -	 700.00

	 6	 Loan/advance/Project Advance Given 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 40,949.40	 -	 -	 -	 40,949.40 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 14,964.56	 -	 -	 -	 14,964.56 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 811.00	 -	 -	 -	 811.00 
			   Guroudev Bhalla	 -	 -	 2,000.00	 -	 2,000.00

	 7	 Loan/advance/Project Advance Received Back 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 (39,794.00)	 -	 -	 -	 (39,794.00) 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 (18,955.18)	 -	 -	 -	 (18,955.18) 
			   Guroudev Bhalla-	 -	 (2,000.00)	 -	 (2,000.00)	

	 8	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 8.38	 -	 -	 -	 8.38 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. 	 -	 -	 -	 1,404.40	 1,404.40 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 17.41	 -	 -	 -	 17.41 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 3,990.62	 -	 -	 -	 3,990.62

	 9	 Amount Receivable / (Payable) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Unsecured Loan	 -	 (9,400.00)	 -	 -	 (9,400.00) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Expenses Payble	 -	 (277.04)	 -	 -	 (277.04) 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 (1,047.66)	 -	 -	 (1,047.66) 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 3,575.98	 -	 -	 -	 3,575.98 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd.	 -	 -	 -	 3,094.27	 3,094.27 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 18,572.81	 -	 -	 -	 18,572.81 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 869.39	 -	 -	 -	 869.39 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 165.38	 -	 -	 -	 165.38

	 F.	 Transactions with related parties
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Statement of transaction for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Associate/ 
Joint venture

Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Relative of Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Enterprise 
in which Key 

Management 
Personnel 
and KMP 

relative have 
significant 
influence

TotalSr. 
No.

	 1	 Remuneration/Salary 
	 		  Mautik Tolia	 -	 3,000.00	 -	 -	 3,000.00 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 3,300.00	 -	 -	 3,300.00

	 2	 Reimbursement of Exp./Paid against services 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 2,936.79	 -	 -	 2,936.79

	 3	 Loan/advance Taken 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 9,800.00	 -	 -	 9,800.00 
			   Ajit Tolia	 -		  1,000.00	 -	 1,000.00

	 4	 Loan/advance repaid 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 (1,100.00)	 -	 -	 (1,100.00) 
			   Ajit Tolia	 -	 -	 (1,000.00)	 -	 (1,000.00)

	 5	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 1.78	 -	 -	 -	 1.78

	 6	 Amount Receivable / (Payable) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Unsecured Loan	 -	 (8,700.00)	 -	 -	 (8,700.00) 
			   Mautik Tolia Expenses Paybale	 -	 (284.94)	 -	 -	 (284.94) 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 (1,179.51)	 -	 -	 (1,179.51) 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 3,567.60	 -	 -	 -	 3,567.60 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. 	 -	 -	 -	 1,689.88	 1,689.88
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32. Disclosure under IND AS - 33 “Earnings Per Share”:

Net Profit after taxation (As per the statement of profit and loss)	 Rs.	 31,719.94	 32,568.50

Actual No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year	 Nos.	 12,496.00	 12,496.00

Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year	 Nos.	 12,496.00	 12,183.70

Basic earnings per share	 Rs.	 2.54	 2.67

Diluted earnings per share	 Rs.	 2.54	 2.67

Nominal value per share	 Rs.	 10.00	 10.00

31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023Units

33. Disclosures pertaining to Ind AS 116 “Leases”

	 1. The Company as a lessee:

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected: 
	 Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term.

	 (b) Carrying value Right-of-use assets (RoU):

I.	 Gross carrying amount

	 As at April 1, 2022	 2,908.31 

		  Additions	 3,904.47 

		  Less: Disposal	 1,687.56

	 As at March 31, 2023	 5,125.22 

		  Additions	 9,039.74 

		  Less: Disposal	 5,125.22

	 As at March 31, 2024	 9,039.74

Description of Assets Right to Use Assets

II.	 Accumulated depreciation / amortisation

	 As at April 1, 2022	 1,784.91 

		  Charge for the year	 1,867.18 

		  Less: Disposal	 971.63

	 As at  March 31, 2023	 2,680.47 

		  Charge for the year	 2,044.54 

		  Less: Disposal	 4,473.91

	 As at  March 31, 2024	 251.10
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III.	Net carrying amount

		  As at March 31, 2023	 2,444.75

		  As at March 31, 2024	 8,788.64

(c) The details of the lease liabilities are as follows:

As at 1 April		  2,724.00	 1,348.99

	 Add: Accretion of interest		  389.79	 504.15

	 Add: Creation of lease liability		  9,039.74	 3,904.47

	 Less: Derecognition of lease liability during the year		  (811.02)	 (840.10)

	 Less: Payment of interest and principle as shown in the statement of cash flows under cash flows from financing activities	 (2,486.25)	 (2,193.50)

Net carrying amount as at 31 March		  8,856.27	 2,724.00

31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023

Lease liabilities (Current)		  2,417.29	 2,58,835.03

Lease liabilities (Non Current)		  6,438.95	 13,48,990.08

Net carrying amount as at 31 March		  8,856.24	 16,07,825.11

(d) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets		  2,044.54	 1,867.18

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use asset		  140.64	 128.36

Interest expense on lease liabilities		  389.79	 504.15

Loss on derecognisation of Financial Liability		  -	 20.23

31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023

35. Dividend paid and proposed

Intrim Dividend Rs: 0.50 on equity shares is paid on 21-Oct-2023 & further final dividend of Rs:0.50 paid on 28-Mar-2024 by the Board of Directors for the year 
ended 31 March 2024 and in Previous Year 31 March 2023, no dividend was paid.

34. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

31/03/2024
Particulars

31/03/2023
Rupees Rupees

Other production expenses		  -	 311.65
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Non-Current

Financial Assets 

	 Investments in Subsidiairies/Associate/Joint venture		  2,90.00/-	 -	 - 

	 Loans		  8,712.47/-	 -	 - 

	 Other non-current financial assets		  2,617.98/-	 -	 -

Financial Liabilities 

	 Borrowings		  216.37/-	 -	 - 

	 Lease Liabilities		  6,438.95/-	 -	 -

Current Financial Assets 

	 Trade receivables		  83,309.63/-	 -	 - 

	 Cash and cash equivalents		  5,557.95/-	 -	 -

Current Financial Liabilities 

	 Borrowings		  46,456.12/-	 -	 - 

	 Lease Liabilities		  2,417.29/-	 -	 - 

	 Trade payables		  1,24,339.39/-		   

	 Other financial Liabilities		  107.36/-	 -	 -

Measured at :

FVTPL FV OCI
Particulars

Amortized Cost

37. Financial risk management

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior management 
has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk  are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

	 i.	 Market Risks

		  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk  
		  comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity risk. 

		  The company is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk. Moreover, the company has no investments in equity shares thus the company is not  
		  exposed to price risk also.

		  Interest rate Risk

		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  
		  In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, management of  
		  the Company performs a corporate interest rate risk.

		  According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming  
		  the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

	 ii.	 Credit Risks

		  Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 	contract, leading to a financial loss. The  
		  company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its loans and advances and other financial  
		  instruments.

		  Trade receivables 

		  Customer credit risk is managed by each Project wise subject to the company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk  
		  management.

		  The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan & advances customers wise based on historical trend. Loss rates are based  
		  on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no provision  
		  considered.

36. Financial Assets & Liabilities
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	 iii.	Liquidity Risk

		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.  The company’s approach to  
		  managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this,  
		  management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the company’s credit  
		  rating and impair investor confidence.

		  The following table shows the maturity analysis of the company’s financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date:

Borrowings	 46,456.12	 216.37	 46,672.49

Lease Liabilities	 2,417.29	 6438.95	 8,856.24

Trade Payable	 1,24,339.39	 -	 1,24,339.39

Other financial liabilities	 107.36	 -	 107.36

Statutory Dues	 2,586.59	 -	 2,586.59

Expenses Payable	 20,270.14	 -	 20,270.14

More than 12 monthsParticular TotalLess than 12 months

	 iv.	 Capital Management

		  The Company aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to our  
		  shareholders.

		  The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and  
		  day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions  
		  and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company does not distribute dividends  
		  to the shareholders.

38.	 To the best of information of the management, the disclosure requirements to be given pursuant to Gazette notification for amendments in Schedule III  
	 to the Companies Act, 2013 dated 24 March 2021 effective from 01 April 2021 pertaining to following matters are either disclosed or not applicable to  
	 the Group.

		  (i)	 During the year, the Group have not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 
			   2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act,1956.

		  (ii)	 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group and its associates for holding any benami property under the Benami  
			   Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

		  (iii)	 The Group have not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

		  (iv)	 There are no charges or satisfaction of charges yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

		  (v)	 There are no transactions related to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the tax  
			   assessments under the Income Tax Act,1961.

		  (vi)	 The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

		  (vii)	 As per Clause (87) of section 2 and section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Group is in compliance with the  
			   number of layers as permitted under the said provisions.

		  (viii)	 Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

			   (a)	 No fund (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds  
				    or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity  
				    (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether , directly  
				    or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate  
				    Beneficiaries”) or provided any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (b)	 No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Group from any person or entity, including  
				    foreign entity (“funding parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly  
				    or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties (“Ultimate  
				    Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries & associates (The Holding company, its 
subsidiaries and its associates together referred to as ‘the Group’)  comprising 
of the consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and consolidated Statement 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of 
other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial 
information of associate the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Company and its associate as at 31 March 2024, their 
consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in paragraph 
(a) of Auditor’s Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 
current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and  
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in  
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s  
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated  
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 
these Consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirement of the 
Companies Act,2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of 
the Company are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
the selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board 
of Directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company included in the Group are 
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company 
and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated  
Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

Consolidated Independent Auditor’s Report
To, 
The Board of Directors of Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements



but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated  
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated  
	 financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform  
	 audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence  
	 that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.   
	 The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud  
	 is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
	 collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
	 override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in  
	 order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the  
	 circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we  
	 are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company  
	 has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating  
	 effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the  
	 reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures  
	 made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going  
	 concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,  
	 whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that  
	 may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going  
	 concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required  
	 to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the  
	 consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to  
	 modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence  
	 obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or  
	 conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going  
	 concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  
	 consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and  
	 whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying  
	 transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial  
	 information of the 35 entities or business activities within the Group  
	 and its associates and jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on  
	 the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the  
	 direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial  
	 statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial  
	 statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other  

	 entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have  
	 been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible  
	 for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried  
	 out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and 
such other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we 
identify during our audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in 
respect of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of 
Rs.4,21,61,070 as at March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs.1,70,36,520 for 
the year ended on that date. Further, we did not audit the financial statement 
of the one Associate included in the consolidated financial statements 
which includes share of Net loss of Rs 7,790/- for the year ended March 31, 
2024 as considered in the statement. These financial statements and other 
financial information have been audited by other auditors and such financial 
statements, other financial information and auditor’s report have been 
furnished to us by the management of the Holding Company. Our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amount 
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and 
our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as 
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of such 
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the 
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and audited/
unaudited financial statements and financial information furnished by the 
management.

Consolidated Independent Auditor’s Report
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1)	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on  
	 the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate  
	 financial statements and other financial information of the associates,  
	 we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

	 a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations  
		  which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the  
		  purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to  
		  preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have  
		  been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

	 c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of  
		  Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with  
		  by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account  
		  maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated  
		  financial statements; 

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply  
		  with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors  
		  of the Holding Company and taken on record by the Board of  
		  Directors of the Holding Company none of the directors of the  
		  Group companies and its associate covered under the Act, are  
		  disqualified as on 31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director  
		  in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over  
		  financial reporting of the Holding Company and its associate  
		  company covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness  
		  of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’; 

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s  
		  Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and  
		  Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the  
		  best of our information and according to the explanations given  
		  to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other  
		  auditors on separate financial statements / consolidated financial  
		  statements as also the other financial information of the associates: 

		  (i)	 The consolidated financial statements does not have any pending  
			   litigations which would impact its financial position of the Group.

		  (ii)	 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including  
			   derivative contracts hence the question of making a provision  
			   for any resulting material foreseeable losses does not arise; and; 

		  (iii)	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred  
			   to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

		  (iv)	 a)	 The respective Managements of the Company and its  
				    subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,  
				    whose financial statements have been audited under the  

				    Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their nowledge  
				    and belief, no funds (which are material either individually  
				    or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested  
				    (either from  borrowed funds or share remium or any other  
				    sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such  
				    subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, outside the  
				    Group, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with  
				    the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,  
				    that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest  
				    in other persons or entities identified in any manner  
				    whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such  
				    subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any  
				    guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate  
				    Beneficiaries. 

			   b)	 The respective Managements of the Company and its  
				    subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose  
				    financial statements have been audited under the Act, have  
				    represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and  
				    belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in  
				    the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of  
				    such subsidiaries from any person or entity, including foreign  
				    entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether  
				    recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of  
				    such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in  
				    other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever  
				    by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
				    or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the  
				    Ultimate Beneficiaries

			   c)	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered  
				    reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed  
				    by us on the Company and its subsidiaries which are  
				    companies incorporated in India whose financial statements  
				    have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our  
				    notice that has caused us to believe that the representations  
				    under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under  
				    (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

		  (v)	 As stated in note 35 of consolidated financial statements, the  
			   interim dividend declared and paid by the Holding company  
			   during the year and until date of audit report is in accordance  
			   with section 123 of the Act. The final dividend paid by the  
			   Holding company during the year, in respect of the same declared  
			   for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act  
			   to the extent it applies to payment of dividend. 

		  (vi)	 Based on our examination which included test checks, performed  
			   by us on the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India,  
			   except for the instances mentioned below, have used accounting  
			   softwares for maintaining their respective books of account for the  
			   financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of  
			   recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated  
			   throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the  
			   softwares. 
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		  In the case of Holding company, Feature of recording audit trail (edit  
		  log) facility has been enabled from 1st August, 2023 for all relevant  
		  transactions. Further, during the course of audit, we have not come  
		  across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

		  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is  
		  applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the  
		  Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit  
		  trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not  
		  applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. Further, while  
		  reporting aforesaid details for 2 subsidiaries we have relied solely on  
		  the reports of such other auditors.

2)	 With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and  
	 paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”)  
	 issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the  
	 Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, Our  
	 opinion and conclusion on the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries &  
	 Associate is solely based on the Audited Financial Statements furnished  
	 to us by the management and the procedures performed by us as stated  
	 under Auditor’s responsibilities as above. It is observed that no  
	 Subsidiaries & associates which are part of consolidated financial  

	 statement are required to furnish Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,  
	 2020 (“CARO”). Hence, clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to  
	 the Company.

3)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s  
	 Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the  
	 Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and  
	 according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the  
	 Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the  
	 provisions of section 197 of the Act. For our opinion and conclusion on  
	 the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries & Associate, we have relied solely  
	 on the reports of such other auditors.

	 For S A R A & Associates 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 Firm Registration No.120927W

	 Alok Bairagra 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No. 105153 
	 Mumbai  
	 Date : 30th May, 2024 
	 UDIN: 24105153BKDIOI6511
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Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) and its associate (the 
Holding Company and its associate together referred to as the ‘Group’) as at 
and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Group, which is the under the Act, as 
at that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of Group, covered under the Act, are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the ‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s 
business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Group, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by 
the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence 
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other 
Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Group as aforesaid. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and 
procedures that 

(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,  
	 accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the  
	 assets of the company; 

(2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as  
	 necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance  
	 with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts  
	 and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance  
	 with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection  
	 of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets  
	 that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over  
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 
2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter 

The consolidated financial statements also include Subsidiaries & associate, 
which are Private Limited Companies & LLP’s, whose internal financial 
controls over financial reporting have not been audited by us. Therefore, the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to such 
subsidiaries and associate based solely on the reports of such other auditors. 

For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner 
Membership No. 105153 
Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024. 
UDIN: 24105153BKDIOI6511
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at March 31, 2024

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

NoteParticulars

	 I. ASSETS
		  Non-current assets
		  (a) 	 Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
			   (i)	 Property, plant and equipment	 4A	  597.34 	  391.04 
			   (ii)	 Intangible Assets	 4A	  1,497.50 	  1,497.50 
			   (iii)	Right to Use Assets	 4B	  8,788.64 	  2,444.75 
		  (b)	 Financial assets
			   (i)	 Investments	 5	  80.08 	  87.88 
			   (ii)	 Loans	 6	  10,144.24 	  3,567.60 
			   (iii)	Other non-current financial assets	 7	  4,095.48 	  2,746.64 
		  (c) 	 Deferred tax assets	 8	  529.63 	  1,232.32 
		  (d)	 Other non-current assets	 9	  54,173.57 	  30,158.94 
		  Total non-current assets		   79,906.48 	  42,126.67 
		  Current assets
			   (a) 	Inventories	 10	  1,63,105.76 	  94,755.76 
			   (b) 	Financial assets			 
			   (i)	 Trade receivables	 11	  1,40,183.01 	  1,31,817.03 
			   (ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents	 12	  8,197.87 	  43,871.99 
			   (c)	 Other current assets	 13	  2,25,584.89 	  1,42,174.29 
		  Total current assets		   5,37,071.53 	  4,12,619.07 
		  Total Assets		   6,16,978.01 	  4,54,745.74 
	 II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
		  Equity 			 
			   (a) 	Equity share capital 	 14	  1,24,960.00 	  1,24,960.00 
			   (b) 	Other equity	 15	  1,47,425.55 	  1,23,782.95 
				    NCI		   1,567.95 	
		  Total equity		   273,953.50 	  248,742.95 
		  Non-current liabilities
			   Financial Liabilities
			   (i)	 Borrowings	 16	  216.37 	  3,168.26 
			   (ii)	 Lease Liabilities	 17	  6,438.95 	  811.02 
		  Total non-current liabilities		   6,655.32 	  3,979.28 
		  Current liabilities
		  (a) Financial liabilities			 
			   (i)	 Borrowings	 18	  50,064.15 	  47,399.21 
			   (ii)	 Lease Liabilities	 17	  2,417.30 	  1,912.99 
			   (iii)	Trade payables	 19	  2,16,908.33 	  87,636.67 
			   (iv)	Other financial liabilities	 20	  113.84 	  282.26 
		  (b) 	 Other current liabilities	 21	  57,745.53 	  57,327.92 
	  	 (c) 	 Provisions	 22	  9,120.04 	  7,464.46 
	  	 (d) 	 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
		  Total current liabilities		   3,36,369.19 	  2,02,023.51 
		  Total liabilities		   3,43,024.51 	  2,06,002.79 
		  Total Equity and liabilities		   6,16,978.01 	  4,54,745.74 

Significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements ref. 1 to 41
The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W
Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOI6511

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208
Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director 
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400
Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Income: 
	 Revenue from operations	 23	  6,39,991.09 	  4,26,120.61 
	 Other Income	 24	  940.97 	  2,096.21

Total income		   6,40,932.06 	  4,28,216.82

	 Expenses: 
	 Cost of production	 25	  6,25,850.55 	  3,87,720.68 
	 Changes in inventories	 26	  (68,350.00)	  (36,048.14) 
	 Employee Benefits Expenses	 27	  10,827.42 	  9,668.29  
	 Finance Cost	 28	  7,208.00 	  5,807.72  
	 Depreciation and amortization expenses	 29	  2,253.92 	  1,950.06  
	 Other Expenses	 30	  12,269.80 	  13,573.12 

Total expenses		   5,90,059.69 	  3,82,671.73 

Profit before Exceptional Item and Tax		   50,872.37 	  45,545.09 

	 Exceptional Item		  -	 -

	 (Loss) on Share of Associate		   (7.79)	  (5.39)

Profit before Tax 		  50,864.58 	  45,539.70 

Tax Expenses:	

	 - Current tax	 8	  (9,120.04)	  (7,465.37) 
	 - Tax Expenses of Earlier years		  -	  (530.94) 
	 - MAT Credit Entitlement 		   (5,601.42)	  (5,010.78) 
	 - Deferred tax 		   (702.70)	  29.00 

Profit for the year (A)		  35,440.42 	  32,561.61

	 Owner		   33,921.45  
	 NCI		   1,518.95 

	 Other Comprehensive Income 
	 (i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 
	 Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations		   -	  - 
	 Income tax relating to above		   -	  -

Total Other Comprehensive Income (B)		   -	  -

Total Comprehensive Profit for the year (A+B)		   35,440.42 	  32,561.61 

Earnings per equity share Basic & Diluted (of face Value Rs. 10 each)	 32	  2.84 	  2.67 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024

For the year ended  
31 March 2023

Rupees Rupees
NoteParticulars

Significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements ref. 1 to 41
The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W
Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOI6511

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208
Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director 
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400
Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2024
For the year ended  

31 March 2023

Rupees Rupees

	  A) 	 Cash flow from operating activities:

			   Profit for the period	  50,872.37 	  45,545.07 

			   Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities:		      

			   Depreciation and amortization	  2,253.92 	  1,950.06 

			   Finance cost	  5,640.00 	  5,807.72 

		  Changes in assets and liabilities

			   Changes in Inventories	  (68,350.00)	  (36,048.14)

			   Trade receivables and unbilled revenue	  (97,424.00)	  (1,71,328.46)

			   Loans, other financial assets and other assets	  (33,675.00)	  30,130.69 

			   Trade payables	  1,29,325.00 	  33,589.44 

			   Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions	  4,163.35 	  28,527.87 

		  Cash generated from operations	  (7,194.36)	  (61,825.75)

			   Income taxes paid	  (12,094.00)	  (7,390.72)

		  Net cash generated by operating activities	  (19,288.36)	  (69,216.47)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2024
For the year ended  

31 March 2023

Rupees Rupees

	  B) 	 Cash flow from investing activities:

		   	 Property, plant and equipment	  (416.00)	 -

			   Investment in Non Current Assest	  (51.00)	  (700.59)

		  Net cash generated from investing activities	  (467.00)	  (700.59)

	  C) 	 Cash flow from financing activities:

			   Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings	  533.00 	  11,889.31 

			   Proceeds from long term borrowings	  2,132.00 	  -   

			   Repayment of long term borrowings	  (2,952.50)	  (14,340.17)

			   Dividend	  (10,291.44)	 -

			   Interest paid	  (5,639.80)	  (5,807.72)

			   Right Shares issued 	  -   	  1,12,460.00 

			   Share Issued	  300.00 	 -

		  Net cash generated from financing activities	  (15,918.74)	  1,04,201.42 

		  Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)	  (35,674.10)	  34,284.37 

		  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period	  43,871.96 	  9,587.60 

		  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	  8,197.86 	  43,871.96 

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOI6511

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208

Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director 
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400

Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024
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Reserves & 
Surplus

Particulars
Equity 
Share 

Capital

Items of Other 
Comprehensive

Income (OCI)
Total

Retained 
earnings

Securities 
premium

Remeasurements 
of defined 

benefit plans

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance as at 1 April 2023	  12,500.00 	  23,109.84 	  55,650.00 	  -   	  91,259.84 

 	 Right Issue made during the year 	  12,492.00 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  12,492.00 

 	 Security premium on share issue during the year 	  -   	  -   	  1,12,428.00 	  -   	  1,12,428.00 

	  Bonus Share Issue during the year 	  99,968.00 	  -   	  (99,968.00)	  -   	  -   

	  Interim Dividend Paid  	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

 	 Profit for the year 	  -   	  32,567.00 	  -   	  -   	  32,567.00 

 	 Other comprehensive income for the year 	  -   	  (5.39)	  -   	  -   	  (5.39)

Balance as at 31 March 2023	  1,24,960.00 	  55,671.45 	  68,110.00 	  -   	  2,48,741.45 

 	 Right Issue made during the year 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

 	 Security premium on share issue during the year 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

	  Bonus Share Issue during the year 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

 	 Interim Dividend Paid  	  -   	  (10,229.86)	  -   	  -   	  (10,229.86)

 	 Profit for the year 	  -   	  35,440.42 	  -   	  -   	  35,440.42 

	  Other comprehensive income for the year 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2024	  1,24,960.00 	  80,882.01 	  68,110.00 	  -   	  2,73,952.01 

The above accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
Membership No. 105153 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024 
UDIN No.: 24105153BKDIOI6511

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208

Mautik Tolia	 Sukesh Motwani 
Managing Director	 Director 
DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400

Nirali Shah	 Ravi Bhatt 
Company Secretary	 CFO
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2024
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1	 Background
	 Bodhi Tree Multimedia Ltd. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on July 4,  
	 2013 under the Companies Act, 1956  and is listed on BSE Limited (BSE)  
	 and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) in India. ‘The  
	 company has received migration approval from NSE i.e. the company has  
	 been migrated from NSE emerged platform to mainboard platform of the  
	 exchange (NSE & BSE) w.e.f 15th February 2023 Accordingly the securities  
	 of the company are listed and traded on mainboard of NSE & BSE from  
	 15th February 2023. The Company has established itself as a leader in  
	 television content in India particularly for Hindi language content and  
	 has also successfully ventured in the regional television content market  
	 and Internet based program. The registered office and principal place of  
	 business of the Company is at Andheri (West), Mumbai.

	 The company was originally incorporated as Bodhi Tree Multimedia  
	 Pvt. Ltd on 4th July, 2013 under Companies Act, 1956. The copany has been  
	 converted in to Public Limited Company under Section 18 of the  
	 Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. 01.09.2020 and the name of the company has  
	 beenchanged into Bodhi Tree Multimedia Ltd. w.e.f 01.09.2020

	 He separate financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “Financial  
	 Statements”) of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were  
	 authorized for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on  
	 30th May 2024.

2	 Significant Accounting Policies
	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in  
	 the preparation of the Financial Statements.

A. 	 Basis of preparation and other significant accounting policies

	 (i)	 Basis of preparation of financial statements
		  The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all  
		  material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)  
		  as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read  
		  with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015  
		  (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules  
		  framed thereunder and guidelines issued by the Securities  and  
		  Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The financial statements have been  
		  prepared under the historical cost convention and on the accrual  
		  basis.

	 (ii)	 Rounding of amounts
		  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been rounded  
		  off to the nearest thousands with two decimals thereof, unless  
		  otherwise stated. Zero “0.00” denotes amount less than 5,00.

	 (iii)	 Current and non-current classification
		  Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to realize or  
		  settle within twelve months after the balance sheet date. Deferred  
		  tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and  
		  liabilities.Based on the nature of products/services and the time  
		  between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation  
		  in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained it’s  
		  operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non- 
		  current classification of assets and liabilities.

B.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 (i)	 All Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost  
		  less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,  
		  if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable  
		  to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the  
		  asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as  
		  appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits  
		  associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of  
		  the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any  
		  component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised  
		  when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are  
		  charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period  
		  in which they are incurred.

	 (ii)	 Right-of-use (ROU) assets are stated at cost, less accumulated  
		  depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The carrying amount of  
		  ROU assets is adjusted for remeasurement of lease liability, if any, in  
		  future. Cost of ROU assets comprises the amount of initial  
		  measurement of lease liability, lease payments made before the  
		  commencement date (net of incentives received), nitial direct costs  
		  and present value of estimated costs of dismantling and restoration.

C.	 Intangible Assets
	 Intangible assets under development comprises cost of intangible assets  
	 and related expenses that are not yet ready for their intended use at the  
	 reporting date.

D.	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

	 (i)	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate  
		  the cost of the asset, net of their residual values, if any, over their  
		  estimated useful lives which are in accordance with the useful lives  
		  prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

		  The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the  
		  asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,  
		  and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.  
		  An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its  
		  recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is higher than its  
		  estimated recoverable amount.

		  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a tangible  
		  assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal  
		  proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as  
		  income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (ii)	 Leasehold building and leasehold improvements are amortized over  
		  the period of lease or useful life of assets, whichever is lower.

	 (iii)	 ROU assets are depreciated on straight line basis from the  
		  commencement date to the end of useful life of asset or lease  
		  term whichever is earlier

E.	 Derecognition of property, plant and equipment / intangible  
	 assets
	 The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment /  
	 intangible assets / investment property is derecognized on disposal  
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	 or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  
	 The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property,  
	 plant and equipment / intangible assets / investment property is  
	 measured as the difference between the net disposal in proceeds and  
	 the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the statement of  
	 profit and loss when the item is derecognized.

F.	 Lease
	 Lease liability associated with assets taken on lease (except  
	 short-term and low value assets) is measured at the present value of  
	 lease payments to be made. Lease payments are discounted using the  
	 interest rate implicit in the lease. Lease payments comprise fixed  
	 payments in relation to the lease (less lease incentives receivable),  
	 variable lease payments, if any and other amounts (residual value  
	 guarantees, penalties, etc.) to be payable in future in relation to the  
	 lease arrangement. Lease liability is subsequently measured by  
	 increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease  
	 liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment  
	 made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any  
	 reassessment or modification.

G.	 Segments reporting:
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the  
	 reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief  
	 operating decision maker of the Company consists of the managing  
	 director, chief executive officer and chief financial officer which assesses  
	 the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes  
	 strategic decisions.

H.	 Foreign Currency Translation:
	 (i)	 Functional and presentation currency

		  Items included in the financial statements of the company are  
		  measured using the currency of the primary economic  
		  environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).  
		  These financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),  
		  which is company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 (ii)	 Transactions and balances

		  Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional  
		  currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign  
		  exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such  
		  transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and  
		  liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange  
		  rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.  
		  Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in  
		  foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date  
		  when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are  
		  measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not  
		  retranslated.

I.	 Inventories ( Content under development): 
	 Inventories of television programs and web series (content) under  
	 development are stated at lower or unamortized cost of production  
	 (including attributable / allocable production costs and expenses) or  
	 net realizable value. Cost of content production includes costs incurred  
	 during the conceptualization and pre-production phases also and are  
	 amortized on commercialization of such content.

J.	 Financial Instruments
	 Financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of  
	 one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

	 Initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair  
	 value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition  
	 or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial  
	 assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are  
	 added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or  
	 financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction  
	 costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial  
	 liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in  
	 the statement of profit and loss.

	 I.	 Financial assets

		  A)	 Subsequent measurement 
			   Financial assets are classified into the specified categories  
			   i.e. amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and  
			   fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The  
			   classification depends on the Company’s business model for  
			   managing the financial assets and the contractual terms  
			   of cash flows.

		  B)	 Derecognition of financial assets
			   “A financial asset is derecognized only when 
			   (a)	 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash  
				    flows from thefinancial asset or the rights have expired or 
			   (b)	 The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the  
				    cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a  
				    contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or  
				    more recipients in an arrangement. 

			   Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company  
			   evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and  
			   rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases,  
			   the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not  
			   transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of  
			   the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

			   Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor  
			   retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the  
			   financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the  
			   Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where  
			   the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is  
			   continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing  
			   involvement in the financial asset.”

148
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees thousands, unless otherwise stated)



		  C)	 Impairment of financial assets
			   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected  
			   credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised  
			   cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology 

			   applied depends on whether there has been a significant  
			   increase in credit risk.

	 II.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

		  Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as  
		  either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the  
		  substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of  
		  a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument  
		  is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an  
		  entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity shares are classified  
		  as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new  
		  shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

		  A)	 Subsequent measurement

			   Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

			   Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized  
			   cost using the effective interest rate (EIR). Gains and losses  
			   are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the  
			   liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR  
			   amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking  
			   into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee  
			   or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization  
			   is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

		  B)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities
			   A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under  
			   the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an  
			   existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same  
			   lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an  
			   existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange  
			   or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original  
			   liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in  
			   the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of  
			   profit and loss.

K.	 Revenue Recognition:
	 The Company derives revenue from producing television programs,  
	 Internet series to its customers. he Company identifies and evaluate  
	 each erformance obligation under the contract. Revenue ecognition is  
	 based on the delivery of performance bligations and an assessment of  
	 when control is ransferred to the customer. Revenue is recognized ither  
	 when the performance obligation in the ontract has been performed  
	 (‘point in time’ ecognition) or ‘over time’ as control of the erformance  
	 obligation is transferred to the customer.

	 Revenue generated from the commissioned television programs and  
	 Internet series produced for broadcasters is recognized over the period of  
	 time over the contract period.

	 Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected on behalf of  
	 the government.

L.	 Interest and Dividend Income:

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is  
	 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the  
	 amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued  
	 on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the  
	 effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly  
	 discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the  
	 financial asset to that asset’s carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when  
	 the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the  
	 economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company,  
	 and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

M.	 Income Tax:

	 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on  
	 the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income  
	 tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities  
	 attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

	 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws  
	 enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in  
	 the country where the Company generates taxable income.  
	 Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns  
	 with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is  
	 subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on  
	 the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on  
	 temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and  
	 liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.  
	 Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have  
	 been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting  
	 period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax  
	 asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

	 Deferred Tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary  
	 differences, unused tax losses and carry forward tax credits only if it  
	 is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise  
	 those temporary differences, tax losses and tax credits.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally  
	 enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when  
	 the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.  
	 Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a  
	 legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net  
	 basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

N.	 Cash and cash equivalents:
	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call  
	 with financial institutions, other short- term, highly liquid investments  
	 with original maturities of three months or less that are readily  
	 convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an  
	 insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of Cash Flow  
	 Statement, Cash and cash equivalents are considered net of outstanding  
	 overdrafts, if any, as they are considered an integral part of Company’s  
	 cash management.
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O.	 Trade receivable:
	 Trade receivable are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently  
	 measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less  
	 provision for impairment.

P.	 Impairment of assets:
	 Non-Financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or  
	 changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not  
	 be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by  
	 which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  
	 The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs  
	 of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,  
	 assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately  
	 identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash  
	 inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).  
	 Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment  
	 are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each  
	 reporting period.

	 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount  
	 of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised  
	 estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying  
	 amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been  
	 determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or  
	 cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is  
	 recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Q.	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

	 The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal  
	 or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable  
	 that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be  
	 required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation  
	 can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future  
	 operating losses.

	 If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted  
	 using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks  
	 specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the  
	 provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

	 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible  
	 obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not  
	 require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the  
	 amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there  
	 is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which  
	 likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is  
	 remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements,  
	 however they are disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits is  
	 probable. When the realization of income is virtually certain, then  
	 the related asset is no longer a contingent asset and is recognised  
	 as an asset.	

R.	 Earnings Per Share:
	 (i)	 Basic earnings per share
		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

		  The profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted  
		  average number of equity shares outstanding during the  
		  financial year
	 (ii)	 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the  
		  determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

		  -	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing 
			   costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
		  -	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares 
			   that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion 
			   of all dilutive potential equity shares.

S.	 Borrowing cost:

	 Interest and other costs in connection with the borrowing of the  
	 funds to the extent related / attributed to the acquisition / construction  
	 of qualifying fixed assets are capitalised up to the date when such  
	 assets are ready for its intended use and all other borrowing costs are  
	 recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.	 Critical Estimates and Judgments

	 The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting  
	 estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.  
	 This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher  
	 degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to  
	 be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning  
	 out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information  
	 about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant  
	 notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each  
	 affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

	 A.	 Estimated useful life of Tangible Assets:
		  The Company reviews the useful lives and carrying amount of fixed  
		  sets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in  
		  change in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods

	 B.	 Estimation of Current Tax Expense and Income Tax Payable /  
		  Receivable:
		  The calculation of Company’s tax charge necessarily involves a degree  
		  of estimation and judgement in respect of certain items whose tax  
		  treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been  
		  reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a  
		  formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items  
		  may give rise to material adjustment to taxable profits/losses.

	 C.	 Estimation of Contingent Liabilities:
		  The company exercises judgment in measuring and recognising  
		  provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities which is related  
		  to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgment is  
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		  necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will  
		  succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range  
		  of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this  
		  evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the  
		  originally estimated as provision or contingent liability.

	 D.	 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:
		  The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is  
		  probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future  
		  against which the reversal of temporary differences will be offset. In  
		  assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company  
		  considers the extent to which it is probable that the deferred tax  
		  asset will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax  
		  assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits  
		  during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss  
		  carry-forwards become deductible. The Company considers the  
		  expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable  
		  income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

	 E.	 Impairment of Trade Receivables:
		  Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue  
		  earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company  

		  through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously  
		  monitoring  the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company  
		  grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company uses  
		  expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The  
		  company uses a provision matrix and forward-looking information  
		  and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the  
		  financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for  
		  trade receivables.

		  Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based  
		  on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of  
		  future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and  
		  that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

	 F.	 Impairment assessment of Investments carried at cost:
		  The Company conducts impairment review of the investments in  
		  subsidiaries, Joint venture & associates whenever events or changes in  
		  circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be  
		  recoverable or tests for impairment annually. Determining whether  
		  an asset is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable  
		  amount, which requires the Company to estimate the value in use  
		  which is based on future cash flows and suitable discount rate in order  
		  to calculate the present value.
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As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees

Particulars
As at 

31 March 2023

5. Non-current investments

	 a)	 Investments measured at cost

		  i) Investments in Partnership Firm

		  Investment in Limited Liability Partnership Firm	  80.08 	  87.88 

		  *Name of Firm	 Pathka Films LLP 
		  Total Capital	  Rs. 3,00,000

	 Partner Name	 Partner Share

Bodhi Tree Multimedia Ltd	 33.33%

The Purple Production  LLP	 33.33%

Raju Udupa 		  33.33%

		  Footnote: Aggregate value of unquoted investments held by the  
		  Company is Rs. 100,000 (Previous year: Rs. 100,000)

		  Total	  80.08 	  87.88 

	 Unsecured, Considered good to Related Parties* (Refer Note 31)	  10,144.24 	  3,567.60

	 Total	  10,144.24 	  3,567.60 

7. Other non-Current financial assets

6. Non-Current Loan

	 Unsecured, Considered good Security Deposit	  4,095.48 	  2,746.64 

	 Total	  4,095.48 	  2,746.64
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8.	 Deferred tax assets
		  (a)	 The major components of income tax are as under:
			   Income tax related to items recognized directly in the statement of profit and loss during the year

As at 
31 March 2024

Rupees Rupees
Particulars

As at 
31 March 2023

	 Current Tax 	  9,120.04 	  7,464.47 

 	 Adjustment for current tax of prior periods	  -   	  530.94 

 	 MAT Credit Entitlement	  5,601.42 	  5,010.18 

 	 Total current tax expenses 	  14,721.46 	  13,005.59 

 		  Deferred tax charge / (credit) 	  702.70 	  (29.00)

 	 Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 	 15,424.16 	  12,976.59 

	 (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate 

	  Accounting profit / (loss) before tax

	  Income tax

		  Statutory income tax  	 14,336.94 	  12,670.65 

 		  Tax effect of earlier years. 	  -   	  530.94 

 		  Net Tax effect on deductible and non-deductible expenses. 	  1,087.22 	  (224.99)

	 Tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss	  15,424.16 	  12,976.59 

Note: The statutory tax rate is the standard effective corporate income tax rate in India. The tax rate for deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 is 
27.82% (2024: 27.82%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so.
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Balance sheet Recognized in the statement  
of profit and loss

31/03/202331/03/2024 31/03/2023 31/03/2024

(c) Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deductible temporary differences

	 Lease Liabilty is not deductible in Income Tax.	  2,463.81 	  757.82 	  (1,705.99)	  (382.53)

	 Share Issue Expenses is 1/5th each year allowable.	  906.48 	  1,208.64 	  302.16 	  (14.77)

Taxable Temporary Difference 

	 Depreciation and amortization on property,	   2,840.67 	  651.20 	  (2,189.47)	  (382.86) 

	 plant, equipment and intangible assets.

	 Change in Effective Interest rate on change on Term loan.	 -	  82.94 	  82.94 	  14.55 

			   529.63 	  1,232.32 	  702.70 	  -29.00 

(d) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 31/03/202331/03/2024

Opening balance			   1,203.33 	  1,697.84 

Deferred tax credit / (charge) recognized in			    (702.70)	  (494.51)

- Statement of profit and loss

- Other comprehensive income			    500.63 	  1,203.33 

9. Other non-current assets

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Other Advances (Unsecured)

Related parties

Others	 -	 considered good	  50,750.00 	  28,150.00 

	 -	 considered doubtful

Balances with government authorities - MAT Credit Entitlement	  480.51 	  1,896.77 

Deferred Rent Expenses	  2,943.06 	  112.17 

IPO Expenses Deffered

Total			    54,173.57 	  30,158.94 
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Less than 6 months

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

	
12. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Inventory : Work-in-Progress	  1,63,105.76 	  94,755.76 

Total			    1,63,105.76 	  94,755.76 

- Considered good	  1,40,183.01 	  1,31,817.03 

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- credit impaired

			    1,40,183.01 	  1,31,817.03 

Less: Allowances for significant increase in credit risk

Less: Allowances for credit impaired receivables

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss

Total			    1,40,183.01 	  1,31,817.03 

(i) Undisputed Trade	  1,35,814.26 	  1,699.43 	  -   	  -   	  2,669.32 	  1,40,183.01  

receivables -considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade	  1,29,147.71 	  -   	  -   	  2,669.32 	  -   	  1,31,817.03  

receivables -considered good

10. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

11. Trade receivables (Unsecured)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Less than 6 months

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023.

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

Balance with banks - in current accounts	  7,856.18 	  43,654.30

Cash on hand	  341.69 	  217.69

Total			     8,197.87 	  43,871.99  
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13. Other current assets

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

No. of shares Rupees
Particulars

14. Equity share capital

RupeesNo. of shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares Rupees
Particulars

RupeesNo. of shares

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

	 Loans and Advances to Related Parties

	 - to Related Parties	  -   	  1,689.87 

	 -  to Others 	  -   	  - 

	 Balances with government authorities - Direct taxes	  11,508.07 	  7,056.01 

	 Contract Assets	  1,83,590.18 	  1,11,521.98 

	 Advance to supplier	  30,111.18 	  21,489.54 

	 Others Advances	  375.46 	  416.88 

Total		  2,25,584.89 	  1,42,174.29 

Authorised

Equity shares of Rs.10 each	  1,25,00,000 	  1,25,000.00 	  1,25,00,000 	  1,25,000.00 

	  		   1,25,00,000 	  1,25,000.00 	  1,25,00,000 	  1,25,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 

		   	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 

Footnotes :

i.	 The Company has not allotted any equity shares for consideration other than cash  nor bought back any shares during a period of five years immediately  
	 preceding the balance sheet date.  However, the Company during the year has Issue Bonus Share at the ratio of 4:1

ii.	 Equity shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares in the current years by capitalisation of Securities premium.

iii.	 The Company during the year has Issue right share

iv.	 Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

	 a)	 Equity shares

At the beginning of year 	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 	  12,50,000 	  12,500.00 

Issued during the year	  -   	  -   	  1,12,46,000 	  1,12,460.00

Outstanding at the end of year	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 	  1,24,96,000 	  1,24,960.00 
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No. of Share Held % of total holding
Particulars

% of total holdingNo. of Share Held

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

vii.	Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2024

% of total sharesPromoter Name % Change during the yearNo. of Shares

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2023

% of total sharesPromoter Name % Change during the yearNo. of Shares

v. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 
Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share.  On a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote; 
and upon a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their share of the paid equity share capital of the Company. The Company in General 
meeting may declare dividends to be paid to members according to their respective rights, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the 
Board, but the Company in General Meeting may declare a smaller dividend.  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

vi. Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares of the aggregate shares in the company

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

-	 Mautik Ajit Tolia	  44,00,980 	 35.22%	  4,400.98 	 35.22%

-	 Bsel Infrastructure Realty Ltd	  9,60,000 	 7.68%	  1,458.00 	 11.67%

Mautik Ajit Tolia	 44,00,980 	 35.22%	 0.00%

Sukesh Devidas Motwani	  10,000 	 0.20%	 0.00%

Mautik Ajit Tolia	  44,00,980 	 35.22%	 -33.18%

Sukesh Devidas Motwani	  25,000 	 0.20%	 -0.20%

Total
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15. Other Equity

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

	
16. Non-Current Borrowings

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

	 Share Premium 	  68,110.00 	  68,110.00 

	 Retained Earnings 	  79,315.55 	  55,672.95 

Total		   1,47,425.55 	  1,23,782.95 

Share Premium 

	 Opening Balance	  68,110.00 	  55,650.00 

	 Add: On Premium on Right Issue 	  -   	  1,12,428.00 

	 Less: On Bonus shares issued (Refer Note 35) 	  -   	  (99,968.00)

Closing Balance 	  68,110.00 	  68,110.00 

Retained Earnings

	 Opening Balance	  55,672.95 	  23,109.84 

	 Net Profit / (Loss) during the year	  33,940.91 	  32,568.50 

	 Profit/(Loss) on Share of associates 	  (7.80)	  (5.39)

	 Interim Dividend Paid	  (9,331.77)	  -   

	 Income tax on Interim Dividend	  (958.74)	  -   

			    79,315.55 	  55,672.95 

	 (ii)	 Other comprehensive income

		  As per last balance sheet	  -   	  -   

Closing Balance	  -   	  -   

(i)	 Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in  
	 accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) 	 General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

(iii)	 Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses, if any, made by the Company over the years.

Unsecured, Considered Good Term Loans

From Banks	 7,063.97 	  11,875.19 

From Other Financial Institution	 701.14 	  7,949.22 

Less: Current maturities disclosed under “short-term borrowings” (Refer Note 18)	  (7,548.74)	  (16,656.15)

Total			    216.37 	  3,168.26 
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	 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Non Current Current

31/03/202331/03/2024 31/03/2023 31/03/2024
Particulars

17. Lease Liabilities

18. Borrowings

Note: i.	 Principal Security Hypothecation of book debts for cash credit limit of 300.00 Lakhs.  
	 Collateral Security Equitable mortgage of immovable property of the director

19. Trade payables

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Lease Liailities	  6,438.95 	  811.02 	  2,417.30 	  1,912.99 

Total 	 6,438.95 	  811.02 	  2,417.30 	  1,912.99 

(i) MSME		  -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

(ii) Others	  	 1,39,588.91 	  59,846.00 	  11,591.60 	  4,774.82 	  1,107.00 	  2,16,908.33 

Secured, Considered Good

	 Cash Credit Facility from Banks (Refer Note i below)	  29,507.38 	  21,952.66 

Unsecured, Considered Good

	 Loans and advances from related parties -Repayable on Demand	  13,008.03 	  8,700.00 

	 Loans and advances from Others	 -	  90.40 

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings

	 From Banks	  6,941.14 	  9,401.30 

	 From Other Financial Institution	  607.60 	  7,254.85 

Total			   50,064.15 	  47,399.21 

“Micro and Small Enterprises (Including acceptance) (Refer Note i & ii below)	 -	 -

Others (Refer Note i & ii below)	  2,16,908.33 	  87,636.67

			    2,16,908.33 	  87,636.67 

Note:	 i.	 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues.  This information, as required to be disclosed under the Micro  
		  Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has een determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information  
		  available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
	 ii.	 Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and credit term for same is generally in the range of 0 to 90 days

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024

Particulars
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months
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Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2023

Particulars
6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months

	

	

	

	

20. Other current financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

21. Other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

22. Current Provisions

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

23. Revenue from operations

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Statutory Dues	  15,345.38 	  10,822.25 

Expenses Payable	  42,400.16 	  46,505.67 

Total			    57,745.53 	  57,327.92 

(i) MSME		  -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

(ii) Others		   62,629.27 	  12,960.46 	  9,308.17 	  2,738.78 	  -   	  87,636.67 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings	  113.84 	  282.26 

Total		   	  113.84 	  282.26 

Provision for income tax	  9,120.04 	  7,464.46 

Total			    9,120.04 	  7,464.46 

Sale of services:

Commissioned television programs	  3,49,693.92 	  2,52,026.36 

Internet programs / Web Series	  2,90,297.17 	  1,74,094.25 

Total			    6,39,991.09 	  4,26,120.61
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24. Other income

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

	
25. Cost of Production Expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Interest on income tax refund 	  -   	  432.13 

Liabilities / excess provisions written back	  556.67 	  1,477.69 

Finance  Income on Lease Deposit	  101.43 	  58.03 

Gain on derecognisation of Right of Use assets & Financial Liability	  140.64 	  128.36 

Other non oprating Income	  142.23 	  -   

Total			    940.97 	  2,096.21 

Artists, directors, writes, technicians & other professional fees	  3,80,919.43 	  2,23,379.02 

Shooting and location expenses	  71,828.95 	  57,432.23 

Set properties and equipment hire charges	  61,242.67 	  12,453.67 

Food and refreshments charges	  17,008.90 	  10,961.21 

Sound expense	  2,210.64 	  6,748.14 

Editing, Dubbing & Subtitling	  41,057.73 	  34,861.01 

Production expenses including purchase of costumes and dresses	  34,613.91 	  35,372.45 

Insurance expense	  1,518.47 	  795.15 

Other production expenses	  15,449.85 	  5,717.80 

Total			    6,25,850.55 	  3,87,720.68 
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26. Change in Inventories

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

27. Employee benefits expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

28. Finance cost

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

29. Depreciation and amortization expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4)	  209.39 	  82.88 

Amortization on right-of-use assets (Refer note 4)	  2,044.53 	  1,867.18 

Total	  		  2,253.92 	  1,950.06 

Opening Balance

	 Television serials, internet series	  94,755.76 	  58,707.63 

Closing Balance

	 Television serials, internet series  	  1,63,105.76 	  94,755.76 

Total	 		   (68,350.00)	  (36,048.14)

Salaries and wages - Staff	  3,676.03 	  3,042.29 

Directors Remuneration	  6,750.00 	  6,300.00 

Staff welfare expenses	  401.38 	  326.00 

Total	 		  10,827.42 	  9,668.29 

Interest on Borrowings	  6,818.20 	  5,283.34 

Interest on lease liabilities 	  389.80 	  504.15 

Loss on derecognisation of Financial Liability	  -   	  20.23 

Total	  		  7,208.00 	  5,807.72 
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30. Other Expenses

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

30.1. Payments to Auditors 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rupees Rupees

Particulars

Admin Expenses	  429.18 	  210.06 

Power and fuel	  280.57 	  169.60 

Rent Expenses	  1,279.18 	  80.60 

Rent Ind AS	  9.45 	  -   

Repairs and maintenance  Expenses	  572.69 	  482.78 

Communication expenses	  62.83 	  -   

Travelling Expenses	  1,708.62 	  1,584.01 

Printing and stationery	  153.00 	  47.39 

Advertising and sales promotion	  1,969.73 	  1,084.88 

Legal and professional fees	  4,334.52 	  3,887.32 

Auditors Remunaration (Refer note. 30.1)	  -   	  - 

	 - As auditors - statutory audit	  900.00 	  400.00   

	 - For other matters	  150.00 	  160.00  

Share Issue Expenses	  -   	  1,648.42 

Sundry balance written off	  -   	  2,939.35 

Insurance Expenses	  -   	  102.96 

Miscellaneous expenses	  32.53 	  401.84 

Interest on TDS	  387.51 	  373.91 

Total	  		  12,269.80 	  13,573.12

Statutory Audit Fees	  750.00 	  300.00 

limited review report	  150.00 	  100.00 

Other Certification service	  150.00 	  160.00 

Total	  		  1,050.00 	  560.00 
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I	 Disclosure under IND AS 24 - “Related-party Disclosures” are given below:

 	 Related Party Disclosure:

	 A.	 Relationships

	 (i)	 Enterprises where controls exits :

		  Subsidiairies / Associate / Joint venture

			   1.	 Phataka Films LLP (JV)

			   2.	 Vasudhara Media Venture Pvt. Ltd.

			   3.	 Dharmaveer Media City Pvt. Ltd.

			   4.	 Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP

	 B.	 Key management personnel (KMP)

	 		  1.	 Mautik Ajit Tolia	 Managing Director Chairperson

			   2	 Sukesh Devdas Motwani	 Whole-time director

			   3.	 Uma Krishnan	 Non-Executive - Independent Director

			   4.	 Nutan jha	 Non-Executive - Independent Director

			   5.	 Rahul Kanodia	 Non-Executive - Non-Independent Director (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)

			   6.	 Suneel Kumar Jain	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (w.e.f. 26/10/2023)

			   7.	 Niranjan Vidyasagar	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 06/10/2023)

			   8.	 Saloni Sunil Kapadia	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 21/07/2023)

			   9.	 Suyog Sanjay Jadhav	 Non-Executive - Independent Director (up to 06/10/2023)

			   10.	Nirali Dishant Shah	 Company Secretary

			   11.	Ravi Bhavanishankar Bhatt	 Chief Financial Officer

	 C.	 Relatives of Key management personnel (KMP)

			   1.	 Ajit M. Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

			   2.	 Anjana Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

			   3.	 Nautam Tolia (Relative of Mautik Ajit Tolia)

	 D.	 Ventures in which KMPs have significant influence

			   1.	 Point 17 (Proprietorship Firm of Relative of KMP)

			   2.	 Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. (KMP holds significant influence)

	 E.	 Other Related Party

			   1. Guroudev Bhalla (Partner of Stepdown Subsidiairy)

31. Disclosure under IND AS 
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Particulars
Subsidiairies/ 

Associate/ 
 Joint venture

Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Relative of Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP) Other 

Related Party

Enterprise 
in which Key 

Management 
Personnel 
and KMP 

relative have 
significant 
influence

TotalSr. 
No.

	 1	 Remuneration/Salary  
			   Mautik Tolia                    	  -   	  3,300.00 	  -   	  -   	  3,300.00  
			   Sukesh Motwani	  -   	  3,450.00 	  -   	  -   	  3,450.00 

	 2	 Reimbursement of Exp./Paid against services 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 4,152.89	 -	 -	 4,152.89

	 3	 Sales/Other Income 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 15,000.00	 -	 -	 -	 15,000.00 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 1,270.17	 -	 -	 -	 1,270.17

	 4	 Interest Income 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 64.88	 -	 -	 -	 64.88 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 354.24	 -	 -	 -	 354.24

	 5	 Loan/advance Taken 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 700.00	 -	 -	 700.00

	 6	 Loan/advance/Project Advance Given 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 40,949.40	 -	 -	 -	 40,949.40 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 14,964.56	 -	 -	 -	 14,964.56 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 811.00	 -	 -	 -	 811.00 
			   Guroudev Bhalla	 -	 -	 2,000.00	 -	 2,000.00

	 7	 Loan/advance/Project Advance Received Back 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 (39,794.00)	 -	 -	 -	 (39,794.00) 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 (18,955.18)	 -	 -	 -	 (18,955.18) 
			   Guroudev Bhalla	 -	 -	 (2,000.00)	 -	 (2,000.00)

	 8	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 8.38	 -	 -	 -	 8.38 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. 	 -	 -	 -	 1,404.40	 1,404.40 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 17.41	 -	 -	 -	 17.41 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 3,990.62	 -	 -	 -	 3,990.62

	 9	 Amount Receivable / (Payable) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Unsecured Loan	 -	 (9,400.00)	 -	 -	 (9,400.00) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Expenses Payble	 -	 (277.04)	 -	 -	 (277.04) 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 (1,047.66)	 -	 -	 (1,047.66) 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 3,575.98	 -	 -	 -	 3,575.98 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd.	 -	 -	 -	 3,094.27	 3,094.27 
			   Vasudhara Media Ventures Pvt Ltd	 18,572.81	 -	 -	 -	 18,572.81 
			   Dharmaveer Media City Private Limited	 869.39	 -	 -	 -	 869.39 
			   Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 165.38	 -	 -	 -	 165.38

Statement of transactions for the year ended March 31, 2024

	 F.	 Transactions with related parties

167
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

BODHI TREE MULTIMEDIA LIMITED 
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees thousands, unless otherwise stated)



Statement of transaction for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Associate/ 
Joint venture

Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Relative of Key 
management 

personnel 
(KMP)

Enterprise 
in which Key 

Management 
Personnel 
and KMP 

relative have 
significant 
influence

TotalSr. 
No.

	 1	 Remuneration/Salary 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 3,000.00	 -	 -	 3,000.00 
			   Sukesh Motwani	 -	 3,300.00	 -	 -	 3,300.00

	 2	 Reimbursement of Exp./Paid against services 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 2,936.79	 -	 -	 2,936.79

	 3	 Loan/advance Taken 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 9,800.00	 -	 -	 9,800.00 
			   Ajit Tolia	 -		  1,000.00	 -	 1,000.00

	 4	 Loan/advance repaid 
			   Mautik Tolia	 -	 (1,100.00)	 -	 -	 (1,100.00) 
			   Ajit Tolia	 -	 -	 (1,000.00)	 -	 (1,000.00)

	 5	 Payments made on behalf of the related party 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 1.78	 -	 -		  1.78

	 6	 Amount Receivable / (Payable) 
			   Mautik Tolia  Unsecured Loan		  (8,700.00)	 -	 -	 (8,700.00) 
			   Mautik Tolia Expenses Paybale		  (284.94)	 -	 -	 (284.94) 
			   Sukesh Motwani		  (1,179.51)	 -	 -	 (1,179.51) 
			   Phataka Films LLP	 3,567.60	 -	 -	 -	 3,567.60 
			   Sumukha Bodhitree Entertainment Pvt Ltd. 		  -	 -	 1,689.88	 1,689.88
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31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023Units

Description of Assets Right to Use Assets

32. Disclosure under IND AS - 33 “Earnings Per Share”:

Net Profit after taxation (As per the statement of profit and loss)	 Rs.	  35,440.42 	  32,568.50 

Actual No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year	 Nos.	  12,496.00 	  12,496.00 

Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding during the period / year	 Nos.	  12,496.00 	  12,183.70 

Basic earnings per share	 Rs.	  2.84 	  2.67 

Diluted earnings per share	 Rs.	  2.84 	  2.67 

Nominal value per share	 Rs.	  10.00 	  10.00 

33. Disclosures pertaining to Ind AS 116 “Leases”
	 1. The Company as a lessee:
The following is the summary of practical expedients elected: 
	 Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term.
	 (b) Carrying value Right-of-use assets (RoU):

I.	 Gross carrying amount

	 As at March 31, 2022 	  2,908.31  

 		  Additions 	  3,904.47  

		  Less: Disposal 	  1,687.56  

 	 As at March 31, 2023 	  5,125.22  

 		  Additions 	  9,039.74  

 		  Less: Disposal 	  5,125.22  

	 As at March 31, 2024 	  9,039.74 

II.	 Accumulated depreciation / amortisation

	 As at March 31, 2022	 1,784.91

		  Charge for the year	 1,867.18 

		  Less: Disposal	 971.63

	 As at March 31, 2023	 2,680.46

		  Charge for the year	 2,044.54 

		  Less: Disposal	 4,473.91

	 As at  March 31, 2024	 251.09
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(d) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023

34. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

31/03/2024
Particulars

31/03/2023
Rupees Rupees

III.	Net carrying amount

	 As at March 31, 2023	 2,444.76 

	 As at March 31, 2024	 8,788.65

As at 1 April		   2,724.01 	  1,348.99 

	 Add: Accretion of interest		   389.79 	  504.15 

	 Add: Creation of lease liability		   9,039.74 	  3,904.47 

	 Less: Derecognition of lease liability during the year		   (811.02)	  (840.10)

	 Less: Payment of interest and principle as shown in the statement of cash flows under cash flows from financing activities	 (2,486.25)	  (2,193.50)

Net carrying amount as at 31 March		   8,856.27 	  2,724.01 

Lease liabilities (Current)		  2,417.29	 258,835

Lease liabilities (Non Current)		  6,438.95	 1,348,990

Net carrying amount as at 31 March		  8,856.24	 16,07,825

(c) The details of the lease liabilities are as follows:

31/03/2024Particulars 31/03/2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets		  2,044.54	 1,867.18

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use asset		  140.64	 128.36

Interest expense on lease liabilities		  389.79	 504.15

Loss on derecognisation of Financial Liability		  -	 20.23

Other production expenses		  -	 311.65

35. Dividend paid and proposed
	 Intrim Dividend Rs: 0.50 on equity shares is paid on 21-Oct-2023 & further final dividend of Rs:0.50 paid on 28-Mar-2024 by the Board of Directors for the  
	 year ended 31 March 2024 and in Previous Year 31 March 2023, no dividend was paid.
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Non-Current

Financial Assets 
	 Investments in Subsidiairies / Associate / Joint venture		   80.08 	 -	 - 
	 Loans		   10,144.24 	 -	 - 
	 Other non-current financial assets		   4,095.48 	 -	 -

Financial Liabilities 
	 Borrowings		   216.37 	 -	 - 
	 Lease Liabilities		   6,438.95 	 -	 -

Current Financial Assets 
	 Trade receivables		   1,40,183.01 	 -	 - 
	 Cash and cash equivalents		   8,197.87 	 -	 -

Current Financial Liabilities 
	 Borrowings		   50,064.15 	 -	 - 
	 Lease Liabilities		   2,417.30 	 -	 - 
	 Trade payables		   2,16,908.33 
	 Other financial Liabilities		   113.84 	 -	 -

37. Financial risk management
	 The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior  
	 management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk  are reviewed  
	 regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.
	 i.	 Market Risks
		  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises  
		  three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
		  The company is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk. Moreover, the company has no investments in equity shares thus the company is not  
		  exposed to price risk also.
		  Interest rate Risk
		  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate  because of changes in market interest rates.  
		  In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, management of the  
		  Company performs a corporate interest rate risk.
		  According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the  
		  amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
	 ii.	 Credit Risks
		  Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The  
		  company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its loans and advances and other financial instruments.
		  Trade receivables 
		  Customer credit risk is managed by each Project wise subject to the company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer  
		  credit risk management.
		  The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan & advances customers wise based on historical trend. Loss rates are based on  
		  actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no provision considered.
	 iii.	Liquidity Risk
		  Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The company’s approach to  
		  managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing  
		  this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the company’s  
		  credit rating and impair investor confidence.
		  The following table shows the maturity analysis of the company’s financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date:

Measured at :

FVTPL FV OCI
Particulars

Amortized Cost

36. Financial Assets & Liabilities
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Borrowings	 50,064.15	 216.37	 50,280.52

Lease Liabilities	 2,417.30	 6,438.95	 8,856.25

Trade Payable	 2,16,908.33	 -	 2,16,908.33

Other financial liabilities	 113.84	 -	 113.84

Statutory Dues	 15,345.38	 -	 15,345.38

Expenses Payable	 42,400.16	 -	 42,400.16

	 iv.	 Capital Management

		  The Company aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to our shareholders.

		  The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and  
		  day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic  
		  conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company does not distribute  
		  dividends to the shareholders.

38.	 To the best of information of the management, the disclosure requirements to be given pursuant to Gazette notification for amendments in  
	 Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 dated 24 March 2021 effective from 01 April 2021 pertaining to following matters are either disclosed or not  
	 applicable to the Group.

	 (i)	 During the year, the Group have not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or  
		  Section 560 of Companies Act,1956.

	 (ii)	 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group and its associates for holding any benami property under the Benami  
		  Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

	 (iii)	 The Group have not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

	 (iv)	 There are no charges or satisfaction of charges yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

	 (v)	 There are no transactions related to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in  
		  the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,1961.

	 (vi)	 The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

	 (vii)	 As per Clause (87) of section 2 and section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Group is in compliance with  
		  the number of layers as permitted under the said provisions.

	 (viii)	 Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

		  (a)	 No fund (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed  
			   funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity  
			   (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether , directly or  
			   indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
			   or provided any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

		  (b)	 No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Group from any person or entity, including  
			   foreign entity (“funding parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly  
			   or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties (“Ultimate  
			   Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

More than 12 monthsParticular TotalLess than 12 months
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Name of the entity 
in the group

Net Assets i.e  
Total assets minus 

total liabilities

Share in profit 
and loss

Share in  
other comprehensive 

Income

Share in  
total comprehensive 

Income

			   As % of		  As % of		  As % of 
	 As % of		  Consolidated		  Consolidated		  Consolidated 
	 Consolidated	 Amount	 profit and loss	 Amount	 other 	 Amount	 total	 Amount 
	 net assets				    comprehensive		  comprehensive  
					     Income		  Income

Parent	 98.64%	  2,70,225.23 	 89.50%	  31,719.93 	  -   	  -   	 89.50%	  31,719.93 

Subsidiaries								            

Indian								            

1. Vasudhara Media Venture Pvt. Ltd.	 0.27%	  743.24 	 2.10%	  743.24 	  -   	  -   	 2.10%	  743.24 

2. Guroudev Bhalla Screens LLP	 1.13%	  3,099.91 	 8.75%	  3,099.91 	  -   	  -   	 8.75%	  3,099.91 

3. Dharmaveer Media City Pvt. Ltd.	 -0.04%	  (114.88)	 -0.32%	  (114.88)	  -   	  -   	 -0.32%	  (114.88)

Joint Venture								      

Indian

Pathaka Films LLP	  -   	  -   	 -0.02%	  (7.79)			   -0.02%	  (7.79)

Total	 100.00%	  2,73,953.50 	 100.00%	  35,440.42 	  -   	  -   	 100.00%	  35,440.42 

41. 	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current year’s classifications

Note 40

In terms of our report attached 
For S A R A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 120927W

Alok Bairagra 
Partner
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bodhi Tree Multimedia Limited 
CIN: L22211MH2013PLC245208
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DIN: 06586383	 DIN: 06586400
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